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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E &I & 07

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of environmental
services in Hong Kong and the PRC, which include the provision of
cleaning and related services for (i) public area and office cleaning
services which involve cleaning of public areas, carpets, floors, toilets,
changing rooms, lifts and escalators and emptying of garbage bins at
commercial buildings and their tenants, residential complexes, shopping
arcades, hotels and public transport facilities such as airport, ferries,
ferry terminal, cargo and logistics centre and depots; (ii) overnight
kitchen cleaning services mainly at private club and hotels; (i) external
wall and window cleaning services; (iv) stonefloor maintenance and
restoration services; (v) pest control and fumigation services; (vi) waste
management and disposal solutions which mainly involve collection,
transportation and disposal of household waste, construction waste and
trade waste and sales of recyclable waste such as paper, metal and
plastic waste collected during our operations; (vii) housekeeping services
where we provide housekeeping services to carry out professional daily
housekeeping and cleaning services at local boutique hotels, hostels
and serviced apartments; (vii) secure and confidential waste destruction
for commercial clients; (ix) sanitation solution for yacht; (x) cleaning and
waste management solution for renovated apartment; and (xi) airline
catering support services.

Money Lending Business
The Group conducts its money lending business in Hong Kong under the
money lenders licences and in the PRC.

Investments in Financial Assets

The Group invested in financial assets classified as the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which composed of only the shares of
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Compared to the revenue of approximately HK$336.9 million for the year
ended 30 June 2022, the Group’s revenue from the environmental and
cleaning services in Hong Kong increased by approximately HK$36.0
million to approximately HK$372.9 million for the year ended 30 June
2023.

Revenue by Service Sector

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by different
sectors which reflect the target clients of our environmental and cleaning
services in Hong Kong:

Year ended
30 June 2023
BE-ZE-=F
NA=THLEE

HK$’000
FET
Commercial EES 140,782
Residential x= 131,317
Hospitality iy 17,107
Transportation Bty 65,403
Others Hith 18,337

372,946

Most commercial contracts are for the provision of cleaning and related
services at commercial buildings where customers traditionally demand a
higher service quality and are also willing to pay a premium price. Aimost
all of the commercial contracts enable the Group to provide additional
services for the tenants in the tenanted area of the buildings with
contracts on a regular, ad-hoc or one-off basis which further enhance our
revenue stream. The Group succeeded in renewing and securing several
new service contracts in the commercial sector during the year which
contributed additional amount of revenue for the year.

The Group has allocated more resources to gain services contracts from
the residential during the year. The Group succeeded in renewing several
significant service contracts for premium private housing estates which
contributed significant amount of revenue for the year.
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Year ended
30 June 2022
s —
ANA=THLEFE
% HK$'000 %
FAET
136,769 40.6
131,329 39.0
15,252 4.5
34,281 10.2
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336,915 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E &I & 07

During the year, the businesses of hospitality in Hong Kong recovered
slightly as the spreading of COVID-19 was relatively relieved. Our
customers under the hospitality sector have been requesting the
Group to increase our service volume. As a result, the revenue from the
hospitality sector increased for the year.

During the year, the Group was providing hygiene and related services to
several respectable transportation operators in Hong Kong. During the
year, the business of transportation in Hong Kong recovered slightly as
the spreading of COVID-19 was relatively relieved. Our customers under
the transportation sector have been requesting the Group to provide
more services. As a result, the revenue from the transportation sector
increased for the year.

Most of the revenue from other sector is recurring and service price is
reviewable on an annual basis.

Results

During the year, the Group was granted by the Government a one-off
subsidy amounting to approximately HK$0.8 million (2022: approximately
HK$1.6 million) under the ESS for part of the monthly salaries of our
employees under the environmental and cleaning services in Hong Kong
which was included in the “Other income”.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the environmental and cleaning
business in Hong Kong achieved a net profit of HK$8.0 million (excluding
the one-off subsidy from the ESS) as compared to the net profit of
HK$8.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2022. The decrease is mainly
due to (i) increasing manpower services costs due to intense labor
supply; (i) decline in the prices from some customers upon renewal of
their services contracts; and (iii) increase in employees’ injury and public
liabilities claims.

Environmental and Cleaning Services in Shanghai, the PRC

Nearly all sectors of Shanghai’s businesses have been severely impacted
after 3 years’ spreading of COVID-19 in the PRC. Some of our customers
in Shanghai permanently closed their businesses, chose to engage
our competitors offering lower service fees or requested to reduce our
services volume and service fees. In addition, low-skilled labor supply
in Shanghai is becoming extremely intensified as low-skilled labors
are starting to move to other cities in the PRC in view of the negative
prospect and severe downturn of the economy in Shanghai.
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During the year, the Shanghai Operations recorded a decrease in the
revenue by approximately HK$5.4 million to approximately HK$18.1
million for the year ended 30 June 2023 (2022: approximately
HK$23.5 million). And the Shanghai Operations recorded a net loss
of approximately HK$0.6 million for the year ended 30 June 2023 as
compared to the net profit of approximately HK$0.5 million for the
year ended 30 June 2022. The significant downturn of the financial
performance of the Shanghai Operations is mainly due to (i) lost of
several service contracts due to fierce competition in pricing; (i) decline
in the prices and services volume from existing customers of which the
businesses have been severely affected by the city-wide lockdown of
Shanghai; and (jii) continuing increasing manpower services costs due to
intense labor supply.

Money Lending Business

The Group through its wholly owned subsidiaries conducts the money
lending business in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) with the aim of increasing the return of capital of the Group and to
generate revenue for the shareholders of the Company.

The Group mainly targets to provide terms loans, loan facilities and
mortgage loans to individual customers and corporate customers
located in Hong Kong and the PRC which are mainly introduced by the
management of the Group and the existing borrowers. In determining
the terms of the loans granted by the Group to the existing borrowers
and potential borrowers, the Group has taken into accounts the loan
amount, the financial capabilities and the reputation of borrowers and/
or guarantors, the securities provided by borrowers and/or guarantors,
history of the repayment of loan and/or interests, the businesses in which
borrowers and/or guarantors principally engage and similar offers of loans
provided by competitors.

The Group finance its money lending businesses by using its internal
resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E &I & 07

During the year, the Group continued to focus on conducting its money
lending business by providing both secured and unsecured loans to
customers, including individuals and corporations, in Hong Kong and the
PRC. A cautious and prudent approach is the key direction of our money
lending strategies that only borrowers with sound financial abilities would
be considered and approved by the Group. The Company had currently
adopted the credit risk assessment for the potential customers by taking
the following steps:

U

(i)

The Group will conduct the “know-your-client” procedure, which
consists of (i) background check; (ii) obtaining and review of
identification documents (such as identity card, business registration
and/or the certificate of incorporation, public searches).

The Group will conduct an anti-money laundering risk assessment
based on the information obtained under the point (i) above and
the recommended anti-money laundering policies published by the
government bureaus.

The Group will then assess the creditworthiness of the customers by
taking into account the customer’s occupation, financial condition,
asset portfolio and credit history.

(@)

For personal customers, the Group will assess their financial
capabilities by reviewing their asset portfolio (such as
securities investment and/or properties owned) as well as their
background and public reputation (such as position in well-
known organization).

For corporate customers, the Group will assess their financial
capabilities by reviewing their financial statements, business
potential (such as material operating contracts) and/or asset
portfolio (such as securities investment and/or properties
owned).

The Group will also consider the financial capabilities of the
guarantor, if any.

For mortgage loan customers, the Group will principally assess
the market value of the mortgaged properties, any existing
mortgages/charges on the mortgaged properties.

After completion of the “know-your-client” procedure and credit risk
assessment, the loan application will be reported to the management of
the Company for approval. After the obtaining of the aforesaid approval,
the relevant loan documents will be executed.
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For post-loan monitoring, the Group will closely monitor payment of the
monthly interests on the scheduled dates and repayment of the loan
principal amount on maturity dates. In general, the Group will arrange call
with the existing borrowers regularly to understand if there is any material
deterioration in the client’s financial capabilities. Any delay in payments
will be immediately reported to the management of the Company, which
will determine what action should be taken.

In the event that there is delay in payment of interests or loan principal,
the Group will contact the borrowers and issue the demand letters to the
borrowers immediately. The management of the Group will discuss in
details with the borrowers for the reasons of late payment and plans for
repayment. After considering all circumstances available to the Group,
with limitation to reasons for late repayment, recent financial capabilities
of the borrowers, the market conditions, the attitudes of the borrowers,
subsequent repayments made by the borrowers, the management of
the Company will determine whether it constitute a delinquent loan
and whether the Group should take further legal actions against the
borrowers.

SIZE AND DIVERSITY OF BORROWERS

As at 30 June 2023, there were total 7 outstanding loans with an
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$88.2 million granted
by the Group between 2019 and 2023, out of which (i) approximately
HK$38.5 million were granted to 2 corporate borrowers located in
Hong Kong with personal guarantees and/or corporate guarantees; (ii)
approximately HK$28.5 million were granted to 2 individual borrowers
located in Hong Kong with personal guarantees and/or mortgage charge
on the properties owned by the borrower; (i) approximately HK$21.2
million were granted to 3 individual borrowers located in the PRC without
securities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k oM

Set out below is the summary of the 7 outstanding loans as at 30 June W FAR T -_=FXA=1+H7EAXEEE

2023: REVEE
% to
Net total net
Outstanding outstanding outstanding  Interest
Name of principal principal  principal  rates per Collaterals/
borrower Identity Location Contract date Due date amount Impairment  amount  amount annum  guarantees Note
AEE
b
AE AfkE 82
BRAZE 5 bk LR )il %3 HE AeEE sk EAE ER/ER i3

HK$000  HKBOOO  HK$000
Tan  TRR  TER

Borrower A Corporate Hong Kong 31 May 2019 7 November 2022 16,335 (6,780) 9,556 25.8% 22.0%  Personal and corporate 1
EHAA tg v “3-hE - Sl quarantees

BA=1-H T-AtA EARBEER
Borrower B Individual PRC 31 May 2022 30 May 2025 10,798 (119 10,679 2.8% 70% Ni 2
fE51AB faA hE S ZEoRf g

TA=t-A EA=1H

Borrower G Indlvidual Hong Kong 19 May 2023 16 October 2023 6,500 - 6,500 17.6% 11.4%  Mortgage charge over the
#HAC (EN B4 - St 2 ok properties owned by

TATAA tAT/E the borrower

ERABEMAIERIEER

Borrower D Individual PRC 2 June 2022 1 June 2025 5,399 (59) 5,340 14.4% 70% Ni 2
[ERAD EIN E St TRk &

~AZR ~A-R
Borrower E Indvidual PRC 13 August 2020 12 August 2023 5010 (83 4,957 13.4% 6.0% Ni 2
[ERAE EIN hE “Ro%E TRk 8

NAt+=A NAtZA
Borrower F Individual Hong Kong 13 September 2019 12 March 2020 22,000 (22,000 - - 200% Personal guarantees 3
fBEAF fEA (3 ZNE ZE0%% EARR

hAT=ZA =ZA+ZH
Borrower G Corporate Hong Kong 10 July 2019 11 November 2019 22,200 22,200) - - 20.0%  Personal quarantees 3
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88,242 (p1,211) 37,081
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. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

Note:

12

During the time of initial accepting and every renewing these loans, the
Group was satisfied with the creditworthiness of these borrowers and
these guarantors by reviewing (i) their personal assets portfolio with related
supporting documents ; (ii) personal credit report from respective official
recognized organisations; (i) public search by their name and identification
documents of any existing legal disputes from the respective courts’ records
and their background and public reputation from online websites; and (iv)
payment history of their monthly loan interest in the past.

However, the economy in Hong Kong and the PRC have been challenging
for all businesses with the prolonged social unrest in Hong Kong, the
prolonged Sino-US trade tensions and the worldwide spreading of
COVID-19. Amid such negative factors, these borrower’s and guarantor’s
businesses in Hong Kong and the PRC have been severely affected and are
in temporary financial liquidity difficulties, and therefore have defaulted on
repayment of the outstanding loan principal of HK$28,000,000 on the due
date.

After several discussions between the borrower, the guarantors and the
Group, they have submitted us a repayment schedule (the “Repayment
Schedule”) pursuant to which () part of the loan principal of HK$5,300,000
will repaid before end of 30 June 2023; (ii) part of the loan principal of
HK$12,000,000 will be repaid before end of September 2023; and (i) the
remaining outstanding loan principal of HK$10,700,000 will be repaid before
end of 2023.

As at the date of this report, the borrower and the guarantors have repaid
the loan principal of approximately HK$18,078,000 and the outstanding loan
principal is approximately HK$9,922,000. In view of the actual subsequent
repayment amount from the borrower and the guarantors is higher than that
stated in the Repayment Schedule, the Group believes that the it is highly
probable that the remaining outstanding loan principal of approximately
HK$9,922,000 will be repaid by the borrower and the guarantors by end of
2023. Therefore, no full impairment was made on the past due outstanding
loan principal of HK$16,335,000 and only impairment of approximately
HK$6,780,000, representing 41.5% of the outstanding loan principal, was
made as at 30 June 2023.
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Having taken into consideration the below factors, the Group specifically
agreed to grant relatively lower interest rates for these PRC loans:

0] assisting these borrowers in maintaining their businesses during the
temporary downturn in the PRC economy due to the outbreak of
COVID-19 and the Sino-US tension in the past 3 years; and

(iy  similar loan offers provided by competitors.

During the time of initial accepting and every renewing these loans, the
Group was satisfied with the creditworthiness of these borrowers and
these guarantors by reviewing (i) their personal assets portfolio with related
supporting documents; (i) personal credit report; (i) public search by their
name and identification documents of any existing legal disputes from the
respective courts’ records and their background and public reputation from
online websites; and (iv) payment history of their monthly loan interest in the
past.

However, the economy in Hong Kong and the PRC have been challenging
for all businesses with the prolonged social unrest in Hong Kong, the
prolonged Sino-US trade tensions and the worldwide spreading of
COVID-19. Amid such negative factors, these borrowers and guarantors
have been severely affected and are in financial difficulties, and therefore
have defaulted on repayment of their loans and interests on schedules.
Under the Group’s ECL policy, a full impairment loss on their loans and
interest receivables has been made.

Nevertheless, the Group has taken legal proceedings against these
borrowers and these guarantors to collect the loans.

As at the date of this report, the Group successfully obtained default
judgement orders from the High Court of The HKSAR pursuant to which
the borrowers and the guarantors are ordered to repay the outstanding
loan principal amount and related interest and recovery costs incurred.
The Group is (i) still taking demanding actions; (ii) trying to contact the
borrowers and the guarantors; and (i) considering applying for winding-
up of the borrowers and the guarantors.
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. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

The Group’s average gross loan balance decreased from approximately — a1 NRFTE, - NEBKFHER LB AR
HK$104.2 million as at 30 June 2022 to approximately HK$88.2 milion === =4 ;<A =+ H #3104,200,0005% 7T,
as at 30 June 2023 as set out in the below table. The decrease is mainly & =% = = ;X = + H 488,200,000 /5
due to repayments of the loans from some borrowers in Hong Kong while  J¢ o i/ 3 X EHREFEE LS ERAEEE

few new loans were granted by the Group during the year. = MAEBRERNG DR ETES -
2023 2022
ZECCE “E--
Gross Net Gross Net
Interest  outstanding ECL outstanding Interest  outstanding ECL  outstanding
ratesrange  balances  allowance balance rates range balances  allowance balance
AEEGH  BARE AigE AEERR  EHES AER
el BF  BREE  GBEE e fE  BRER  H0EE
% HK’000 HK'000 HK'000 % HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
TR Thn TR TEn T THL
In Hong Kong; RE%:
Secured by mortgage loan mEBEREEA 11.4% - 11.4% 6,500 - 6,500
Personal/corporation guarantees A /AFERER  BRALVARPAY) (50,980) 18.0% 10 22.0% 75,000 (46,086) 28,923
loans 20.0%Z£22.0% 180%%22.0%
(50,980) 81,509 (46,086) 35,423
In the PRC: PR
Unsecured loans ERRER 6.0% t0 7.0% (231) 6.0%t0 7.0% 22,652 (120) 22532
6.0%%7.0% 6.0%Z7.0%
(231) 22,652 (120) 2058
Total a5 (51,211) 104,161 (46,206) 57,955

ﬁ
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k oM

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers constituted balance
28.8% and 100% (2022: 47.5% and 97.6%) of the Group’s net loans
receivables respectively as at 30 June 2023 as set out below:

R-ZBE-Z=ZFA=+H REKEFRARR
AERAZERD BIEBRAEEEKREFF
FEA T 28.8% & 100%( —F = — 4 : 475% %
97.6%) * FHHIWT :

As at 30 June
RAB=1+H
2023 2022
—EC=E B CF
Net Net
outstanding outstanding
balances % to total balances % to total
REE 1H#%E REE gt
HEEE 2Bk ERFE ZEDL
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Borrower A BRAA 25.8% 27,519 47.5%
Borrower B fBAB 28.8% 11,651 20.1%
Borrower C fERAC 17.6% 6,500 11.2%
Borrower D fe sk AD 14.4% 5,825 10.1%
Borrower E EAE 13.4% 5,056 8.7%
100.0% 56,551 97.6%

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has been assessed
individually based on their probability of default and exposure of default
with reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted by current
and forward-looking factors. Further details on the Group’s expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on the loan receivables are set out in note 27 (a(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements. The economy in Hong Kong
and the PRC have been challenging for all businesses with the prolonged
Sino-US trade tensions and the worldwide spreading of COVID-19. Amid
such negative factors, some of our borrowers under the money lending
business have been severely affected and are in financial difficulties, and
therefore have defaulted on repayment of their loans and/or interests on
schedules. Therefore, the Group specifically recognized full impairment
loss on these past due on these past due loan receivables (i.e. loan
receivables under the stage 3) during the year ended 30 June 2023.
Nevertheless, the Group has been taking actions, including but not
limited to legal proceedings against these borrowers, to recover the loan
principals, interests and all other related recovery costs incurred.

BREFREFEMNEEEZRIEHLEORREME
MEYHRRE  K2ERFEEEBER  ITHt
RAE RAEEREZAERED@EREY - 56
AEEERERBHEESE(BHEER
B R — T BHRGRA P RERNT27()
(iiy - BEEHHEE FERBFIFEKRCOVID-197E
RER  EERPEMNEERZEHRER
E¥mMs=sA%hEE A ERZSEaERE
MEEENIHBELZIBEEFEIIEAME
e HOREEIZATBIEEER KL SHFE - A
It ARERREE S -_=FA=1THIHF
ERERZSCaPRRER(RE=RET
MEKER) BREEURERIE - ®RE 0
REBE—ERMITE - BIEETRREZESE
RANREEZFR  WREEZRAS - FIEK
EENATAEMERRDER -
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. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is as
follows:

ERNFEREEEEREZB oMW

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R HERER F=EER st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAET
At 1 July 2021 RZE_—F+tH—H 488 - 44,201 44,689
Impairment loss E R ERE
recognised 1,543 - - 1,543
Impairment loss reversed = @15 & &5 18 (26) - - (26)
At30June 2022 and HZ-TEZ—FA=1H
1 July 2022 MZEZ—_F+H—H 2,005 - 44,201 46,206
Transfer R (481) 481 - -
Impairment loss ERRREEE
recognised 120 6,299 - 6,419
Impairment loss reversed = 15 {E&5 18 (1,405) - - (1,405)
Exchange realignment [ 5 F8%& 9) - - 9)
At 30 June 2023 R-E-=FA=1+H 230 6,780 44,201 51,211
The interest income and operating loss (excluding the ECL allowance) MEEBREE —_ZE-_=FA=1+HILFE

from the money lending business for the year ended 30 June 2023
amounted to approximately HK$4.4 million and approximately HK$1.7
million respectively (2022: approximately HK$9.9 million and net operating
profit of approximately HK$5.2 million). The decline is mainly due to the
decrease in the average loans balance granted by the Group throughout
the year ended 30 June 2023 and the decrease in the interest rates upon
renewal of some loans during the year.

Properties in Hong Kong

As at 30 June 2023, the market prices and sentiment of the commercial
properties in Hong Kong has been gradually and slightly declining since
early 2023. As a result, a revaluation loss of approximately HK$2.6 million
(2022: revaluation gain of approximately HK$5.1 million) on the Group’s
commercial properties is recorded based on the independent valuation as
at 30 June 20283.

Investments in Financial Assets

The Group’s investment strategy is to review the investment portfolio
continuously and make appropriate adjustments (by acquisition or
disposal) according to the market situation, with an aim to generate
reasonable returns. During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group
recorded net unrealised fair value gain amounting to approximately
HK$104,000 (2022: fair value loss of approximately HK$9,000) and did
not dispose of any investments in the financial assets (2022: net realised
gain of approximately HK$30,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E &I & 07

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had investments in financial assets RZ-_Z =4 XA=1+H AEEBEAHY
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of 368,000/ L ( =2 = —4F : 34,0008 7T) 2 &
approximately HK$368,000 (2022: HK$34,000) which composed of only ~ B EEREES B AR AFEABENESRE
the shares of companies listed on the Stock Exchange as set out below:  &&E @ EESERB T EMAOARZERHH

HEAR -
Percentage
of
shareholding Percentage to
in the net assets
Name of stock Number of investee Investment value of the
(Stock code) Principal business shares held company cost Market value Group
RERERT HAREEE
R EB(RGAR) TEEK FERAEBE zREBIL RERK mE  FEZEAM
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Alibaba Group Holding Limited Internet and direct 300 <0.001% 42,330 24,360 0.012%
(9988) marketing retail
MECBEEERERAR0S) EHEREHTE
Meituan (3690) E-commerce and internet 100 <0.001% 14,020 12,230 0.006%
services
%E(3690) BT EBRERBRY
Tencent Holdings Limited (700) It mainly provides various 1,000 <0.001% 216,820 331,600 0.161%
global Internet-related
services and products
in different fields such
as entertainment,
artificial intelligence
and technology, social
networking, finance,
information, tools and
platforms
TE AR A IR 22 5](700) FERMRE ATEE
B - 1K - 27 &
Al TAMFRENAE
HERE2NEREKE
BRENER
EHZERERAT  Fik 2023 17
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. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

Information on the performance of the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2023 is set
out as below:

Name of stock (Stock code)

BE-T-=FAASTALERE AEER
ATESABR T SWEET XA AR
T

Unrealised
fair value gain/(loss)
on financial assets

SREERER
I &8 (R AFEKE(EHE)
HK$
HBIT
Alibaba Group Holding Limited (9988) (9,210)
] B8 B2 2 SR B AR B IR 2 R1(9988)
Meituan (3690) (1,790)
£ [E(3690)
Tencent Holdings Limited (700) 114,780

BRI AR B PR A 5)(700)

OUTLOOK
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Labor market competition in Hong Kong has intensified with the
implementation of The Statutory Minimum Wage (the “SMW”) which is set
to be reviewed in coming two years. The Group is also facing higher labor
turnover rate in the environmental and cleaning services industry as more
labor tend to work in other less laborious industries such as the security
guard service industry under the same SMW rate. To offset the increase
in labor costs, the Group is striving to transfer most of the increased
labor costs to our customers and implement more efficient working flows
and stringent cost control procedures. The Group is closely monitoring
the labor turnover rate and regularly reviews our remuneration package
in order to maintain sufficient labor force and cope with the changing
environment. We would continue to enhance the quality of services by
providing training to our front line staff.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E &I & 07

The economy in Hong Kong has been challenging and in extreme difficult
for the businesses in the transportation and the hotel sectors as well as
the commercial sector with the worldwide spreading of COVID-19. Our
customers from these sectors have been reducing their service requests
and asking for the prices reduction. We believe that both of our service
income and profit margin from these sectors must remain low. To mitigate
such downturn effect, we would strengthen our marketing effort in hope
to expand our market shares in the commercial and the residential
sectors and continue to consolidate our resources to focus on high value
customers to bring in additional revenue by cross-selling other cleaning
and waste management services to our existing customers. We believe
this strategy may not only improve our revenue per customer but also
increase our profit margin as we could leverage our existing manpower
to perform services at location where we already have presence. We
would explore other new environmental and cleaning services to expand
our service scope to enable customers to use the Group as a one-stop
cleaning contractor. We would continue to streamline our operations in
order to simplify and improve our operation efficiency. We believe that our
success in serving different sectors will further build up the confidence for
new clients to select our cleaning services in the coming future.

Environmental and Cleaning Services in the PRC

The Shanghai Operations are not expected to be significantly improved
in the coming fiscal year with the above-mentioned negative factors
affecting nearly all sectors of businesses in Shanghai. However, the
management of the Shanghai Operations has refined its marketing
strategies in order to attract more new customers to utilize our cleaning
services and implemented more efficient working flows and stringent cost
control procedures to reduce all unnecessary expenditures.

Money Lending Business

With the increasing threat of a downturn of the economy in Hong Kong
and the PRC as a result of the above-mentioned negative factors, the
Group continues its effort in strengthening its risk management policy
and streamlining our existing loan portfolio mix with an aim to reduce our
exposure on high risk loans. A cautious and prudent approach is the key
direction of our money lending strategies that only borrowers with sound
financial abilities would be considered and approved by the Group in the
future.

Investments in Financial Assets

A cautious and prudent approach is continued to be the key direction
of our investment strategies that only companies listed on the Stock
Exchange with valuable prospects would be considered and invested by
the Group in the future.
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. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group reported a total revenue of
approximately HK$395.4 million (2022: approximately HK$370.3 million),
representing an increase of approximately 6.8%. The increase is mainly
due to the net effect of (i) increase in the revenue from the environmental
and cleaning services business in Hong Kong by approximately HK$36.0
million to approximately HK$372.9 million for the year ended 30 June
2023 (2022: approximately HK$336.9 million) as a result of several
service contracts in the commercial, the hospitality and the transportation
sectors awarded by the Group; (ii) decrease in the contribution of the
revenue of approximately HK$5.4 million from the Shanghai Operations
as several cleaning service contracts were lost during the year; and (i)
decrease in the interest income of approximately HK$5.5 million from
the money lending business after decline in the average loans balances
granted by the Group during the year.

Other Income, Other Gains and Other Losses and
Impairment

Other income, other gains and other losses and impairment of the Group
mainly consisted of (i) the revaluation loss of approximately HK$2.6 million
(2022: revaluation gain of approximately HK$5.1 million) on the Group’s
commercial properties based on the independent valuation; (i) the net
impairment loss of approximately HK$7.0 million (2022: impairment
loss of approximately HK$1.5 million) made for the loans and interests
receivables under the Group’s money leading business; (i) impairment
loss of approximately HK$2.9 million (2023: HK$Nil) on the goodwill from
the CGU of the environmental and cleaning business in the PRC during
the year ended 30 June 2022; and (iv) one-off subsidies of approximately
HK$0.8 million (2022: approximately HK$1.6 million) from the ESS.

Selling, Marketing Expenses and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s selling, marketing and administrative expenses increased
by approximately HK$0.6 million to approximately HK$24.8 million
(2022: approximately HK$24.2 million) for year ended 30 June 2023,
The increase was mainly due to increase in the selling, marketing and
administrative expenses, including but not limited to, rental expenses,
entertainment expenses, advertising and promotion expenses, travelling
expenses and general office expenses, of the Group’s headquarters.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B E &I & 07

DISCLOSURE OF ADVANCE TO ENTITIES UNDER
RULE 17.22 OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Included in the Group’s loans receivables with aggregate principal
amount of approximately HK$88.2 million as at 30 June 2023 are the
loans with aggregate principal amount of HK$16.3 million granted to the
below independent third party under the ordinary course of the Group’s
money lending services which exceed 8% of the assets ratio as defined

under Rule 19.07(1) of the GEM Listing Rules as at 30 June 2023.

The details of such loan is disclosed under Rule 17.22 of the GEM Listing

Rules as below:

RIEGEM LR Bl £ 17.22 % # & [
ERBX

AEER T -_ZFNAZTHASHEEY
88,200,000/ 8 THEKERBIEN S ==F
NAZTERTAEERERS —RBEP L
TIBLE = HHBEGEM R B 19.07(1) 1§
FT R W& EE L 8% M A & 4858 416,300,000
EITHER »

BREZNFSIEEGEM FHEEIE17.22%
WEMT :

Gross amount of
Loan the loan as at
Name of amount 30June Interest rate
Date of announcements the borrower granted 2023 perannum  Guarantees and security Repayment terms
i 2
AAZTA
AERH BRAZE/ 14 RUEREE e EHE  ERRER BRAR
HK$'000 HKS'000
Titr Fir
8 November 2017, Asian Champion Industrial 30,000 16,335 22%  Personal quarantees executed by the  The Borrower shall pay
8 November 2018 and Limited below independent third parties: interest accrued on the loan
31 May 2019 onamonthly hasis and shal
- Mr.Liao Libo, who owns repay the total outstanding
40% equity interest of Asian principal amount of the Loan
Champion Industrial Limited; and  together with any outstanding
interest accrued thereon on 7
- Mr.Cheung Wing Chuen, who ~ November 2022.
owns 60% equity interest of Asian
Champion Indlustrial Limited
Corporate quarantee executed by ¥
BEERIEERRAR, whichis
owned as to 80% by Mr. Liao Libo
“EtE-ANE REEFARAR 30,000 16,335 2% BATBUESARINEARR:  EXARSARNERNET
ZE-NET-ANBR HERER =S5+~ H
ZE-N\FRA=T-H - BERDERARATANRE tABREFMABEASE

Capital Structure and Fund Raising Activities

The shares of the Company are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The Company’s share capital comprises only ordinary shares.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group had financed its
operations and capital requirements through operating cash flows.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$90.3 million (2022: approximately HK$74.5 million).
The increase is mainly due to net cash inflows from the Group’s operating
activities.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$141.9 million (2022: approximately HK$147.2 million) and current
ratio of approximately 2.7 times (2022: approximately 2.9 times) which
remain strong and healthy.

The Group monitors its capital by reference to the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings (including lease
liabilities) divided by total equity. The gearing ratio at the end of the
reporting period was as follows:
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RBESRUBEIR

BE_T-_=F A=THILFE *&
BB RERNEERESE N -

E i3

RZZE-_=ZFA=1+8 AE£ERL KRS
Z{EWM#) 590,300,000 T (ZE = —F : 4
74,500,000/87C) - BEAEMNTIEZEHNRAE
Bl R EEMIR SR AT ©

RZBEZ=FX"A=1+H xEERHEE
FEH A141,900,0008 L (ZE=—F : 4
147,200,000/ 70) * MBI RN B2.7E(ZF
T 592.918) - DERERES RIREKT o
REENEES B REEHEER o R
it B e ERE(BREAEEE) B IUARASERE
ATE c R EBARMNEEAGBHENT

2023 2022

—E=-= —EC-F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FER FiBT

Bank loans IRITER 21,369

Lease liabilities HEaE 2,064

Total interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE®SE 23,433
Total equity (inclusive of non-controlling IR e zE (B AR IR A=)

interests) 202,632 213,338

Gearing ratio BEAGEE 11.10% 10.98%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group is in a strong and healthy
financial position and has sufficient resources to support its operations
and meet its foreseeable capital expenditures and expansions.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had bank deposits of approximately
HK$0.3 million (2022: approximately HK$0.6 million) pledged to banks
as security for bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued and
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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As at 30 June 2023, the Group had properties with carrying values of
approximately HK$54.4 million (2022: approximately HK$58.3 million)
charged to the bank as security for the bank loans, bankers’ guarantees
on performance bonds issued and banking facilities granted to the
Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period, major portion of the Group’s operations are located
mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk due to the exchange rate fluctuation of RMB against
HK$ arising from the environmental and cleaning services business
and money lending business in the PRC. The results of our operations
in the PRC are translated from RMB into HK$ at the exchange rates
approximating the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions while their
financial items are translated from RMB into HK$ at the closing rate ruling
at the end of the reporting period, the resulted exchange differences are
recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve of the Company and will be reclassified
to profit or loss until the disposal of interests in such operations.
Fluctuation of RMB against HK$ is moderate to the Group during the
period. The Group will review and monitor its currency exposure from
time to time, and when appropriate hedge its currency risk.

Information on Employees

The Group had 1,126 employees (2022: 1,189) as at the end of the year.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with the employees by providing
competitive remuneration package to the employees including salaries,
allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, and training for human
resources upskilling. Total staff costs and related expenses (including
Directors’ remuneration) incurred by the Group were approximately
HK$206.7 million (2022: approximately HK$204.1 million) for the year
ended 30 June 2023.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

There were neither significant investments held by the Group as at 30
June 2023 nor material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries made by
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2023.
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Ca

pital Expenditure

For the year ended 30 June 2023, our capital expenditures mainly

incl
HK

uded acquisitions of plant and equipment amounting to approximately
$0.9 million. These capital expenditures were funded by funds

generated from our operating activities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Performance bond

BRI
HE_Z_=FXA=TRHLFE  #MAD

BEARAXIZERBERELRE

900,000/ 7L - ZEE AR ML E BB TE

Guarantees on performance bonds in
respect of environmental and cleaning
service contracts

REERFELR

SRR SRR IRIS A HIEX

ERESE o
RAEE

(a) BHRE

As at As at

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

R-EBE-=F N-E-—F

~AB=tH ~HA=1H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

14,320

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued
for due performance under several environmental and cleaning
service contracts of the Group’s environmental and cleaning
services business in Hong Kong.

As at 30 June 2023, the restricted bank fixed deposits of
approximately HK$0.3 million (2022: approximately HK$0.6 million),
the properties with carrying values of approximately HK$50.2 million
(2022: HK$53.7 million) and the corporate guarantee from the
Company and a subsidiary of the Group were pledged to banks as
security for such bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued.

The effective period of performance bonds is based on the service
period and the contract terms as specified in these environmental
and cleaning service contracts. The performance bonds may be
claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group fail to meet
the standards as specified in these environmental and cleaning
service contracts.

Litigations - Employees personal injuries

During the year, the Group may from time to time be involved in
litigations concerning personal injuries by its employees or third
party claimants. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group had no
any significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations as all
potential claims made by these employees and third party claimants
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements and
covered by insurance protection.
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DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently consists of five
Directors comprising two executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr. Yu”), aged 38, was appointed as executive
Director on 28 October 2016, the chief executive officer of the Company
on 28 November 2017 and the chairman of the Board on 2 July 2019.
He served as non-executive director of China New Energy Power
Group Limited (P EI#T6EJRE) N EE B R A A)) (now known as Lamtex
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1041) from 14 March 2016 to 30 August 2016.
He is currently the chairman of FRFE= 2 E % BR A 7] (Shaanxi Hengze
Industrial Corporation Limited*), which is principally engaged in investment
in and development of energy, mining, environmental-preservation, real
estate, and tourism businesses. Furthermore, he is a supervisor of SE
M mELZR R B R & T 2 7] (Uaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability
Company?*), a company which China National Petroleum Corporation
(P AR RAREE R A has indirect interest in it, which principally
engaged in (i) construction and re-construction of city gas infrastructures;
(i) design and engineering of expansion work and related installation and
development management; (iii) transportation, sale, provision of after
sale service, research and development of technologies and provision of
consultancy service in relation to city gas; (iv) construction and operation
of various types of gas station; (v) sale of petroleum and natural gas
related equipment; and (vi) construction, operation management of
compressed natural gas projects. Both Mr. Yu and £ B 2275 1 BHZ K
RAEREHERF (Uaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability Company*) have
been members of the China Gas Association (F Bl A ).

Mr. Lai Tin Ming (“Mr. Lai”), aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director on 31 July 2018. He graduated from the Lingnan University,
Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration in 2008.
He joined our Group in July 2010 as a sales and marketing executive
of Pollution & Protection Services Limited (“PPS”), a main operating
subsidiary of the Company engaging in the provision of environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong. He was promoted to the chief
executive officer of PPS in February 2018 and is primarily responsible for
our group’s environmental and cleaning services business including the
recruitment of personnel, approval of budgets, quality control of cleaning
projects, procurement of cleaning materials and equipment, workplace
safety and site supervision.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching Jack (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 40, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director of the Company and a Chairman
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company on 25 April 2016 and 31
July 2018 respectively. He received his degree of Master of Laws in
commercial and corporate law from King’s College London, United
Kingdom in November 2006 and his Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
and degree of Bachelor of Laws from City University of Hong Kong in
July 2005 and November 2004 respectively. He was admitted to practise
as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2008. He is practising in Hong
Kong and is currently an associate of a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong.
Mr. Kwong was an independent non-executive director of Hao Bai
International (Cayman) Limited (Stock code: 8431), a company listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, until his resignation in 16 May 2018.

Mr. Meng Enhai (“Mr. Meng”), aged 37, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of Company on 31 July 2018. He obtained a bachelor degree
in laws from Xian University of Technology (F8% 3 T AE2) in July 2010.
He joined Bk 78 5k %= 1 12 A = 5 AT (ShanXi Yong Jia Xin Law Office®)
(“Yong Jia Xin Law Office”) in 2010 and serves, at present, as a senior
practicing lawyer and a partner of Yong Jia Xin Law Office for providing
legal services to listed companies in the PRC. He was once the author of
several books relating to the commerce law proceedings and the stock
listing in the PRC.

Mr. Wang Cui (“Mr. Wang”), aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, the member of each of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and a remuneration committee of
the Company on May 2020. He obtained a bachelor degree in Economics
from The University of Warwick of in July 2005. He joined Rolls-Royce
plc in United Kingdom in September 2005 and had roles as Market
Analyst for Asia and Middle East regions, Sales Manager for America
and Europe regions and Sales Director for Global and Vice President for
Greater China customer business. He was transferred to Rolls-Royce
China Holdings Limited in Beijing in May 2016 and now serves as Senior
Vice President of the Civil Aerospace division of Rolls-Royce China
Holdings Limited to oversee its sales, marketing, commercial, account
management, field support, service delivery and engineering sections in
Greater China. He was awarded the “2015 Young Exporter of the Year”
by the British Exporters Association in recognition to his contribution to
the British export industry.

*

For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management comprises our executive Directors and our
company secretary.

Mr. Chan Woon Wing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 42, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 3 October 2016. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
10 years of experience in financial reporting and auditing. Prior to joining
the Group in 2014, Mr. Chan had served at the audit department of an
international audit firm for six years. Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2014
and is mainly responsible for overseeing the company secretary work of
the Company now.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are (i) the provision of environmental and cleaning services;
and (ii) the provision of money lending services in Hong Kong and PRC.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2023 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from pages 100 to 101 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June
2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular shown in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section from pages 5 to 24 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some of which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates. The Directors have established a policy to
ensure that significant risks which may adversely affect the Group, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.
The Group has identified the following key risks that are considered to
be significant to the Group, which may adversely and/or materially affect
the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations and
growth prospects. Key risks relating to the Group’s businesses and to
the industries in which the Group operates are including but not limited
to:

Environmental and Cleaning Services
Customers

(i) A majority of the service contracts have fixed service terms that
range from one to three years and many of them are granted to
the Group by way of tendering. There is no assurance of the grant
of new contracts nor renewal of the existing contracts and these
uncertainties may have negative impact on the financial results of
the Group. Moreover, in the competitive tendering process, the
Group may have to lower the service charges in the bids in order
to increase the competitiveness of the tenders and the Group
may encounter great pressure on the profit margins if the Group is
unable to reduce the costs accordingly. In such event, the financial
results and profitability would be materially and adversely affected.

(i)~ Most of the service contracts of the Group are fixed-price contracts,
under which the Group provides the cleaning and related services
at a pre-determined price. If the Group fails to accurately estimate
the costs or fail to execute fixed-price contracts within the cost
estimates, the results of operation would be adversely affected. As
a result, the Group may not be able to adjust the service fees nor
recover any cost overruns, which may in turn adversely affect the
reputation, financial conditions, profitability or liquidity.
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(i)  The aggregate revenue generated from the five largest customers
of the environmental and cleaning services represented nearly
37.4% of the total revenue of the environmental and cleaning
services for the year ended 30 June 2023. The Group does not
enter into long-term service contracts with any of these customers,
which the Directors believe is in line with the market practice of the
environmental services industry. These customers may terminate
their business relationships with the Group upon expiry of the
service contracts. If any of the key customers, including these five
largest customers, substantially reduces the volume and/or value
of services procured from the Group or terminates its business
relationship with the Group, there is no assurance that the Group
would be able to find substitute customers or to secure comparable
contracts to replace any such loss of revenue. If any of the above
happens, the business and performance would be materially
adversely affected.

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation
of the Group. We places great emphasis on quality control. We have
obtained ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and the Qualification Level Certificate
of China Cleaning Industry — National 1st Level Qualification, and are
committed to delivering professional services and achieving customer
satisfaction. To understand clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments
and communicate with our clients before commencing services. We have
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality Management
Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and objectives. During
the performance of our services, our employees will carry out regular
check on the service quality, including services delivered by the Group’s
own employees and third-party service providers, and record occasions
of substandard performance and any follow-up actions taken.

Budgeting is the key factor of our business operations. To formulate the
reasonable and competitive pricing, we carefully prepare, review and
discuss, among the management and operation teams, the details of
budget for every service contract based on our 20 years more experience
in the environmental and cleaning industry and latest market information.
During the performance of our services, any deviations from the budgets
are seriously investigated and monitored for, if any, remedy actions and
recorded for our reference in coming budgeting.

Service mix, service quality and competitive pricing, which are regarded as
key to good relationship with our customers, are continuously reviewed
with the aim to cater for our customers’ fast-changing needs and
enhance their satisfactions and business relationship with the Group.
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Employees

M

(i)

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
the insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against
certain risk. Employees who suffer from bodlily injuries or death as
a result of accidents or diseases occurred during the course of
their employment are entitled to claim damages and compensation
against the Group under the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
as well as under the common law. The Group has taken out
insurance policies to cover these potential claims, including
employees’ compensation insurance and public liability insurance.
However, the outcome of any claim is subject to the relevant parties’
negotiation or the decision of the court or the relevant arbitration
authorities, and the result of any of the outstanding claims may
be unfavourable to the Group. As a result, the Group may have to
pay out of the own resources for any uninsured financial or other
losses, damages and liabilities and litigation that could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial conditions and results of
operations.

The Group has experienced high turnover rate of the operation
team and the operation could be adversely affected by difficulties
in recruiting and retaining sufficient workforce to meet the needs.
As the environmental and cleaning services industry is a labour-
intensive industry, this exacerbated after the implementation of the
SMW in Hong Kong as workers have more choices, such as security
guards, which may drive workers away from the cleaning industry.
If the Group is unable to maintain the stability of the staff or retain
sufficient number of staff members to perform the service contracts
or fill the vacancies with suitable staff or services from suitable
third party service providers, the quality of services, operation and
financial results would be adversely affected.

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt.
The Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings
to the Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the
importance of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment
process. It also provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working
environment. In order to help cater for the continuous development of the
employees, professional trainings and self development sponsorships are
provided. The Group values any feedback from employees and hopes to
maintain open communication with the latter, which favours a good and
long-lasting relationship.
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Money Lending Business

U

Any adverse changes in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange
rates, equity prices and property prices in Hong Kong as well as
the PRC may generally affect market demands and the repayment
abilities of customers which may lead to adverse impact on the
Group’s revenue and liquidity. The Group would from time to time
fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures,
in particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market
situation.

Non-compliance with or any changes in the relevant laws and
regulations may bring various consequences to the Group, including
but not limited to the revocation or suspension of the money lenders
licence and/or the imposition of penalties resulting from the offence.
Relevant operation policies and procedures have been adopted
and in place to ensure that the daily operation of the Group is
in compliance with the relevant requirements. Internal reporting
procedures have been established and when any suspected case
of employees and customers’ misconduct and/or fraud arises, any
staff can report directly to the management. The staff handbook
has also stipulated that employees and customers’ misconduct and
fraud are prohibited.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the

Grou

p are shown in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is committed to operating in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of various stakeholders including the Group’s
employees, customers, suppliers and the community.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its
various stakeholders are set out in the paragraph headed “Social” in the

“Envi

ronmental, Social and Governance Report” section from pages 56

to 93 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise our environmental impact by raising
energy efficiency and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials such as the adoption of paperless systems and practices in
its daily operations, the duplex printing and copying, and the recycling
of ink cartridges and toner cartridges, etc. In addition, the Group has
adopted environmentally-friendly service procedures in providing the
environmental and cleaning services to its customers for which the Group
has obtained certificates and awards from different environmentally-
oriented organisations.

Further details of about the Group’s environmental policies are set out in
the paragraph headed “Environmental” in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” section from pages 62 to 72 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the PRC and
the Company itself is listed on GEM. In light of this, the Group upholds
high corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its
business practice complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the
respective jurisdictions. Reviews on regulatory compliance of its business
operation are conducted from time to time. During the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has been in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on its listing status in Hong Kong, the environmental and cleaning
services and the money lending business which mainly include but
not limited to the GEM Listing Rules, the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
and the MLO.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$6,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RBBUR

AEBRNBREERERAERNRRLD
¥ - AEBEBBRITERM G NS BERE A
MAERBREMYE @ PINNEREEET
RRABRCABIEE  FEEEERRE
£ BfhE2 REHNEE - BB RFAIEIR
BERNTERERE - i AEBERE
B RHERIR MR IRIGE B SR IRR A RS
B BAKED B TRNREAARBBE
BESRE S SR -

EAANERRBEBORME — PHBHNAFIR
FO2ET2H[IRIE -t REAME | —#[ IR
BB

EpAEEER
AREENEBUREBLTE  MAQRRKRE
BIFAGEM_ETT - BER L - AEBEF KT
MEERIZE S TR HBREERENFE
B RIEERNAEBERRER - AEET
RUHEBSENETARBRETES - ©
CEFEAREBEATHAY  ~58—H8
THEERBHN LA  IREB B Z RIS
MEEBEERTENEBEEREAR -
DEFETRARGEM EHRA - EFEEH - &
ERIEED - BB EEN RBEED -

o Ep
TA

FA - AEEFEHNERS REMBIBRA6,000
ABIT

M3k - BENRE

FA - AEENYE  BERRENEDFE
BN A M REAMEE0

EHERBERAR Gk 2023 33

4
V €



. DIRECTORS’ REPORT £ 234

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the classes and movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year are set out in note 29(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
104 and 105 of this annual report and note 29(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounting to approximately HK$97.2 million (2022:
HK$99.3 million) calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and financial position for the past five
financial years is set out on page 188 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s revenue and subcontracting costs
attributable to the Group’s major customers, subcontractors and
suppliers respectively for the year ended 30 June 2023 is as follows:
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Revenue Wz

The largest customer BAEFP 11.3%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFAE 37.0%
Subcontracting costs DERAK

The largest subcontractor BADERE 19.6%
Five largest subcontractors in aggregate hARHBEEET 74.0%

During the year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers, subcontractors and suppliers.
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Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Yu Shaoheng
REATEE

Mr. Lai Tin Ming
RRAALEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
BEFi2% 4

Mr. Meng Enhai
RBRBRE

Mr. Wang Cui
THELE

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Meng Enhai and Mr. Wang Cui retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not terminable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

During the year and up to date of this annual report, the executive
Directors, Yu Shaoheng and Lai Tin Ming are also directors in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual report
include Mr. Chan Woon Wing, Mr. Chan Chok Fun, Mr. Lu Yi and Mr.
Tang Antao.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of this report are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 25 to 27 of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of job,
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees, as
well as the result of the Group and the market trend. The Group carries
out staff performance appraisal once a year and the assessment result is
used for salary reviews and promotion decisions.

The Group recognises the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance their skills
and knowledge. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to the duties and level of responsibilities of each Director, the
remuneration policy of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
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SHARE OPTIONS
Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such persons’
contribution to further advance the interests of the Group. The Share
Option Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing from the date of adoption,
after which period no further options will be offered or granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects with respect to options granted during the life
of the Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed to the
Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price determined
by the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer
date; (ii) the average of the closing prices per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; or (i) the nominal value of the share.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Person
concerned for such period as determined by the Board, being a date
not later than ten business days after the offer date by which the
Eligible Person must accept the offer or be deemed to have declined it,
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after the tenth
anniversary of the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme or after
the Share Option Scheme has been terminated in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the
Board to the grantee which the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine, save that such period shall not be more than ten years from
the date of acceptance of the offer (subject to the provisions for early
termination in accordance with the Share Option Scheme).

B
fBRRAEETE

R AVA R R S —IARB AR 81 ([ B A iEst
2] 5aERs - HERERSERALRA
BHAKEFEHERNEERALIRH R
REAREZZFIALOEME - FRAX
SE®NE -  BEREFEN_-F—=F0A
—HA\BERS - W RS A R T FRE
Mo BRBIGEZRLIROBERE - B3t
AR BIF AR BB EET S - BRE
BN B R ESET RN K
R

BREFESNSEBALERES  EHAXK
BRELEHAEEFELERMNTIMEMBAL
(TAERALD -

BERENRBENREHEEEEEMNER X
PBARATERTHNERE  (BHREEH
MR XS B REXRPTROSRUAE ¢ (i)
BRONEREEBHNAEESRBERIAE
B $R(E R PR S RCF U E ¢ k(i) @
18-

EHEERATEMEZZNARBESTER
E TG EARERRNEHELER  Ma
BERALTERZAMZZMER - SRIRE
MER - EZZRTESRERETSIRAA 1
BEZRLBREAZICRBBRETEIIEX
AR Z IR AR o

BEENBESS A 2ERNBEREBIARA
# B BR R0 B B AR 1 8 R AT 81 B0 IR SR AT JE 1T
% - Mz MEN SRR AERBBESTF
(AZZ|BIRIERT BIMIR R R ILIEPARR) -

EHERBERAR Gk 2023 37

4
V €



DIRECTORS’ REPORT £ 234

The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the Board.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) in
respect of which the share options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at
the date of the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 November
2018 at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all the share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of the Shares in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together with any
options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company in issue
shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each Eligible Person (including both exercised
and outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme) in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Where any further grant of the share options to an Eligible
Person would result in excess of such limit shall be subject to the
approval of the shareholders at general meeting with such Eligible Person
and his associates abstaining from voting.

The Share Option Scheme expired on 27 May 2023.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, no share options were granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 30 June 2023, no any outstanding share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2023, none of the Directors and
the chief executive and their respective associates had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within of the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
company in which of ordinary  Long/short share capital
Name of Director interest is held Capacity shares  position in the Company
REFRER ERARZE
S BEEHAREE g LERAH HE %R ERITRAESL
Mr. Yu Shaoheng The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1) 350,536,631  Long 64.91%
RATRAE NG Exma A e
Note: BisE -

1. Mr. Yu Shaoheng is the son of Mr. Yu Weiye and the step-son of Ms. Mui
Fong.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2023, no person other than
certain Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group.
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Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
Name of company in which of ordinary Long/short share capital
Shareholder interest is held Capacity shares position in the Company
REHPER PN e
RREA BEEHARERE 5t LERAH HR/ %R ERITRABDL
Mr. Yu Weiye The Company Beneficial owner 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
REERE NN BEHEBERA HE
Ms. Mui Fong The Company Interests of spouse (Note 1) 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
55 R N fie B (Fat1) e
Note: Mzt -

1. Ms. Mui Fong (“Ms. Mui”) is the wife of Mr. Yu. Ms. Mui is deemed to be
interested in 54,431,400 shares owned by Mr. Yu in accordance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

During the year ended 30 June 2023, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public during the year ended
30 June 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year and up to date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, controlling shareholders and their respective associates as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules is interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There are no related party transactions as set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements that falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under the
GEM Listing Rules during the year.

The material related party transactions are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 43 to 55 of this annual
report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”), who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having been
approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a
resolution to re-appoint Baker Tilly as the auditors of the Company and
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yu Shaoheng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in order to uphold the transparency of the Group and
safeguard interests of the Shareholders.

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2023.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code
for the year ended 30 June 2023 and up to the date of this annual report,
except for the deviations of the following Codes.

()  Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the year under review and up to the
date of this annual report, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company is performed by the executive
Director, Mr. Yu Shaoheng. The Company considered that under
the supervision of its Board and its independent non-executive
Directors, a balancing mechanism existed so that the interests
of the Shareholders were adequately and fairly represented. The
Company considered that there was no imminent need to change
the arrangement.

(i) The Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that all non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Currently, all non-executive Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term. They
are, however, subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election
of directors in the articles of association of the Company. Since their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those set out in the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed securities
during the blackout periods before the publication of announcements of
financial results.

The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, that all the Directors have complied with the required standards
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors throughout the period under review. The Company was not
aware of any non-compliance in this respect throughout the year ended
30 June 2023.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner.
Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company. Matters reserved for the Board include, but not limited to:

e approval of the Group’s long term strategy, policies and annual
budgets;
e oversight of the Group’s operations and management;

e approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

e approval of major changes to the Group’s corporate structure,
management and control structure;

e approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;
e responsible for internal control and risk management; and

e approval of matters in relation to Board membership and Board
remuneration.
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As at 30 June 2023 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised five Directors, including two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, of which one independent non-
executive Director has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise in order to achieve
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance, as set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Tin Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 25 to 27
of this report.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering for its
Directors.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) among other members of the Board.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent. None of the
independent non-executive Directors has served the Company for more
than 9 years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions specified in Code
Provision D.3.1, which include reviewing the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, our Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements (including the GEM Listing Rules) and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision
A.6.5 of the Code regarding continuous professional development.
During the year, the Company had arranged a training session to all
Directors in regards to director’s duty which was conducted by an
external professional firm. In addition, Directors also reviewed the reading
materials related to corporate governance and regulations that provided
to them concerning latest developments in corporate governance
practices and relevant legal and regulatory developments.

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without a specific employment tenure, but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Shareholders after their appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in other clauses in the articles of
association of the Company or in any agreement between the Company
and such Directors (but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement), the Directors can be removed from office by notice
in writing served upon him or her signed by not less than three-fourths in
number of the total number of Directors then in office (or, if that is not a
round number, the nearest lower round number) and for the avoidance
of doubt, the counting of the total number of Directors then in office shall
include such Director subject to the proposed removal.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the

Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Their respective terms of
reference are set out in the Company’s website.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 May 2013 with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraphs C3.3 and C3.7 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal
control systems, as well as the overall risk management of the Group,
reviewing the consolidated financial statements and the quarterly, interim
and annual reports of the Group, and reviewing the terms of engagement
and scope of audit work of the external auditors. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditors. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the accounting staff, compliance officer or auditors.

The composition of the Audit Committee during the year and up to the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified industry
experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the Group
the financial and accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, its internal controls and financial reporting matters and the above
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

AC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 4/4
Mr. Meng Enhai 4/4
Mr. Wang Cui 4/4

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of
the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
and nomination of directors and making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and reappointment of Directors.

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year and up to
the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance in compliance with
paragraph A.6 of the Code.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination
Committee shall carry out the selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
and also the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. Qualified candidates then be recommended to the
Board for approval.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting
are as follows:

NC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 1/1
Mr. Wang Cui 1/1

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among
other things, formulating and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy, determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2023 by band is set out as follows:
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The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year and up
to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wang Cui

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

RC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 1/1
Mr. Wang Cui 1/1

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year,
and Directors shall receive at least 7 days prior written notice of such
meetings in compliance with paragraph A.1.1 of the Code. Agendas and
accompanying papers are sent before the Board meetings to ensure that
the Directors are given sufficient time to review the same.

During the year under review, the Board held four board meetings and

1 general meeting. The Directors attended those meetings in person, by
phone or through other electronic means of communication.

50 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

N H

REAREZXAFRAEH  FHEZEEEK

s

BrRRrE(EmE)

&= EBEEE

TS

HNEEeRRBEFENEIT NS E o B

ZEGSRINEBAEHINNOT
BEXEES
gEHE
BEREERE

B2 A 1/1

HEBRE 11

FHiE 1/1

SRHERTE

BEESF W%Aﬁ& EESHRTBTHOE

TR EHEH®  ESBEEEHeRs

H E’J%ﬁ‘ﬁiﬁf_%ﬂ - BENMEMXHAENES
SERATETES  UEREFAARNKE
MEMERER -

REBEFEAN  EFRTUATRESS
EMARNBREAE - EFHREHE - ﬁi@%aﬁ
S EMEFREAFELEZSTE S -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ & A&

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings during
the year under review is set out below:

Members attend/
Eligible to attend

Board  General
Name of Directors Meeting  Meeting
Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Shaoheng 4/4 11
Mr. Lai Tin Ming 4/4 11
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 4/4 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 4/4 01
Mr. Wang Cui 4/4 01

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written
resolutions are kept by the Company Secretary and are available to all
Directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2023. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts
and presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for
the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Company’s auditors, Baker Tilly, acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2023,
which are set out in “Independent Auditors Report” section on pages 94
to 99 of this report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 30 June 2023 amounted to approximately
HK$838,000 and HK$69,000 respectively.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL BB B % A B B A

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that proper and ZHFE€2HEBSHREFTEEMAERNREE
effective risk management and internal control systems (the “RMIC B A EIE X4 ([ EBEIE RN SR K
System”) of the Group are maintained. The senior management of the  £t1) - ARG SHERBEREAERTLE

Company is delegated with the responsibility to design and implement
an internal control system to manage risks. The senior management of
the whole Group, including but not limited to, the directors, executives
and super of the major operating units of the Group, maintains, monitors
and implements the risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

The Group’s RMIC System include a defined management structure
with specified limits of authority, which are designed to achieve business
objectives and goals, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, control over operating and capital expenditures, ensure
the maintenance of proper books and records for providing reliable
financial information used for internal or publication purposes, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and risks to be exposed, and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operations
systems achievement of the Group’s objectives and goals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practice and RMIC System. The Group has established
controlling teams (the “Controlling Teams”) nominated by the Board and
the Audit Committee comprising the directors, executives and supervisors
of the major operating units of the Group to take up the responsibilities
of monitoring the day-to-day operational management, risk management
function, and internal control systems of all operating units of Group,
integrating with the systems of monthly and annual planning and
budgeting process, counter-approval and implementation and control
process, identifying any risk or possible failure of the operating units, and
reporting and making suggestions on how each operating unit to achieve
the objectives and goals set. The controlling teams meet regularly with
the Board and the Audit Committee and report on matters to be updated
to the Board and the Audit Committee timely.
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Risk Management Approach

The Group strives to identify and assess the key risks faced by the Group
based on the following risk management approach:

(i) Risks Identification

The Controlling Teams are responsible for identifying potential
risks, through periodically reviewing the Group’s business and
financial data, testing the effectiveness of the Group’s existing
internal control procedures and policies; and

All staff are required and encouraged to report any risks,
particularly those risks that are material weaknesses and
deviation in the Group’s existing internal control procedures
and policies, to the Controlling Teams or the Board and the
Audit Committee.

(i) Risks Assessment and Measurement

Risks identified or reported are further evaluated and
scrutinised, through consolidating, filtering and prioritising
processes by the Controlling Teams;

Material risks that may seriously affect the business, operational
or financial aspects of the Group are immediately handled by
the Controlling Teams, the Board and the Audit Committee;
and

Immaterial risks that are acceptable to the Group will be closely
monitored by the Controlling Teams to ensure that the level of
risk will not increase to an unacceptable level.

(iii) Risks Control and Mitigation

Considering and weighting the benefits and costs of all
available solutions and choosing the appropriate ones;

Elimination of the material risks entirely by taking immediate
remedy actions such as modifying the Group’s existing
business strategies, internal controls and operational
procedures; and

Mitigation of the material risks by reducing their impact as
much as possible such as transferring the impact of the risks
to third parties and implementing alternative procedures and
policies.

(iv) Risks Monitoring

The Board and the Audit Committee in conjunction with the
Controlling Teams closely monitor the risks identified and the
progress of the remedy actions taken to ensure that the level
of risk will not increase to an unacceptable level; and

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are
submitted by the Controlling Teams to the Board and the Audit
Committee annually for their review.
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During the year, the Controlling Teams has summarized the risks
identified and reviewed the effectiveness of the RMIC System. The
findings have been summarised and submitted to the Board and the
Audit Committee for review. The Board and the Audit Committee
concluded that the RMIC System is effective and adequate and the
principal risks identified have been adequately controlled.

The principal risks identified and related control procedures are set out in
the paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the “Directors’
Report” section from pages 29 to 32 of this annual report respectively.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as stated in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to
the public, the Group ensures the information is not false or misleading
as to a material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public.

Certain policies and procedures have been taken by the Group to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include but not limited
to (i) trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with reasonable care;
(i) confidentiality documents are kept by the designated personnel
and placed in the designated locked areas; (i) transmission of inside
information in electronic form should be password-protected; and (iv)
access of inside information is restricted to designated employees on a
need-to-know basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s process
and communications among Board members and with the Shareholders
and the management, and advising the Board and its committees on
all corporate governance matters. He reports to the Board and/or the
Managing Director and his selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a
Board decision.

The Directors have accessed to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. The company secretary took more than 15
hours’ professional training for the year ended 30 June 2023.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
1o be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Office A, 12/F, Tower A, Capital Tower, No. 38
Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The company
secretary of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions and inquiries, to the relevant executive officer of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to the Shareholders and the investing public. The Company’s corporate
website is www.ppsintholdings.com.

All corporate communication materials published on the website of the
Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) are posted on the Company’s
corporate website as soon as practicable after their release. The
Company’s constitutional documents are also available on our website.
No significant changes were made to these documents during the year
ended 30 June 2023. Information on the website shall be updated on a
regular basis.

Share registration matters shall be handled for the Shareholders by the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.
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. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT =35

The Company is delighted to present its Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “ESG Report”). This ESG Report herein
focuses on providing an overview of the environmental and social aspects
of the Group, and outlines how we continually improve our operational
strategy in regard to our environment and society in order to cope with
the global standards of sustainability.

For details on the corporate governance of the Company, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” section from pages 43 to 55 of this
annual report.

For details in relation to our financial performance during the Reporting
Period, please refer to the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section and the audited financial statements together with related notes
from pages 5 to 24 and pages from 100 to 187 of this annual report
respectively.

REPORT SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

This ESG Report has outlined the overall Group’s performance in
environmental protection, human resources, operating practice and
community involvement for the financial year ended 30 June 2023
(“Reporting Period”).

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the data of all operating
units, i.e. the money lending business and the environmental and cleaning
services business, of the Group.

PREPARATION BASIS OF THE ESG REPORT

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules,
and complies with the disclosure obligations of “mandatory disclosure”
and “comply or explain” provisions. HKEX’s Guide for this ESG Report
from pages 85 to 93 of this annual report is provided for cross-
referencing purposes.

In preparing the ESG Report, the Group has adopted the international
standards and emission factors specified in the guidance materials
on ESG issued by the Stock Exchange for computing the relevant
Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)," and there is no change from
the previous year in the way the ESG Report has been prepared. The
application of materiality is detailed in the subsection headed “ESG
Management — Materiality Assessment”. Moreover, the ESG Report
provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s performance within the
Reporting Period, avoiding selections, omissions, or presentation formats
that may inappropriately influence a decision or judgment by the reader.

! How to prepare an ESG Report? - Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPls, https://www.hkex.com.hk/-/media/hkex-market/listing/
rules-and-guidance/other-resources/environmental-social-and-governance/
how-to-prepare-an-esg-report/app2_kpis
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ESG MANAGEMENT
Statement of the Board

As an environmental protection and cleaning services enterprise, we
value environmental sustainability and have been striving to integrate the
concept into every part of our daily business operations. The ESG Report
summarizes the strategy, practice and vision of our Group with respect to
the issues related to ESG, and conveys a clear message of our Group’s
devotion to sustainability.

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing our Group’s ESG-
related risks and opportunities, establishing the ESG-related strategies
and targets of our Group, and reviewing our Group’s performance
annually against the ESG-related targets. In pursuant to our commitment
towards responsible corporate citizen, we have set up an ESG Working
Group and it comprises members from middle to senior management,
which supports the Board in implementing ESG-related strategies and
targets, and promoting the implementation of measures in relation to
ESG issues identified.

The Board will continue to review our Group’s progress in relation to ESG

issues in order to build a more sustainable business and bring greater
benefits for society as a whole.

Board

BiR - HEREREE
E=gEy

ERRRRENEERBEE - RABRERE
MAFRENE BRI EZECRARE
EBEENSERE - NRE - HERELR
TRETAKRERNRE e MEniREEaE
FERRE BEEMES  YHAREEAKE
HAFRBERORA ©

EXEEHAREEAKERE HERER
R N8 - BIEARERERE B REAR
BEER  Y2RERR HEREREREF
BERAKERSE - RABRARTEERRMEK
o BPIERRE - e RERTIFE - i
TRESHEREKEMAK  BEXKESS
BERE  HeREARBLER  WHER
BEAMCDBENRE e REGHENER

EXSRHEEEAKEERRE HeakE
REERER  MTEENAHENTE - I
AR EHRE AN ©

Exg

The Board is responsible for the overall decision-making process and overseeing
the formulation, administration, and assessment of the ESG system.
EXSARBRRARNETEERE HeRERESNRL -

B R -

ESG Working Group

RS HEREGTIHFE

The ESG Working Group is responsible for assisting the Board in managing and

monitoring the ESG matters on a daily basis.

RIE - HEREATIEAEHHESTSEERE
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BRE  HEREBNAE

Functional Departments

BRBERRFT

Functional departments are responsible for the execution of measures to achieve

the preset ESG-related strategies and targets.
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Our Stakeholders

As stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of
our business, we make use of various communication channels to
understand and engage our stakeholders. We believe that stakeholder
engagement helps us better understanding the needs and concerns of all
our key stakeholders. The probable points of concern of the stakeholders
and the way of our communication and responses are listed below.

BANEHE

RRFNEEEFRMAEBRNTEREEE
MEZMNER  BRMSASEEBRENE
LRI NE - LIEE  HHENSESR
BHRMTHEAMEIEFNENTERBISE
H o FpENATERTBIA KRR M E R K O
JEFIREAT ©

Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

& TTREEAE B BB E e

HKEX Compliance with the Listing Rules, and timely Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
and accurate announcements. updates, and announcements.

BEERS BT EWARR REERTERE - & B IEY - 58l BUEH R AE o

Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government inspections,

preventing tax evasion, business ethics, and
social welfare.

245 BPRRREO - PSR - R Rt
BHTIAE -

Investors and Corporate governance, business strategies and

shareholders performance, and investment returns.

REEMRR REES  EBRMERR - URIRERR -

Media & public Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human rights.

HER AR TEEL  RREARE -

Suppliers Corporate reputation, payment schedule, and
stable demand.

HIER ERE . NREEEREEERK -

Customers Service quality, service delivery schedule,

reasonable prices, service value, and personal
data protection.

5P IRFE % - BRISIRMHEE - IRE - RKE
BN fEABUERE -
Employees Rights and benefits of employees,

compensation, training and development, work
hours, occupational health and safety, and
working environment.

(== EEMERNRBEN - FHiE - BIImEERE - T
R BERRERLT2ARTIERE -

Community Community environment, employment
opportunities, community development, and
social welfare.

= HEBERIR - ERES  HERERREGET -
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tax returns, ongoing communication with relevant
government departments, and other information.
BEIRFD - BUTRE - @58k - EBREEA
EPImIFEE R R M E R o

Briefing sessions and seminars, interviews,
shareholders’ meetings, issue of financial reports
or operation reports for investors, ESG report,
and media and analysts.

MBEmE RS Sk BRAE - ARE
- BREOMBREMBHRERLSEREUL

BIE - HERERTRE -

Newsletters on the Company’s website.
FEARR AL B IRER -

Site visits.

BHFFD ©

After-sales services.

BRI o

Union activities, trainings, interviews with
employees, internal memos, and employee
suggestion boxes.

TS Bl EEF#®  AEESSREMER
BRAE -

Community activities, employee voluntary
activities, and community welfare subsidies and
donations.
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Materiality Assessment

To ensure prompt and proper management of key sustainability issues,
all ESG issues that may have a potential impact on our business
operation are evaluated annually. Material aspects are those that reflect
the Group’s significant economic, environmental and social impacts;
or that substantially influence the assessments and decisions of our
stakeholders. We have compiled and prioritized the material aspects with
reference to an array of factors, including our Group’s overall strategy,
development, goals and targets. In addition, we have included KPI in
the Report in order to provide our stakeholders and the public with a
more comprehensive and profound understanding of the effectiveness
of the implemented operational strategies in pursuing environmental
sustainability. These priorities allow us to uphold our commitment to our
stakeholders while managing the impacts we have on the society and
environment.

The results of the materiality assessment on the identified ESG issues are
set out in the table below:
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ESG Issues RIE - HBRERER
1 Emissions 1 B

2 Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions 2 RERB(DAZEREDIENR
3 Hazardous Waste 3 EBEEEY

4 Non-Hazardous Waste 4 EEREEY)

5  Energy Consumption 5 RERERE

6  Water Consumption 6 AKX

7 Natural Resources 7 RANER

8  Climate Change 8 RIEE

9  Employment 9 1BE

10 Health and Safety 10 @EEZE

11 Development and Training 11 FE RIS

12 Labour Standards 12 B T#R|

13 Supplier Engagement 13 gL

14 Product and Service Responsibility 14 ERERBEL
15 Anti-corruption 15 REF

16 Community Investment 16 HEEE
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

BEARET

Our outstanding business performance has earned us various industry RS EEEHRMFERZTEEE
awards which have further reinforced our position in the market. The — #—#ZE 7 RPN T B - AEBEER

=

Group continues to be recognized for its efforts to promote corporate B OMEITREL S E T MESRA - TRIIR
social responsibilities. The following table shows what we have achieved IR E EIRNESHIFKE ©

during the Reporting Period.

Organisers

EZ ]

Awards

3]

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management
PEFECEEERE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

TERECREEGS

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

TERELEEERS

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management
PEEECEEERS

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

TERXEEXEERGE

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFEFABRAA

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKF ¥ HRAH

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKF ¥ BRAF

Environmental Protection Department
RIGREE

Environmental Campaign Committee
REEPERES

Environmental Campaign Committee
BREDZEAY

Environmental Campaign Committee
BREDEAR

Green Council

RREES

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
WM AR EERED

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
EELGREHE

Qualification Level Certificate of China Cleaning Industry —
National 1st Level Qualification
PEIERBERITESREE —BR—&

Qualification of Stone Cleaning and Maintenance
AMBESREEEE

Quialification of High-Altitude Facades Cleaning
BEIMNEIESREE

Qualification of Central Air-Conditioning System Cleaning and
Maintenance

EhERRGESAEREEE
Qualification of Indoor Environment Purification and Monitoring
ERREFCEEAEE

ISO 9001:2015
ISO 9001:2015

ISO 14001:2015
ISO 14001:2015

ISO 45001:2018
ISO 45001:2018

Certificate of Commendation for joining the Carbon Footprint
Repository for Listed Companies in Hong Kong
Kk — BB LT AR E FHE

Energywi$e Certificate — Basic Level
fifeRE & — ERARR

Environmental Initiatives and Participation — Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence

SEFHRFRTEFELE I R2E-FEREFUAR

Wastewi$e Certificate — Excellence Level
BRETEE — 2R

Member of the Sustainable Procurement Charter
AREREOENXE

Good MPF Employer Award
HeifEE

Caring Coanany
R R
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

We are an environmental protection and cleaning services enterprise.
We are committed to increasing the efficiency of resource utilization
and enhancing our environmental performance by adopting world-class
environmental protection practices in our business dealings.

We strive to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable working environment
by improving energy efficiency, addressing waste management,
supporting environmental education and promoting the idea of recycling
and reusing. Our Group has established an environmental management
system and relevant policies and procedures for our business that
meet the international industry specific environmental standards and
obtained ISO 14001:2015 certification. The operation and administrative
department constantly reviews our internal operational practices to
ensure that they are in line with the concept of sustainable corporate
development. Policies and measures were strengthened and improved
this year so as to effectively manage undesirable environmental impact.

Our Group is currently undergoing an expansion of the environmental and
cleaning services business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
especially in Shanghai. It is expected that the scale and quality of services
provided by our operations will be further increased and improved in the
following years.

To achieve the environmental goals, the Group has implemented the
following measures:

e Comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations;

° Identify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental impacts
associated with the Group’s activities;

e Commit leadership and develop a strong culture of environmental
stewardship within the entire workforce; and

° Make resources and systems available, with the provision of

necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill our
environmental responsibilities.
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Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including but
not limited to the Environmental Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed
non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in
relation to environmental issues.

Emissions

The Group’s air emissions are principally derived from vehicles, while
GHG emissions mainly resulted from various types of activities, including
but not limited to direct emissions (Scope 1) from vehicles, energy
indirect emissions (Scope 2) from electricity, and other indirect emissions
(Scope 3) from waste paper disposal.

In the absence of a production process, the direct GHG emissions
generated from our business activities are relatively minimal, and our
services do not contribute to material impacts on the environment.

Nevertheless, we have implemented various measures to minimize
emissions, thus reducing the impact on the environment.

Motor Vehicles

During the Reporting Period, we owned a fleet of 19 vehicles for our
business operations, as well as transporting our management team
members, guests and clients.

The total mileage travelled by the vehicles was approximately 398,825
kilometers (2022: 427,425 kilometers). The total fuel consumption of the
vehicles was approximately 136,910 liters (2022: 135,672 liters). The
amount of NO_and PM emissions decreased by 6%, while the amount
of SO, emissions slightly increased by less than 1%, when compared to
the year ended 30 June 2022. The types of key air pollutants and their
respective emissions data are as follows:

EHRRF

RBEHRA - RAOBTHRMAEEARZENN
BERBRBERLRN - BREETRREEN
RIRGD - AEBEYWESMNERR T HFEE
AHERH TN A IR B IRGF

e

AEBENERFNEZRRNER - MAER
BHANEIEXREESEEY  EPEEENRR
BEWMNEREN(BE)  BEEENEIRRE
PR R (SR 2) LA Ko B 7 B3 A4 72 A 1O HL i 3%
BEng(SBE3)

MR EEERE - HRMONEBESELS
MEZREREBHFMREED - HFIHRES
SHRBELEATE -

BEWLL - HADERNEEEE - WRARE
HR AR - RETRELIRENTE

Va1

RIERA - HPE — R 198)THAK K
B AREBLEARBRERMANEEZER
RE - BEREP -

REITE B EBIE AH)398,825 RE( 2 - =
F 142742508 ) - AERREHRBREE ALY
136,910 (= ZF = =4 : 135,672FF) - BHE =
“E-FXA=ZTHIEFEMEY  AEY
MR E R 6% - miRa b E RS
I INTEN% - EBERSLEMBERI RS EHE
WEFET -

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2023 30 June 2022

Unit BE-Z-=fF BE-Z-=F

Major Air Emissions FTERBRRFERY B ANRA=ZTHLEE ANA=ZTHLEE
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) i) gse 1,815,182 1,922,802
Sulphur Oxides (SO,) maly g5 2,201 2,181
Particulate Matter (PM) R g 138,054 146,603
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Data on GHG Emissions BEREHNE I
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Unit BE-E_=f%F BE-B-—fF
Types of Emissions B Rl By NRA=THLEEFE ARA=THLEEFE
Scope 1 - Direct Emissions HE1-EEZEHER
Motor vehicles RE kg CO.e 362,889 359,554
Fr_StRE=
Scope 2 - Energy Indirect EE2— BYR M E B
Emissions
Electricity? B2 kg CO,e 21,311 10,411
Fr-a/tikgE
Scope 3 - Other Indirect & [E3 — HAth R HEK
Emissions
Paper waste disposal REAR B T kg CO,e 6,235 5,234
Fr-ftmeE=
Business travel by air RS ZE IR T kg CO,e - -
Fr-@/tiRES
Total Emissions of GHG BEREBATEN
Total emissions AR kg COe 390,435 375,199
Fr_SftRE=
Emissions intensity PeEE kg CO,e/thousand 0.99 1.01
revenue
TR ek
28 /Tl

2 For Scope 2 GHG emissions (indirect emissions from consumption of
purchased electricity), the latest National Power Grid Emissions Factor is in
accordance with the requirements of the Notice on the Key Work in relation
to the Management of Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reporting in
2023-2025 issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC,
and the latest carbon dioxide equivalent emissions intensity of electricity sold
by CLP Power Hong Kong are adopted.
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During the Reporting Period, the GHG emissions intensity by the Group
was 0.99 kg CO,e per thousand revenue, which has achieved the target
set in the previous report. The GHG emissions generated by electricity
consumption of the Group during the Reporting Period rose significantly,
mainly due to the upgraded server and the constantly required air cooling
in the server room. Hence, higher GHG emissions generated by the
electricity consumption resulted during the Reporting Period. To uphold
the principles of sustainable development with a view of balancing
business growth, we are committed to reducing our carbon footprint,
and aim to maintain our GHG emissions intensity at or below 1.20 kg
CO,e per thousand revenue in the next reporting period by adopting the
measures specified in the subsection headed “Energy Usage” and also
the following mitigating measures:

Fleet Management

At the end of each month, we would obtain a summary of fuel
consumption from our service provider in order to monitor the usage
of fuel in all our vehicles. Furthermore, regular maintenance checks are
performed for all the vehicles to enhance fuel consumption efficiency, to
ensure road safety and to keep air and GHG emissions at their minimum.

Air-conditioning

Employees are encouraged to set the offices’ air-conditioners at a
comfortable temperature (best at 25.5 degrees Celsius) and all the air-
conditioners that are not in use should be switched off. The Group
has also put reminder notices at prominent places to raise employees’
awareness of electricity consumption and energy conservation.

Travelling by Air

During the Reporting Period, there were no business air travels taken
by the employees due to the outbreak of the coronavirus disease 2019
(“COVID-19"), resulting in zero kilograms of CO, emissions. Employees
are only required to travel by air, when necessary, otherwise, we would
arrange telephone or video conference calls instead of face-to-face
meetings to reduce the carbon emissions that are indirectly caused by air
travel.
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TRERT e IR AR 192 R PR B e DA S T B 4F 4 R
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Use of Resources

We always endeavour to promote sustainability and aim to cease
resource wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the environment.
Various measures have been implemented to attain the goal of
using resources efficiently. These measures have been effectively
communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring all staff members understand
clearly the importance of conserving energy and making full use of the
available resources at work.

Based on our operating model of the environmental and cleaning
business, most of our water, electricity and energy consumption
is directly provided by our customers or publicly sourced by the
government and such consumption quantity is not controllable by us.
Nevertheless, the Group has formulated policies and educated the
employees on the efficient use of resources including energy, water and
other raw materials in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.
Internal environmental review has been conducted regularly to assess the
environmental impact of the group business activities so that energy and
water usage can be closely monitored. Measures that have been taken to
minimize the usage of resources are detailed below.

Water Usage

The existing water supply adequately meets our daily operational needs,
which are mainly used for cleaning and sanitation, and we have no
difficulties in sourcing water. During the Reporting Period, the water
consumption was 118 cubic meters and the intensity of total water
consumption was 0.10 cubic meters per employee (2022: 66 cubic
meters; 0.06 cubic meters per employee), which has achieved the target
set in the previous report. We will make continuous efforts to work
towards the target of maintaining the intensity of total water consumption
at or below 0.12 cubic meters per employee in the next reporting period.

We encourage our employees working in the headquarters to consume
resources only where appropriate, and turn off the faucets tightly. We
also fix dripping taps immediately, and install flow restrictors and spray
nozzles where possible.

Our on-site employees are required to follow a standard water pollution
control procedure in order to reduce water pollution. Wastewater
containing bleach, buffering cream or specific detergent is diluted before
it is discharged into sewers. To enhance our employees’ knowledge of
wastewater discharge, relevant ordinances and environmental measures
are introduced to our employees.
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Energy Usage

Our energy consumption results principally from vehicle fuel consumption
and electricity consumption. During the Reporting Period, our
energy consumption was 1,513,573 kWh and the intensity of energy
consumption was 3.83 kWh per thousand revenue (2022: 1,465,660
kWh; 3.96 kWh per thousand revenue). The electricity consumption of
the Group during the Reporting Period rose significantly was mainly due
to the server upgraded and the air cooling is required constantly in the
server room. Hence, higher consumption of electricity resulted during
the Reporting Period. We endeavour to establish a low-carbon culture
and work towards the target of keeping the total energy consumption
intensity below 5 kWh per thousand revenue in the next reporting period.
The energy consumption data are as follows:

BER A

BRI ERBEHMBERELE N
A o RIEEIN - BPIMREIRERER1,513,573
TEE - MAEREEZRE A3.83TRE, Tt
WEH(ZZE -4 : 1,465,660 T FLBF : 3.96T
FE/Foles) - RIREHR - REBE N
FARKELF  FZREAFRRESAFIA K
EEHEHZERLATE - At - SREEBRNE
NERELN - BMBHBILER UL - WE
DR TESRE PR ESEREAEREERNST
FE/ Folamm Big - gERBFREEENT ¢

Year ended Year ended

30 June 2023 30 June 2022

Unit BE-Z-=fF BE-Z-—fF

Types of Energy® BETRIERI® B ANAZTHILEE ARA=tHLEE

Vehicle Fuel - Diesel EIRIRH — S KWh T FL B 1,442,778 1,423,797

Vehicle Fuel — Petrol BRI — T KWh T FL B 20,468 25,657

Electricity ESW KWhTF E By 50,327 16,206

Total Energy Consumption HEERE
Total Energy Consumption 4BBERE KWhT FLBF 1,513,573 1,465,660
Total Energy Consumption B ERE kWh/thousand 3.83 3.96
intensity revenue

TR, Tl

As part of our many initiatives to reduce energy consumption, we have
adopted and implemented the following measures to preserve energy
and reduce electricity usage:

e Turn off lighting and appliances that are not in use to reduce energy
consumption;

e Turn off air conditioners and lights during non-office hours and in
idle rooms;

° Employees are required to put computers and other devices into
sleeping mode or turn them off when they are not in use (such as
during customer visits and lunch time) during business hours;

° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air conditioners,
computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure they are operating
efficiently;

s The energy consumption data for the Reporting Period and the last reporting
period are disclosed in accordance with the “Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, which was
different from the method adopted in the previous reporting period.
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e  Printing machine in the office is set to energy-saving mode by
default, and the sleeping mode is automatically turned on, when not
in use for a certain time interval;

° Used printer cartridges at the head office are sent back to the
manufacturers for recycling; and

e Place posters “Saving electricity, turn off the light when leaving”
at prominent places to encourage employees to reduce energy
consumption.

Generation of Waste

Solid waste is mainly generated from the Group’s day-to-day operations,
including, but not limited to office-use paper, office waste and waste
generated from the provision of our cleaning service.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have had a significant impact on us, including, but not
limited to the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed
material non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by us.

During the course of our business operations in providing cleaning

services and money lending services, no packing materials were used,
and thus, no data in this respect is available.
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During the Reporting Period, the amount of hazardous and non-

RBEHR - FELENBEREZERZDEE

hazardous wastes produced are as follows: s
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Unit Bzr—E—-—=F% Brz-—®&2—_—F
Types of Wastes BEEYE R By NAZ+THLEEE ARNA=THLEFE
Hazardous Waste BEEEEY
Chemical disinfectant {LEEEH kgT 5 104,322 106,598
Pesticide B aa kgT 5 1,000 1,187
Total weight BER kgF= 105,322 107,785
Intensity of hazardous waste  FTE4XBEEEEY kg/thousand 0.27 0.30
generated BE revenue of
environmental
and cleaning
services
TR/ BEREZR
BR# < T T s
Non-hazardous Waste BEBEZEY
Paper 4R kgT 7 1,299 1,090
Towel Em kgT 2,567 2,785
Glove FE kg7 2,507 2,305
Scouring cloth Bm kgTm= 239 293
Garbage bag BIRER kgT5e 6,509 5,936
Total weight WEE kgT = 13,121 12,409
Intensity of non-hazardous FIEXJEREY kg/thousand 0.03 0.03
waste generated RE revenue
Fr/FrdkzE

During the Reporting Period, the intensity of hazardous waste generated
has decreased by 10% and the intensity of non-hazardous waste
generated has remained at the same level, which both have achieved
the target set in the previous report. Our generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste depends greatly on the type of cleaning services
provided, considering the uncertainties of the type of future cleaning
projects, we target the increases in intensity of hazardous waste and
non-hazardous waste generated to be no more than 10% and 20%
respectively, for the next reporting period compared to the intensity level
in the year ended 30 June 2023.

REBEMA - MEENAEREVEE TR
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In order to achieve the target and alleviate the pressure on landfills
and promote environmental friendliness within the Group, we have
implemented various measures to encourage the recycling of office
supplies and other materials.

Reduction of Printing and Paper Usage

We require our staff members to make full use of office paper before
its disposal and have incorporated various measures into our business
operations. For example, we implemented the policy of double-sided
printing and copying, and disseminated information by electronic means
whenever possible to reduce the consumption of paper. We encourage
our employees to avoid the use of disposable and non-recyclable
products, and to use refillable stationeries instead of one-off stationeries.
Recycling bins are also available to collect used products, such as waste
papers and cartridge toners, at the headquarters. We will continue to
leverage the use of technology for communication with our employees
and customers, aiming to go paperless.

Reduction of Waste Generated from the Provision of Our Services

Our employees are encouraged to organize, maintain and clean the
garbage and recycled waste holding areas, recycled waste is sorted
into appropriate receptacles. Appropriate signage is placed on the bins,
stating what type of waste or recyclables should be put in the bin.

Moreover, our Group policy requires employees to bring back all the
bottles provided to them. If cleaning chemicals have been used up,
employees are not allowed to dispose of the empty bottles that keep
the cleaning chemicals without proper consent. Empty bottles must be
collected and refilled with cleaning chemicals for reuse.
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Climate Change

To address the global concern about climate change that affects
not only the environmental systems but also our daily lives, we have
considered the climate-related issues and incorporated them into its risk
management system to enhance our resilience and adaptive capacity to
potential climate change impacts.

Acute physical risks can arise from extreme weather events such as
flooding and storms and chronic physical risks can arise from sustained
high temperatures, while transition risks may result from changes in
environmental-related regulations. Extreme weather events may impact
our operations or our customers’ assets, which in turn cause damage
to our assets or our customers’ properties leaving them unable to
repay their loans. Upon evaluation, our Group provides an array of
services to customers that are not located in high-risk flood areas,
and thus the risk that such extreme weather events impact our assets,
operations or our customers’ assets is relatively low. While sustained
high temperatures may increase the risk of heat stroke of our employees
working outdoors. We have established a safety management system
and provided safety guidelines to employees working under these events.
As for the potential transition risks, our Group continues to monitor the
regulatory environment, such as the recent passage of municipal solid
waste charging, to ensure that our services meet the demands and
expectations of our customers and regulators.

It is expected that potential extreme weather conditions, sustained high
temperatures, and changes in environmental-related regulations would
not result in a material impact on our Group’s operation. Nevertheless,
we continue to monitor the climate-related risks and implement relevant
measures to minimize the potential physical risks and transition risks.
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AEED BRI E B RE TIFERE

The Group has considered the potential climate-related risks and &4
BEEZERIEERNELERRLESE - K

opportunities in respect of the recommendations of the Task Force on

Climate-related Financial Disclosures, in which potential physical risks SRS L &) EE 52 & &iﬂﬁﬂ Al ALY AR
and transition risks from climate change may pose adverse financial £ B ¥ ER TR EFZE - B R (=R
impacts on the Group’s businesses. The potential climate-related risks  Bitufian T :
are summarized below:
Potential Short (current Medium (one to Long (four to
Risk Type Risks Financial Impact Reporting Period) three years) tenyears) Mitigation Strategy
el i Bk BBy E RR(AGERE)  PH(-E2%)  RE(DETE) BERH
Physical Risks ¢ Extreme weather o Reduced revenue / / o Establish adverse weather condition policy
conditions such as from business due to ¢ Maintain or expand the supplier base to
flooding and typhoon business and supply avoid disruption
chain disruptions
ERRR o EERRERONKL o REBREEEDS o HEESRRERANE
REE) EYERERY) o BREBAEEFERIN SR
o Sustanedelevated ~ ©  Increased in business /o Adopt energy and resources conservation
temperature operating costs measures to avoid overconsumption of
natural resources
¢ BERE o BIEREENL o RBWRRERSNER $28EER
BRER
Transition Risks o Changesin ¢ Higher operating costs / /o Adopt energy conservation measures to
environmental-related to adopt new practices recluce emissions
regulations or technologies ¢ Continue to monitor the requlatory
environment o ensure that the Group
complied with the environmental-related
laws and regulations
RERR o REREANED o ENMEENANURS o ROERERIELER
SATERIER o EEEmEEEE)mOrEE e
RBERER
o Shiftin consumer o Reduced demand /o Adnere to the Group's sustainable
preference to products for cleaning development concept, strictly control the
incorporating more services, decreased cleaning process and commit to produce
environmentally- competitiveness and high-quality services and products to meet
friendly concept Create adverse impact the expectations of consumers and the
On revenue market
o REZRHEMRA o BEZREERED o PRASENTRELRED BRER
FARRESNER RENTRRENR BRI INNREBRERE RER
ERTHE NREREERTSES
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SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices

We value our employees and focus on building a safe and pleasant
working environment for them. We offer attractive remuneration packages
as well as provide plenty of internal and external training opportunities for
our employees, in order to attract, motivate and retain the right people.

Before the start of employment, employees are required to enter into an
employment contract, where the duties and responsibilities of his or her
role are clearly stated. Moreover, we have a set of personnel policies
and procedures as well as a staff handbook that sets out our standard
internal procedures relating to recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, compensation, dismissal, diversity
of origins, anti-discrimination and other human resources treatments and
benefits of our employees, etc. The relevant policies for employment and
labour practices are listed as follows.

Compliance

We strictly comply with the requirements of the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance, the Labour Law and the Social Security Law as well as other
relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC which cover
employment protection and benefits. During the Reporting Period, we
complied with all laws and regulations in relation to employment that
have a significant impact on us. No confirmed significant non-compliance
incidents were noted by the Group.

Employment

Employees are valuable assets to the Group and the key driving force
of our sustainable performance. We welcome people with different
backgrounds to join our team to add value to our pool of professional
expertise in the industry and bring in innovative ideas. As at 30 June
2023, the Group employed a total of 1,126 members of staff, with 1,082
employees in Hong Kong and 44 employees in the PRC, 929 full-time
and 197 part-time employees.
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The following table sets forth the breakdowns of our employees by TXRHIN _ZE - =F XA =+ HIZMERIREF

gender and by age group as at 30 June 2023: AR RIEI S YR ERAAE -

Male Female Total
Age Group Fip4a 5 B feog 3 Fob
18-25 18E 2555 17 11 28
26-35 2623575% 19 19 38
36-45 36E455 59 80 139
46-55 462555 77 195 272
56-65 56 £ 655% 108 333 441
Above 65 658% A £ 75 133 208
Total HBEr 355 771 1,126

During the Reporting Period, a total of 791 members of staff were RHEER  EEELTBRLEF7T1EZEEE
dismissed or resigned from their positions in Hong Kong and the PRC.  fR{Esk BT E BT - B B R RSt #us

The statistics for employee turnover rates are as follows: e

Number of

Employee Turnover Rate

EE®E P =S

Total st 791 70%
By Gender R El D
Male Bk 247 70%
Female pegis 544 71%
By Age Group RERAR B D
18-25 182573, 31 111%
26-35 26%355% 31 82%
36-45 3624573% 86 62%
46-55 4625573% 244 90%
56-65 562655 260 59%
Above 65 653 IA 139 67%
By Geographical Region Rt EE 5D
Hong Kong B 773 71%
The PRC Fh 18 41%
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Anti-discrimination and Integrity

The Group strives to create a fair and impartial working environment
where all employees are treated equally and respectfully. Any kind of
discrimination or harassment based on the employee’s gender, age,
marital status, race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace are
strongly prohibited. Employees are entitled to equal opportunity in terms
of treatment and promotion. A set of policies and procedures is in place
detailing the aim, complaint procedure, and appeal procedure on equal
opportunities. During the recruitment process, we only focus on the
capability and attitude of the interviewee, thus people with disabilities are
also welcome to be part of our Group.

We always listen and respond to the requests of our employees. It is the
goal of the Group to create a friendly and peaceful working environment.
We encourage our employees to provide feedback in relation to
any employment-related matters, especially when they encounter
any unpleasant or undesired treatments from colleagues or senior
management. Employees may report issues to his or her department
head and lodge a formal complaint. Any complaints received will be
kept confidential. If any unfair treatment and harassment are found and
confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in written form to the employee
who has done the wrongdoing and may dismiss him or her depending on
the seriousness of the incident.

By adopting the above practices, we comply with, in all material respects,
the corresponding ordinances and its respective codes of practice,
which include the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487), Family Status Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 527), and Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 602)
supported by the Hong Kong Equal Opportunities Commission (“EOC”).

Attract and Retain Talents

Our employees are our most valuable asset and we value their rights
and welfare. Our remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of the competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees. Management
has been constantly reviewing the staff remuneration package and
employees’ promotion opportunities. Adjustments will be made
periodically, to conform with the market standard in order to retain talents
and ensure the offer is competitive as compared to our competitors in
the industry. A standard package includes a basic salary and statutory
pension benefits such as the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) in Hong
Kong, and the social insurance and housing provident fund in the PRC.
We also offer discretionary bonuses based on the individual performance
of the employees and our financial performance.
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Welfare and Benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, we offer various
welfare and benefits to our employees. For instance, employees are
entitled to all public holidays as well as paid leave in accordance with
the Employment Ordinance and their job level. A long service award is
offered as an appreciation for the contribution and dedication of long-
serving employees. In addition, we offer discounted dental care plans to
our employees, which their spouses and children can also enjoy.

We emphasize the unity and harmony at work. Over the years, our
Human Resources Department has made efforts in organizing activities
to strengthen the bonding of employees within the Group. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not organize any gathering activities. It
is mainly due to the concern to reduce the risk of virus transmission and
employee infection. Our Group will continue to explore more opportunities
in the future.

Health and Safety

We aim to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between
work and a healthy lifestyle. Our safety management system which is
formulated based on the requirements of the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) of Hong Kong is accredited to the leading
international standard of ISO 45001.

To ensure all accidents and injuries are properly recorded, and are
handled accordingly by the relevant employees, the Group has a
comprehensive policy for accident reporting procedures. During the
Reporting Period, there were a total of 51 cases of work-related injuries
and a total of 2,584 lost days due to work injury; no work-related
fatality case was recorded for the Reporting Period, in which the Group
recorded 1 work-related fatality case in the past two reporting periods.
Since the provision of our services may expose our employees to a
certain degree of occupational hazards, all work-related health and safety
performance, including work procedures, working at height, occupational
road risk, and machinery safety, are closely monitored by the Operation
and Administrative Department of the Group. We continue to reflect on
our existing safety policies and are committed to continuously adapting
and improving its occupational safety measures as necessary.
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For the year

For the year For the year

ended ended ended

30 June 2023 30 June 2022 30 June 2021

BE-Z-=F BE-Z-—fF BE-ZT-—F

ANAZ+THLEFEE ASA=ZtTBLEEE RNAZTHLEEE

Number of injuries TERE 51 54 47
Lost days BRTIIEEH 2,584 1,922 1,386
Work-related fatality AT T AR - 1 -
Employees are required to receive training on how to use relevant {EEZEZXMA(EMBEKS - TARMEH

machines, tools and materials and must be well equipped before they
provide services to our clients. Supervisors are assigned to take the
responsibility of overseeing the operations, make immediate responses,
and notify the management if the hazards in the workplace are noted.
Furthermore, we conduct periodic risk assessments in order to timely
identify, evacuate and mitigate any new risks from the workplace and
to ultimately provide our employees with a healthy and safe working
environment.

Employees are also required to familiarize themselves with and follow
our “Occupational Health and Safety Plan”, which details the safety
requirements when performing services. For instance, the use of personal
protective equipment such as proper gloves, safety goggles, masks, the
use of appropriate tools for picking up garbage, proper use of chemicals
as per standards, etc., to reduce the risk of accidental injuries.

Safety rules are translated into various languages to cater different needs
of our employees. The Operation and Administrative Department provides
updates on health and safety issues to the staff members on a regular
basis. The Group has incorporated safety management awareness
into every stage of our operations. Our safety culture and policies are
also introduced to our contractors and partners by incorporating safety
requirements into the terms of the service agreements.
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In the midst of the COVID-19 pandemic, we had developed contingency
plans to ensure that all practicable preventive and protective measures
are in place to minimize the risk of spread of the coronavirus, including
but not limited to Providing pandemic prevention supplies such as
protective masks, disinfectant and thermometers, and requesting staff
and workers to maintain personal hygiene and those with respiratory
symptoms to refrain from working and to seek medical treatment
promptly. We pay close attention to the latest developments regarding
the COVID-19 pandemic and regularly reviews such plans to ensure their
adequacy and suitability.

Development and Training

We believe that investing in employees through training will help
promote job satisfaction, work motivation and staff loyalty. Different
types of training are provided to employees to make sure that they
are acknowledged with updated information and possess sufficient
knowledge and skills to provide quality services to our customers. For
instance, training includes but is not limited to driving safety, business
writing, operational training, orientation, as well as information technology
security.

The total number of training hours for the Reporting Period was
approximately 27,515 hours and the average training hours per employee
was approximately 24 hours. The average number of training hours
completed by each male and female employee was approximately 28
hours and 23 hours respectively. The average number of training hours
completed by junior staff, senior staff and manager, and management
were approximately 26 hours, 0.1 hour and 0.2 hour, respectively. The
percentage of total employees trained was 55%, and the percentage of
employees trained by gender and by employee category are as follows:

Percentage of employees
trained by gender

EMRBsNZIEEES T

36%

Male
64% it
M Female

it
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Continuous education enhances the competitiveness of the employees
as well as the Group in the industry. The Group is committed to providing
our employees resources and opportunities, so that they can have clear
career goals to progress within the Group.

Labour Standards

We are committed to complying with the Employment Ordinance and
other relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC in relation
to employees’ protection and benefits. Every employment is subject
to a stringent internal review process that involves a well-established
procedure to verify a candidate’s personal information, in order to avoid
misrepresentation and employment of child labour. For instance, the
staff member responsible for recruitment collects the identity proofs
from the candidates to ensure that the age of the candidates fulfills the
requirements as stipulated by the law.

The employment of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited. If
management discovers there is any employment of forced or child
labour, we will immediately terminate the employment concerned. During
the Reporting Period, all employees are over the age of 18, and have
been properly employed in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable laws and regulations. No confirmed non-compliance incidents
or grievances were noted by the Group.

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group places emphasis on supply chain management, which
is achieved by maintaining long-term relationships with credible and
reputable suppliers that offer quality products and services. Environmental
and social factors are taken into consideration when choosing our
suppliers. Suppliers with certain qualifications, such as certification of
ISO 14001 or ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification or ISO
45001 or other accreditation, etc. will be given preference.

In addition to the quality of the product or service, the suppliers’
environmental value and awareness of occupational health and safety
are considered during supplier selection. We have a guideline on
procurement of detergents, pesticides and other work-related materials,
and set out clear considerable factors when choosing suppliers’
products.

We continuously evaluate the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with
respect to products supplied, service quality, reliability, environmental
performance and occupational health and safety. We also consider
the principle of green procurement and constantly evaluate the use of
materials to avoid overstocking and squandering resources.
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[t is our wish to collaborate with our suppliers in the development
and application of innovation, participation in production process
enhancement for the continuous optimization of supply chain capabilities
as well as fulfilment of our responsibilities in social and environmental
protection.

Currently, we have a total of 32 major suppliers, among them, 31
suppliers are located in Hong Kong and 1 supplier is located in the PRC.

Product and Service Responsibility

At the Group, our primary focus is to provide high quality services to our
customers. We value the importance of confidentiality of our customers
by protecting their personal information. For advertising, we strictly
comply with all relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and in the
PRC to avoid conveying any incorrect messages to the public.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations, and no complaints were received in relation to our services
provided. No non-compliance issues or grievances were noted by the
Group.

Customer Management

For the environmental protection business, the Group places great
emphasis on quality control. We have obtained ISO 9001:2015, ISO
14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018, and are committed to delivering
professional services and achieving customer satisfaction. To understand
clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments and communicate with our
clients before commencing services.

We have a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on the “Quality
Management Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and
objectives. During the performance of our services, our employees
will carry out regular checks on the service quality, including services
delivered by the Group’s own employees and third-party service
providers, and record occasions of substandard performance and any
follow-up actions taken.

Moreover, management members would hold regular meetings with
on-site employees to review and discuss various aspects of operations
to ensure that the services provided meet clients’ expectations. We
continuously collect feedback from clients about service quality,
environmental and workplace safety performance, and application of
materials and tools. To enhance clients’ confidence in the Group, we
promptly investigate the root cause of unsatisfying services, provide
corrective solutions and carry out immediate remedial and preventive
actions in response to the complaints received from our clients.
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For the money lending business, we provide one-on-one service to
our customers and design loan repayment schedule that best suits the
needs of our customers. Service features, terms and conditions, and any
associated risks are clearly communicated to the intending borrowers by
the Group’s employees. We understand that good customer service is
essential in maintaining long-term relationships with our customers.

The mission of our customer service emphasizes the provision of quality
services, effective communication and responsive solutions. The interests
of our customers are placed at top priority.

Business Ethics

In order to build customer trust and loyalty, we have set out rules
to reduce the risk of employees leaking confidential information. For
instance, every employee is required to enter into a confidentiality
agreement that forbids him/her to disclose confidential or proprietary
information to parties outside the Group, either during or after
employment, without the Group’s authorization.

The confidentiality agreement specifies the content and scope of
confidentiality, obligations of the employees, and liability for the breach
of agreement. Disclosing or copying any of the Group’s trade secrets
without the consent of management is strictly prohibited. If there are any
employees discovered of misappropriating customers’ private data, the
Group will dismiss the employees concerned and reserve the right to
legal proceedings.

We endeavor to protect the information system, prevent virus attacks
and the leakage of clients’ information. Training relating to cyber security
and relevant risk management is provided to our employees to enhance
the employees’ awareness of cyber security.

Since our employees have access to the personal data of the customers,
it is important for us to ensure the privacy of customers’ information.
The Group continues to monitor, review and, when necessary, update
its privacy principles and policies to ensure they are complying with
all relevant laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the
Group complied with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to
data protection, including but not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and Intellectual Property (Miscellaneous Amendments)
Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.
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Advertising

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but
not limited to the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, which
constitutes a significant influence on the Group’s business.

The Group strictly complies with the advertising requirements. All kinds
of advertisements, such as leaflets or websites, are carefully drafted and
avoid the use of false descriptions to mislead customers. All final drafts
of the advertisement must be approved by our management before bulk
printing.

Moreover, we have designated employees to monitor notices, news
and information in the media in connection with tenders relating to
environmental hygiene services and airline catering support services work
to ensure that we strictly comply with local laws and regulations regarding
advertising and labelling.

During the Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.

Trademark Management

We have registered trademarks that are important to our business. We
regularly monitor whether our trademarks are being infringed. We are
committed to protecting intellectual property rights which we handle with
great care during our daily operations.

Anti-corruption

We clearly understand that financial crime can have significant
consequences to our customers and us. Moreover, the community
and the economies in which we operate can also be greatly impacted.
Therefore, we are committed to making efforts to address the issues of
corruption, bribery and money laundering.

We maintain and implement our own anti-bribery, anti-corruption and
anti-fraud practices and procedures. We do not support, nor tolerate,
any corrupt practices and making or receiving of bribery payments. We
have established a clear policy to guide our employees in this regard.
In addition, the employment contracts of our employees include a code
of conduct for them to follow. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity and self-discipline, and they should abstain from
engaging in bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering activities or
any activities which might exploit the Group’s or client’s interests.
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Directors of the Company should declare in writing for any business
which he/she has any direct or indirect financial interest in, which
competes with the Group or the Group has business dealings with. The
Group will take disciplinary action against the employees who breach the
rules. The employees may also be subject to termination of employment.
Where criminality is suspected, a report will be made to the relevant
regulators or law enforcement authorities if necessary.

Whistle-blowers can report verbally or in writing to their immediate
supervisor or Audit Committee members for any suspicious activities,
including any request, receipt or acceptance of any forms of benefits
from any persons, companies or organizations that may cause a conflict
of interest with the Group, and misconducts which are related to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. The whistle-blower’s identity
remains anonymous and is protected throughout the investigation; the
whistle-blower should also not be placed into any disadvantaged position
in relation to employment.

In particular to our money lending business, we developed an Anti-
Money Laundering (“AML”) policy and perform due diligence and Know-
Your-Customer procedures on all customers before accepting loan
applications. Documents, including ID/passport, address proof, etc.,
will be obtained before entering into business relationships with our
customers. Our Group strictly follows the AML and Counter-Terrorist
Financing guideline issued by the Hong Kong S.A.R. Licensed Money
Lenders Association Limited to ascertain the background of the
customers, to identify suspicious money-laundering behaviours, and to
report any suspicious transactions. Under the current practice, when
it comes to the attention of the employees that a customer may be
involved in any money laundering activities, the case will be reported to
a member of senior management who will then decide whether it should
be reported to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit. During the Reporting
Period, we provided 4 classroom training to employees involved in the
provision of money lending services, including the directors. The trainings
were held by our compliance officer and each training session lasted for
3 hours.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have had a significant impact on us, including, but not
limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. There was
no corruption or bribery incident reported within the Group.
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Community Investment

We believe that corporate social responsibility is the backbone of
corporate values, and continue to dedicate time and effort to give back
to the local community. For twelve consecutive years, we have been
named a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
in recognition of our contributions to support community building,
environmental conservation, and people development.

During the Reporting Period, our Group donated to and supported the
Fu Hong Society but we did not organize any community and charity
activities, to reduce the risk of virus transmission in the community and
employee infection. Our Group will continue to explore more public
welfare activities in the future after the COVID-19 situation improves and
restrictions are lifted.
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HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

BEBRGRER  HEREGHREESINTERS

Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
=] it =x:0] B
A. Environmental
A TRIR
A1: Emissions
Al - HERR
General Information on: Environmental — Overview,
Disclosure (@ the policies; and Emissions
—g % ER (b) compliance with relevant laws and | &3 — % « P
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
EHEERFORERBHEN - KR
WS BERBEEEEVNELFH
@ BER: &
(o) ETFHBEITABEATZENEBRE
R AR
B -
KPIA1.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions
RSRAE emissions data. PERR
FEIZA1 HERURE LA AR B BB -
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect Emissions — Data on GHG
BRI (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in | Emissions
FEIZA1.2 tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | BERY— BRI =R 25
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per | M&IEUE
facility).
BEE(BE) RREZ(BE2)RER
BREEWE (T ) R (WER) B E (11
PSR B - SRR -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in Generation of Waste
RASRIE K tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | ZE 4 EEEY)
FE1ZA1.3 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FrE4ABEREEYEE (UBIETE) k(1
HR)EE (WA BES B - BIERE
E) -
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in | Generation of Waste
BSRAE N tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | E 4 EEEY)
FEIEA1.4 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FEEEEREEYRS (UANEETE) R (40
BAEE(MASESEN - BI1ERE
FHE) -
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EmE i pud E=x:0] o
KPI'A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and | Emissions, Use of
RASRAE L steps taken to achieve them. Resources — Energy Usage
HEIRA15 HAAAET VA E BERREREL | 3 - BREA -8R
B IRPERER B 55K © et
KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Generation of Waste
BASRAA RN hazardous wastes are handled, and a EEEEY
FE1ZA1.6 description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
HAREEERBEEEVNTE K
P RT LR EE B 1R R RiERE LR
IRPTERER Y 2 5R -
A2: Use of Resources
A2 : BIRER
General Policies on the efficient use of resources, | Use of Resources
Disclosure including energy, water and other raw BIRER
—ARH R materials.
BRERER(BIEEIR - KEEMEY
FHEIBER
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources — Energy
RASRIE K consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas | Usage
FEIZEA2.1 or oil) in total (KWh in *000s) and intensity | &R {# A — LR {E A
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
RIBRE S EE KRR EEER(N
B smeon) @ e (AT ETRETE)
REE(MNEESEN - §EREG
COR
KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity | Use of Resources — Water
RSRAE (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Usage
EIZA2.2 | facility). BIRGER—BK
BREKENZE (WASGESEMN - B8
RiAtHE) o
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Use of Resources —
RRAE target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | Energy Usage
1E1RA2.3 them. BIRGEA — s2IRE A
P RT LV REIRE A e B IR R
BE L BIRFTEREN A P8R
KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue | Use of Resources — Water
BRI in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Usage
EIZA2.4 water efficiency initiatives and results EREA— AKX
achieved.
i i SKEGE R KR LRI B AERIRERE - A
NERET S HFRK s B iR R i BiE L
BIRPTERER A 2288
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks

EE it =x:0] R

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for Not applicable As we provide cleaning services
RSB R finished products (in tonnes) and, if NE and financing services, the
EIEA2.5 applicable, with reference to per unit Group does not produce any

produced.
SR MR BEM &S (LA E)
R(WER)BAEBMIEE -

tangible products that require
packaging.

HRKMHREE 2R KR &
BR# - MRS B A A E A
HERENGVER °

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 1 BIERRAEIR
General Policies on minimizing the issuer’s Environmental
Disclosure significant impact on the environment IRIR
—MRIREE and natural resources.

AR EIT ARG RAABERERKEKX

T EBMBUR °
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Environmental
RASRAE L activities on the environment and natural | ¥3%
FEIZAS.1 resources and the actions taken to

manage them.
R RS RBERRARERNER
FENCRNEE BT ENTTE

A4: Climate Change

Ad T RIREME
General Policies on identification and mitigation of | Climate Change
Disclosure | significant climate-related issues which RIRE L
—ARIRER have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.
BRI REHD R GHBEITAES
FENERRIRIEAEENEBOR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- Climate Change
RASRIA related issues which have impacted, and | S&{&EZ1t,
FEIZAL1 those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
B K R AT H BT AEETZEN
BRRIEEBAEER - RELHTTE -
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EmE it E=x:0] o
B. Social
B. &g
B1: Employment
B : &%
General Information on: Employment and Labour
Disclosure (@ the policies; and Practices
— R IR (b) compliance with relevant laws and | BfE R4 TEHR
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits
and welfare.
BRH R R - BEEREF - TIER
- RE - TERE - STt RER
DA R B A 45738 S AR Y
(@ BE: &
(b) BFHEITABEANTZEMERE
el
BEH -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment | Employment
RASRIE K type (for example, full- or part-time), age | &%
FE1ZB1.1 group and geographical region.
BRI - EREE (N2 BEGER) - F
B AR Rt E Bl D a fE B4R o
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Employment
RASRIE K group and geographical region. EfE
#E1EB1.2 BItR - FhAR MtEEIDHES R
KEEE o
88 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT &% - #HE&KE

Aspect
=]

Description
Eipud

Chapter/Section
=x:0]

Remarks

ik

B2: Health and Safety
B2 : f@EEL S

General Information on: Health and Safety
Disclosure | (a) the policies; and fREREZ S
—MRIEEE (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.
FERELZ2 TIERERREREE#HE
BRI EE
@ BE: K
b) BETFHBEITAREATENREE
eSS
HYERY -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities | Health and Safety
RASRIE N occurred in each of the past three years | fEEEEH%Z &
FE1EB2.1 including the reporting year.
BE=F(RREERFE)BFRICH
COPN:- 95 4=
KPIB2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RBRAE RN ETEEATIERE - fEEET S
E1EB2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Health and Safety
RARIE K safety measures adopted, how they are | f2fEEEZ &
F51ZB2.3 implemented and monitored.

PR BRI R 2180 - DA
KARRANTT REEERIE -

B3: Development and Training
B3 : & S tE7l

General Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training
Disclosure | knowledge and skills for discharging R R
—MRIREE duties at work.
BRERAREET LIEBREM MM
BERIIR ©
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training
RARIE N by gender and employee category BERRIE
FE1ZB3.1 (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
EMRIRESFEN(INSRERE A&
ERE)ZSNZIEEBDL ©
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed Development and Training
RASEAE R per employee by gender and employee PR EIE
f51EB3.2 category.

RIUER MEEERIED - BREETK
Sy TR o
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REXE AR -

Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EmE it E=x:0] o
B4: Labour Standards
B4 : &5 T AR
General Information on: Labour Standards
Disclosure | (a) the policies; and A T AR
—RH R (o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
BRI IEET 854 TH) -
@@ BEK: &
b) BETFHETAGEATENHEEE
R
HYERY -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards
RASRIA N employment practices to avoid child and | % T#E]]
181ZB4.1 forced labour.
g BB B AR R E T K&
SREHIST -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate Labour Standards
RASEAE R such practices when discovered. AT A
151EB4.2 IR B RIS OER B BB

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : (HEHEIR

General Policies on managing environmental and | Supply Chain Management
Disclosure | social risks of the supply chain. HERERE
—MRIKER EIRHEEEIRIR Rt S RREE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management
RASRIE N region. HpEsEE R
151EB5.1 i@ B DB HEEEE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Supply Chain Management
RASRAE to engaging suppliers, number of HpEsEEE
$51ZB5.2 suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.
HA AR AHERNEDN - mMERT
BRAEBHHHEREE - LARBERNT
RERFE o
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain Management
RASRIE K environmental and social risks along HEmEE
F51ZB5.3 the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
A RSB RS ERETAIRE R
g REERER - AT RER
& o
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B HERERRE

Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EE Eipud =x:0] R

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote | Supply Chain Management

RASRIE K environmentally preferable products HrEgEEe

$81ZB5.4 | and services when selecting suppliers,

and how they are implemented and
monitored.

A EREHERREEZRAREREM
NREHIES - ARMEBIRITRERS
% o

B6: Product and Service Responsibility
B6 : Em MR EE

General Information on: Product and Service
Disclosure (@ the policies; and Responsibility
— R R (b) compliance with relevant laws and | E & &R S E
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided
and methods of redress.
FRAMEHERNREHRERREZ S -
BE - RERALEEE A RAEROTES
@ BE: K
b) BETFHBEBITAGEATENHREE
ESF]
HIER} o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Not applicable As we provide cleaning services
RASRIE K shipped subject to recalls for safety and | i and financing services, there
151ZB6.1 health reasons. were no products subject to
EENDEREmAHP AL EER recall
BhHmARKE AL BREMIREE RIRE R &
RS - Bk PINF MR [E U B 2=
o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Product and Service
RASRAE K complaints received and how they are Responsibility — Customer
¥515B6.2 dealt with. Management
EEAREMEBRBORFEEUNRE | ERREREEE—
% - BPERE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Product and Service
RIRAE observing and protecting intellectual Responsibility — Trademark
¥E1£B6.3 property rights. Management
it B g R RS MABEEEAED - | EmERBEE—
R E I
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process | Product and Service
RASRAE and recall procedures. Responsibility
151%2B6.4 S S 18 TE iR K E m BT Em&RIBEE
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EmE i pud =& o
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection | Product and Service
RASRIE K and privacy policies, how they are Responsibility — Business
F51ZB6.5 implemented and monitored. Ethics
B EERHRERALBEE - Uk | ERERREEE—
MHBAITRERTE - [EEI 51
B7: Anti-corruption
B7 - R&)S
General Information on: Anti-corruption
Disclosure | (@) the policies; and RES
— R IR (o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
BEAI-FERE - $R - HEFROERE
(@ BXE: &
b) BETFHBETAGEATENHEEE
ESF]
BEH -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption
BRI regarding corrupt practices brought RES
1E1ZB7.1 against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
#Ei&ﬁ%%é’*ﬁ/\iﬁﬁé%ﬁj‘ia
REEVBESRARM BB MFaAER
KPI B7.2 Descnptlon of preventive measures, how | Anti-corruption
RAREE K they are implemented and monitored. RES
#E1EB7.2 ﬁitﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’@&;ﬁiiﬁiﬁ - AR AERE#
RERFE
KPI B7.3 Descnptlon of anti-corruption training Anti-corruption
RASRIE N provided to directors and staff. RE5
1E1EB7.3 HmES K E TRENRE)SFEI -
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Aspect
=]

Description
Eipud

Chapter/Section
=x:0]

Remarks

ik

B8: Community Investment

B8 : @& &E

General Policies on community engagement Community Investment
Disclosure | to understand the needs of the HEEE
— MR communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BN ESER T REEMETER
EREREES T EETENEL
B -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Community Investment
RSRAE education, environmental concerns, HERE
FE1ZB8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HIERER(HE  BRER 4T
TR R - Uk - BAH) -
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or Community Investment
RASRAE time) to the focus area. HERE
E12B8.2 EHFHREAEAER(NE EERRE) o
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B R E

@ pakertilly
R [ PR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PPS International (Holdings) Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 100 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June
20283 and of its consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

94 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

B RBETRE
BEBZRAERATDRR

(RASHEEMKLNBERRF])

=R

TAZEEN (A TRBI KM BEEGIERE
1002187 B EHIZERER A REHB A A
(ATHBIEEE ) OEATERE  WRE
BB ERIENR-_E-=FXA=TANES
FERRERE  BEZBLEFENGAER
R HAEHEEMREKRER  GAERE
PBENGARERER + URGEABBHRERM
T PREZEHEGEHE -

BMRA - BREMBRRCBRIBEE SR
S([BEEIMAE])MBEMNEEY KR
SRAN([EBMBHRELER D EERAFIBR
B ERER_T_=FNA=THZHMBEK
AN BEEREEZBLFEZHEMB
RANGERERE - YO REFBQFIED
ZINBERTEZ RS -

RREE

BACREFEEAMASRONETEETE
([ FBFER ) TR - HPIREP
(BB B R AP RERNEE ] —fE—
SRR MEZFRETNEE - ROIRES
AETMAENEX SRR EETAI(HE
BlsrR DB BE5E - MRMATREST
AETEMEREE - RIFIAEE - RAMES
MENREERE LEEARMNETERL
RLER



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter

The Group recognised loans and interest
receivables recorded initially at fair value
and subsequently at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
As at 30 June 2023, the carrying amount of
the loans receivable and interest receivables
were HK$37,031,000 and HK$1,330,000
respectively.

The measurement of expected credit losses
(“ECL”) requires the application of significant
judgements which include the identification
of exposures with a significant deterioration
in credit quality, and assumptions used in the
ECL model such as the probabilities of default,
loss given default, expected future cash flows
and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

Due to the significance of the aggregated
amount of loans and interest receivables
(representing approximately 13% of total
assets) and inherent uncertainty in such
estimates, we considered this as a key audit
matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables
Refer to notes 2.9(), 2.11, 15 and 27(a) of the consolidated financial statements

Our audit procedures in this area included:

obtaining and reviewing a sample of loan
agreements (including supplemental
agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the
principal amounts, interest rates, maturity
dates and other information to the
Group’s accounting records;

testing of controls designed and
applied in the process of approving and
granting loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and of any loan
extensions;

assessing the effectiveness of key controls
over the application of the impairment
methodology and the governance for the
ECL models, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL;

assessing the reasonableness of the
Group’s ECL models, inputs, assumptions
and the Group’s criteria for assessing if
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, default or credit-impaired, and
so allowances for financial assets should
be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and
the qualitative assessment;

recalculation of loan interest income
recognised on a sample basis;

obtaining direct confirmations of loan
balances from the borrowers on a sample
basis; and

reviewing subsequent settlement records
and corroborating enquiries with the
management about the reasons for
not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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. INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 September 2023
Tong Wai Hang

Practising certificate number PO6231
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mERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BHE T —=F A=THILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE7IIR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022
—EC-=HF —EoF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BfaE FET FAET
Revenue g 3
- Service income from environmental and  — &35 M52 2 RIS A
cleaning 391,005 360,397
— Interest income from money lending — EER 2 A BIRA 4,400 9,939
395,405 370,336
Cost of services BRAG R AR (365,339) (335,978)
Gross profit ER 30,066 34,358
Other income, other gains and other EAUA - Efthliias R E A &R
losses and impairments WA KRB 4 (8,418) 2,653
Selling and marketing expenses SHE REHEAX (2,528) (2,514)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (22,261) (21,679)
Finance costs BhE P AR 5(a) (656) (1,017)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT(B518), R 5 (3,797) 11,801
Income tax expense e 6 (1,502) (888)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) &5F (5,299) 10,913
Attributable to: BT ALY :
— owners of the Company EAVNEIL 2SN (4,997) 10,677
- non-controlling interests — FEVERR = (302) 236
(5,299) 10,913
HK cents HK cents
4l il
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(ER) BR 9
— Basic and diluted —HEARREE (0.93) 1.98

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBmkHMEEKER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE T —=F A=THILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E5117R )

2023
—EZ=F
HK$’000
FExT

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss, net of
nil tax
[tem that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
— Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements of foreign

Fr(EE), B

HitZ2HEEE - HIREHE

—BME BN R RR 2B
Pt

(5,299)

(5,406)

(10,705)

operations
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR2ME(FR) WFEE
for the year
Attributable to: AR AT HEE :
— owners of the Company B VNGIE =N
— non-controlling interests — IR S

(10,403)
(302)

(10,705)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2022
—ECF
HK$’000
TFET

10,913

(315)

10,598

10,362

236

10,598
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. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

As at 30 June 2028 R=E==F"A=1+H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE7IIR)

2023 2022
—EC-=F —EoF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
st FET BT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE NS 10 64,880
Right-of-use assets FREEE 11 2,008
Goodwill kS 12 -
Restricted bank deposits SR HIRITIF K 17 278
67,166
Current assets REEE
Inventories 78 464 370
Trade receivables B S EINGIA 13 86,739 82,864
Deposits, prepayments and other B4 TEFE R EMmER
receivables oIE 14 7,500 7,001
Loans and interest receivables RN E RN FE 15 38,361 59,561
Financial assets at fair value through WA EFABZZ &/
profit or loss BE 16 368 34
Restricted bank deposits SR BIERITIERR 17 278 292
Cash and cash equivalents ReFReEEY 17 90,313 74,480
224,023 224,602
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B S IR 18 23,982 19,364
Accruals, deposits received and other JEETER - DR e MEM
payables FE IR 19 34,333 34,617
Bank loans IRITER 20 20,353 21,369
Lease liabilities HEaE 21 1,327 1,615
Current tax payable JE A<t BN EATR 18 23(a) PAVE 442
7 (1] 77,407
Net current assets REBEETFE 141,855 147,195
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 204,062 214,361
Non-current liabilities ERBARG
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 819 449
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEBE 23(b) 610 574
1,429 1,023
NET ASSETS EERE 202,633 213,338
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

As at 30 June 2028 R—ZE-=F,XA=+H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E5117R )

2023
—EZ=F
Notes HK$°000
BfaE FET

Capital and reserves EXR#HE 26
Share capital N 5,400
Reserves 1 193,898

Total equity attributable to owners of AL THEE ABELEREE

the Company 199,298
Non-controlling interests IR 3,335
TOTAL EQUITY ESEE 202,633

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

September 2023.

Yu Shaoheng
Director

Lai Tin Ming
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2022
—ECF
HK$’000
FET

5,400
204,301

209,701
3,637

213,338
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. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= AN < 4
mEEREER
For the year ended 30 June 2023 HEZE—T - =FA=1+HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE7IIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRARBAER
The PRC Non-
Share Share Other  Contiouon ~ Exchenge  statutory  Accumulated contraling
captal  premium esene Supls resene resene losses Totd  interests Total
REEE FER

e ROEE EfEs  HARS  EXGH e ZHER a5t s @t
HKS000  HK§000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Thn T TER  TER TR TR TR TR TR TEx
hote26  (ote26  (ote2s ot [note 26
(o)) (o) (o) Wil bl
(st (htsE (i3t (Wt (hist
200 2600 260 2600 260

At1 July 2021 RZEZ-E+5-A 5400 198524 1,000 21,400 1,042 224 (28261) 199339 3401 202,740
Changes in equity for 2022: R-B-EEREE.
Proft for the year ERgT - - - - - - 0eTT 10677 26 10913
Bxchange diferences on ranstion ~~ BEENEREBRR

of financial statements of oreign EXEE NBTHA

operations, net of ni tax - - - - (315) - - (315) - (319)
Total comprehensive income ERREYHAE

for the year - - - - (319) - 10,677 10,362 236 10,598

Appropriation to the PRC statutory AREE R
feserve - - - - - 39 (329 - - -

At 30 June 2022 RZEZZERA=TH 5400 198524 1000 21400 el 53 {7908 209,701 3637 213,338
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE T —=F A=THILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E5117R )

Attributable to owners of the Company

At1 July 2022 R-E-ZEtR-A
Changes in equity for 2023: R-E-ZEEREE:
Loss for the year EngiE

Bxchange diferences on ranston ~~ BEENERERRR 2

of financial statements of foreign
Operations, net of nl tax

EXER HREHA

Total comprehensive loss ERZEBELE
forthe year
Appropriation to the PRC statutory PRERE RS

feserve

At 30 June 2023

R-RZZEARZTH

KDFERARRE

The PRC Non-
Share Share Other Confribution ~ Exchange  statutory Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve suplus  reserve  reserve losses Total interests
TEEE F2R
RA  RHEE AfEE  HARR  EXGG i EiFB &3t s
HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000
Térn TR TAn  TEr T FEn  TRn  TErT  TER

(note26  (note26  (note26  (note26  (note 26

) 17 1) A )

(Mt i (ht i (h

B)i))  26b)i)) 26 26()iv)  26(b)(v)

198,524

198,524

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023 BHE T —=F A=THILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE7IIR)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Notes
k=

Operating activities RE T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrEIAT(E518) m F
Adjustments for: AL RIE
— Interest income from money lending —REEE 2T EWA 3
— Bank interest income —RITFIEHA 4
— Dividend income from listed equity — ETRAES 2 R BUA

securities 4
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and —HEWE - BEKEBWE

equipment 4
— Impairment loss on goodwiil —EREBE 4
— Impairment loss on loans and interest —EWE R LT ERERSE

receivables, net FEE 4
— Net realised gain on financial assets at fair —IZA A AEBE Y 2REE

value through profit or loss 2 BB FRE 4
— Net unrealised (gain)/loss on financial — AV ERABRZCMEE

assets at fair value through profit or 2 AREIE(WES), B BT E

loss 4
— Revaluation loss/(gain) on property, plant  —#)% - RE REEBGLEE

and equipment (M) 4
— Finance costs —BENAE 5(a)
— Depreciation of property, plant and — W% BEMREITE

equipment 5(c)
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —(EREEENE 5(c)
— Write-off of property, plant and equipment  —#12 - BiE K& aR s 5(c)
— Net foreign exchange gain — HNEY ) FEE
Operating profit before changes in EEELRHH 2 LR

working capital

Increase in inventories FEEm

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Decrease in loans and interest receivables

Increase in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Decrease in amount due to a director

Increase in trade payables

Decrease in accruals, deposits received
and other payables

B FEWGRIEIE N

%e ~ TENFUE R H A EWEIE
30

FEME R A 2R

BAFESFABRZEREE
30

Eff—HEEZFRERD

B 5 I FIEE N

JEETER - Bligs KA EN
FERAD

Net cash generated from operations
Interest received from money lending
Dividend received

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid), net
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

EEMELRSFE
BEURREEEZH 8
BB S
REL(BR)BEEFNGHFE
BB RAEHR

Net cash generated from operating
activities

REFDRELRSFHE
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2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET

(3,797)

11,801

(4,400) (9,989)
(87) (127)

(16) -

(126) (1)

(5,090)
1,017

3,414
1,888

(1,259)
6,169
(48)

(12,290)

(2,872)
19,083

(13)
(4,275)
4,438
(1,225)

8,967
9,939

(1,234)
(265)

17,407



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii

For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE T —=F A=THILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA E5117R )

2023 2022
—EC=HE B F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k= FExT FET
Investing activities REEH
Interest received BURFILE 87 127
Decrease in restricted bank deposits SR HIRITEZOR D 292 1,140
Payment for purchase of property, plant and BB - MEMRES N
equipment (1,516) (3,034)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEREEMERIE
plant and equipment 540 5
Net cash used in investing activities REZE AR FE (597) (1,762)
Financing activities REEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEREMERTS 17(b) (1,919) (1,859)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEHESHF B85S 17(b) (t:3))] (143)
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER 17(b) (1,016) (1,028)
Repayment of bond BEESR 17(b) - (10,000)
Interest paid EASHLE 17(0) (575) 812
Net cash used in financing activities RETEMARSEE (3,591) (13,842)
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESEEYEMNFEE
equivalents 18,039 1,803
Cash and cash equivalents at REANBEERESEEY
beginning of the year 74,480 72,494
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MNEEZRSEHNTE (2,206) 183
Cash and cash equivalents at end of RERNESRRSZEY
the year 74,480

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  F&HT i s REAK L 457 A BI I SRR A — 285

financial statements. ‘
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

COMPANY INFORMATION

PPS International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated and domiciled
in the Cayman lIslands and its shares are listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 17 June 2013.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Office A, 12/F., Tower A,
Capital Tower, No. 38 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 30.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$’000”) unless otherwise stated.
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current accounting period
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1

2.2

Statement of compliance (continued)

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL”) and the interests in leasehold land and
buildings are stated at their fair values (see notes 2.6 and 2.7
respectively).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 32.

2 FEEFTERGE)

2.1

2.2
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Changes in accounting policies

2.4

110

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRSs

that are first effective in the current accounting period of the

Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Reference to the conceptual
framework”

“Property, plant and equipment —
Proceeds before intended use”

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37 “Onerous contracts — cost of

fulfilling a contract”

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and
HKAS 41

“Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle”

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 33).

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

2.4 BB RIFERAER ()

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.9(ii)).
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

112

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.9(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment
and are initially stated at fair value while transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. The explanation of how the
Group determines the fair value of financial assets is set out in
note 27(f).

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at FVPL are
subsequently recognised in profit or loss if the investments do
not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income (recycling).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 Y% - BERRZE

Interests in leasehold land and buildings, where the Group
is the registered owner of the property interest, held for own
use are stated at their revalued amount, being its fair value at
the date of the revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure
that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2.9(ii)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately in
equity in the property revaluation reserve. The only exceptions
are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held
in the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately
prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to
profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged
to profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on
the date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation reserve to
accumulated losses and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

114

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings Over the term of lease

Furniture and fixtures 3to 7 years
Equipment and machinery 310 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Leasehold improvements Over the term of lease
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has separated non-lease
components and non-lease components are accounted for by
applying other applicable standards.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

2 FEEFTEHRGE)

2.7

2.8

M3 - BB R &RE(E)
FETHRIRIA TMARH A BEHAE R
EMIHYZE - BB MR ERE 2R
SAERGFIREE)FE

i RIEF R FHHA
RMREE 3ETE
BT 3BT
B 45
BISRAE 3%
HEWERE EHER

¥ - BE MR EHE RS0
BRI A8 - AIRZIAE #K
R ERF RS BREEETRBD Z
RDE - BRHOEBIE - EEW
ARFHRERERE(A) DL FR
A e

HEEE

REBESGNAENNREMRTEZA
HREOBHELBEEHE - HAs
BERREmS TE - RERRZEFE
HRIEE RGN - RIFZA KB
E%BEHE - EEFARERCH
MEEZRENLBZASEEEBA
WO KBNS - BIRTER
o

HWeHesRERs MIFHERS -
AEEHIFRER D TARD - BIF
RERR HRA H BRI AR -

REEMB B - AEEERERE
BELREERRGE HAHR/12@EA
IUTHEHHEREEBEEERE
BRON - EAREEBEEBEEELHE
% AEERSEHEERIURER
ERHEEEARL - BZEWRERE
HERBNAENKRERRZ RS
(L EERER B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Leased assets (continued)

28 HEEXEE(E)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are
any rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such cases,
the Group has taken advantage of the practical expedient
not to assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in consideration
as negative variable lease payments in profit or loss in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the rent
concessions occurred.
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXESHHEE)
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Leased assets (continued)

28 HEEXEE(E)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2.9(ii)). Depreciation is calculated
to write off the cost of right-of-use assets using the straight line
method over the lease term or, where it was likely the Group
would obtain ownership of the assets, the life of the assets as
set out in note 2.7.
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2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets 29 EEBEREERE
(i) Credit losses from financial assets () =HEEZEEER
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected REEFIREER AT EZR
credit losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at EEE(BEE 5 & H A EIGK
amortised cost (including trade and other receivables, B EREFRERE - ZRE
loans and interest receivables, restricted bank deposits RITEZRARRENIAESEE
and cash and cash equivalents). Y HEREHEEHE([TEHE
BEE]) 2 EEEE -
Financial assets measured at FVPL are not subject to the IR AFEFABRITEZS
ECL assessment. BEEHAERAEREBEN
fi o

Measurement of ECLs FTETERIZBE A

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. FEHEEBEREEBENMR
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all KMESF - EEBEBUMA
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between FEHR e =3 (ARIEA Qe
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the rEBEMNBREEREHAEETE
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to ST AR SR ER ERR) KR
receive), discounted at the original effective interest rate, Eit= - MERREEEXR - A
where the effect of discounting is material. RIRER N EELER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk. In measuring ECLs, the
Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs which
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of these financial assets. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial asset since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial asset assessed at the end of the reporting period
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers that
a default event occurs when the debtor or borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held). The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

118

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial asset’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial assets are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting period
to reflect changes in the financial asset’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2.20(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

120

0]

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;
—  right-of-use assets;
- goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). A portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest
group of cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

2.10 Inventories

122

Inventories, which represent consumable goods, are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
OCCurs.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

2 FEEFTEHRGE)

29 FEERREEREH)

(i) Rt mEEERE (&)
—  BIEEEREE]

MEEEERINME -
fis A VE R E AJ R [ 2 B
HELRERmNEL - 8
SRERERRE - BEW
BEBBR TSR -

T Bl R (BB TR E R 0
B EFE Y ARRERBE
BIER REE T EER
{8 © P13 Bl H) R B 5 18
ERER B DO FEEFT AR

T ©

210 78

FRIONRR - RN A ERT SR
BERE 2 BIELIE -

RANMEA I FERA L E - LB
EAARBERAR - LR ARG FE
B EIR A MEE PRIR AR EY B A

AI IR FETY BB ERBEET e et
EERM A TERRA S 3H & P HY
fREHAAS o

FEHER  ZFFEMNREENE
RE AW R R ER A

7 EHMUR E ] 23R HERRIE &P E
FEEE —SEMR S REE B
MR R - ERFEMRIEE L
TR EFHELHRERREIE
RRAXNTFESHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Loans and interest receivables

211 EWERKRAE

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets or, if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted to
borrowers in the ordinary course of business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see
note 2.9())).

2.12 Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 2.9())).

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.9(j).

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at invoice amounts.
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.15 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
note 2.22).

2.16 Employee benefits

0]

124

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
in Hong Kong and defined contribution government
pension schemes in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund, as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the retirement
benefit scheme organised by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute, based on a certain
percentage of payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions
to this retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories at the end
of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Long service payments payable on cessation of
employment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the long service
payment payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method, discounted to its present
value and reduced by entitlements accrued under
the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent
that the benefits have already been vested.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company.

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the Trinomial
Option Pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.

The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to accumulated
losses).
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Income tax

126

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Income tax (continued)
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The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

2.18 Financial guarantees issued

128

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially stated at fair value
(being the transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise
be reliably estimated) as deferred income. Thereafter, the
amount of the guarantee is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEExHBE(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Financial guarantees issued (continued)

218 BB EMBHRRE)

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when
ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in deferred income in respect
of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in
note 2.9(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

2.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

AEEERFEEBARONRR
I &M EROEEEBREER
BRERETRAIIRN SR
(BN¥ATER SRR Rt #5H ) By fgad
B

RETEHMEEER ASEEEE
BEBBABBEBERURNELR
BB YEFFE12@ANEHRE
B - EEREEESABBRLER
AR EE A R A RS IR0 B0 TR
SN FEULERT - BIGFHEXATER
EEBE - Mi7E2.90)pritt e iR E 4
EELEERBRARE ARG
RAEBERRL -

R AR EEENRIBEER AN
ERIEEEBARORBELR - &
EREEREIRERRBEREA
EENEEBERMELANR - BA
SEERRERFAAGEEEBA
X (] Bt A 1) W AR B (E ] SRR
it BRASBHEREERRENER
BRI - WHRERENRER
BRAFHFAE -

BERIAREE

FBEX —BHUBASE L IARE
HEERMT - MBEXFAELAES
BUS BNz ) B RE1EH AT S AT -
AEREE - HEBRNKHEERE
KR RREHBERERSIRE R
B

i AR A RER B DA E Mz - 3fim
BRASETRERSEAAE - MARE
ERRBELSIABE - BRIFLER
s 2 TR R - BRAlREZ B
E(EEFHEEAN R - BXZERKE
2z HIREDHEE) MEEARAR
18 - BRIFEEF IR 2 Al gE 1 1%
i o

HBRZERAMRARE i 2023 129

4
V €



. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue and other income

130

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services and money lending in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when control
over a service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Provision of environmental and cleaning services

Service income received or receivable from customers
when the environment and cleaning service contracts,
which relate to routine environmental and cleaning
services, are entered into, is recognised over time as
the customers simultaneously receives and consumes
benefits as the Group performs and recognised in
proportion to the stage of completion of the service
contract as the work is performed.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2.9(i)).

(iii) Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.20 Revenue and other income (continued)

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as other income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

2.21 Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets and liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IXESHHEE)

(CONTINUED)

2.21 Translation of foreign currencies (continued) 221 SN E (1)
On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of HEINBHIZEBE - BEAIIEEBHR
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is FFHIBMERRG N L S I8 E R
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss BEENHEERR

on disposal is recognised.

2.22 Borrowing costs 2.22 AR A
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are BN AR LR ERL -
incurred.
2.23 Related parties 2.23 @R
() A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is () MHBUATAL:  BIZZATHZ
related to the Group if that person: AL 2R B B R
(1) has control or joint control of the Group; (1) RE#1ZE il ok £ R 122 il AN &2
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or (2) BT ANE B INE AR
2.5
(3) is a member of the key management personnel of @) AAKEIAKEHAT
the Group or the Group’s parent. MEZEREKE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Related parties (continued)

2 FEEFTERGE)

2.23 B (1)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (i) HEFE TIEMIESE  BNEEE
conditions applies: iz SEPS )

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the same (1) ZEBEREASEBR—
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary E 2 K8 R A Eﬂ’zl
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others). B EGEIAEEY

NEVE I FEAE R ) o

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (@ —HEBARE—HEBE
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a ERRIHEELE(HS—
member of a group of which the other entity is a BERRKE AR ZEEE
member). THRERAR ZHBEQNE N

BB -

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third Q) MHEEEHRRA—E=7H
party. Ha & hE o

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the 4 —HERBAFE=FEEHN
other entity is an associate of the third entity. GELE ME—EEAE

ZE=HEBOEE AT o

(5)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (6) EREAAEENEALRE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity @B BREEENS
related to the Group. "L BRI E o

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a 6) EREX()FTHERIA LIEH
person identified in (i). SRS HFEIEH o

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant 7 RO A TS EE
influence over the entity or is a member of the key BEREENXBZE %i
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent (KZBEBHEAR])E
of the entity). EEEKE -

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a B ERIHRBKEQAZE

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

Eﬁ/\iZLﬁETg X E

B2 E KB ARIRANE
B AEEGARRME
ZERABR

><|- i

RopBERATZEZRALH
HANLTREZFERE °

members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

134

Revenue represents the service income from the provision
of environmental and cleaning services and interest income
earned from the money lending business as follows:

2 FEEFTEHRGE)

2.24 D EIRE

REDBRFEMBRERAREES D
MAEBZE2R  DRERAEETE
BARITIE R E E MRt 2 BRI
SERAEB B DEER - LT
HEPBHERKRR

ERERNZBED BTG R ERE

Brmast - BRIFAED EEAAU

BRI - WA AFELLZ iR

B BEPRISER - RHRSS

% UREBERIRME - @RIFFEX

ZREDEMET A LR 2 SRR
Bt

3 WREksHBRE

(a)

Wz

Wants e R E KR RIS TS RO AR
BUA R B REZEEREAF BHA
e

Revenue within the scope of BERAMBHREENEISHKFF
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from SR [ EERZ WS
Contracts with Customers”

Service income from environmental and &35 A ZRIEWA
cleaning

Revenue from other sources H Rz Wz

MRENBHA

Interest income from money lending

2023 2022
—EC-=E B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FET
391,005 360,397
4,400 9,939
395,405 370,336

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121(a) of HKFRS 15 to its revenue from provision of
environmental and cleaning services for not disclosing the
remaining performance obligations under the Group’s existing
contracts as these contracts had an original expected duration
of one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEoHMHE (E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (b) DS
The Group determines its operating segments based on REERBES(BE2EEREKE)
the reports reviewed by directors, being the chief operating RESIEBE AR (BRIEERD @E&
decision maker, which are used to make strategic decisions DESRBAFE) v BEHREETE
including resources allocation and assessment of segment BOES o
performance.
The segments are managed separately as each business offers AR ESIRETNRER MRS - BT
different products and services and requires different business EEBREBER - o BIHER
strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief EIE o %—t SEAEERMARED S
operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at B E2EARE WS ATEAE
the reportable segments of the Group. The following summary LBNHES c NEBESAIMmEDED
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable ZEBB AT
segments:
Environmental and Provision of environmental and IRERER REE R EEH
cleaning cleaning services in Hong Kong IR B RIR
and the PRC
Money lending Provision of money lending HE REBRFEUE
business in Hong Kong and BB
the PRC
Investments Investments in financial assets "B KRESREE
The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance BICERREERNAIIME D E A
of the operating segments based on a measure of reportable E’\Jﬁiﬁﬂ#‘“‘éﬁﬁﬁm%fi ZETE
segment results. This measurement basis excludes certain EREDEEE TEMBA - Efbilas
other income, other gains and other losses and impairments, REMEERRE - RRITEAX
central administrative expenses (including directors’ (BREEEMR) REERAR -

emoluments) and finance costs.
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. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA#7TF1I7R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 W&EkoyHHE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) HEHE(K)
Segment assets mainly exclude corporate assets, property, NEEEFETRIESERERNAR
plant and equipment and cash and cash equivalents that are BE  WME - BEAREAERBREER
managed on a central basis. Goodwill is allocated to reportable REEEY BAESETIHRES
segments. & o
Segment liabilities mainly exclude corporate liabilities, bank DEBEFENRRELAREE - R1T
loans and bond. ERRES -
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) DERE ZEREE
2023
ZECCE
Environmental Money
and cleaning  Investments lending  Unallocated Total
REREZ RE H& i) Eh

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn T T

Reportable segment revenue from EREEERINRANIEE

external customers recognised by AREI PR

over time 391,005 4,400 395,405
Reportable segment profit/{loss) THEBER/ (BE) 9,818 (6,150) 3,786
Unallocated corporate expense FAMCERR
Other income, other gains and otherlosses  E i\~ E i REAEEDL

and impaiments Rk (2,555)
Central administrative costs RATHEA (4:453)
Finance costs AR (579)
Loss before taxation BHAES (3,797)
Other segment information A A HER
Impairment loss on loans and interest EUWERRA S REEE

receivables
Net unrealised gain on financial assets at FVPL A F(ER AERZ £REEZ REE

Y%

Revaluation loss on property, plant and 0% BERREERER

equipment
Depreciation of iER
- property, plant and equipment -% BEREE
- right-of-use assets -RREEE
Interest on lease liabilties HEAERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEoHMHE (E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEEwE(E)

() DEHRE BERAREE)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

2022
—EoCF
Environmental Money
andcleaning  Investments lending  Unallocated Totdl
REREZ K& it AR a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn Thr
Reportable segment revenue from ERSEEEINRENDEFZ
external customers recognised by IREI PR
over time 340,397 - 9959 - 3%
Reportable segment profit IRESPER 8,746 18 3124 - 11,888
Unallocated corporate expense RABLERT
Other income, other gains and otherlosses — E il ~ EftliE kKBRS
and impairments RiAE 5,087
Central administrative costs RRAHEA (4,450)
Finance costs BENK (674)
Profit before taxation BB 11,801
Other segment information A A HER
Impairment loss on goodwl EEREFE 298 - - - 293
Impairment loss on loans and interest BYEZ RS HESE
receivables - - 1,549 - 1,549
Net realised gain on financial assets at VPL iR A T{Est \BR 7 BEEZ D EE
hsE - Y - - %
Net unrealised loss on financial assets at FVPL A TES A BR 7 4B AR AR
EBTE - 9 - - 9
Revaluation gain on property, plant and W% BERREERNE
equipment - - - (5,090) (6,090)
Depreciation of: hE:
~ property, plant and equipment 0% BEREE 1479 - 7 1928 3414
- right-of-use assets -FREEE 1217 - 611 - 1888
Interest on lease liabilfies RERGHS 103 - 40 - 143
EHERBERAR Gk 2023 137




. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA#7TF1I7R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 W&EkoyHHE(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) HEHE(K)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () PEF¥E ZLERERE(E)
2023 2022
ZECzE —E--%
Environmental Money Environmental Money
and cleaning  Investments lending Total  and cleaning Investments lending Total
REREE k& & g BEREZ #3 (e @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn T Tén Tikn T T Tén
Assets BB
Segment assets PHEE 146815 1213 78,760 226,788
Unallocated comorate assets ~AEAEEE 64,980
291,768
Liabilities &f
Segment liabilties NBEE (61,238) (55,672) (19) (699) (56,368)
Unallocated corporate AOELESEE
liabilities (22,042)
(78,430)
Other segment information E {5 &4
Adaltions to segmentnon- 2 H3ETRE
current assets BE 3023 - 1,236 4259
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHE2IHE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEEwE(E)
(i) Geographical information and major customers (i) HEEHRFEEF
The following table sets out information about the TREF A ()R E 2R B B
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from B ZWE RNV ER 2 % -
external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant BB MR ENEREEE1E
and equipment and right-of-use assets (“specified non- EFRBEE])MEHMECE
current assets”). The geographical location of customers Ko BRI R IR R AR
is based on the location at which the services were T Bl o FEIEFENED
provided. The geographical location of the specified non- BEMEMRIEEEERME
current assets is based on the physical location of the HEEE S o
assets.
Revenue from Specified non-current
external customers assets
REIIMDEF 2z W= EBEFRBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-=HF —E - F —EC-=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FExT FET
Hong Kong &5 375,907 344,745 65,684
The PRC s 19,498 25,591 1,204
395,405 370,336 66,888
During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, no HE-_TE-_=FK_FT -
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the ANA=ZTHIEFE  BEER
Group’s revenue. RGMAEBE N HEE10% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA#7TF1I7R)

4 OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND OTHER 4 HilgA - Hittlhsm R EtEH

LOSSES AND IMPAIRMENTS LU RRE
2023 2022
—E-=F “ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FA&T
Other income Hibg A
Bank interest income RITHFEMA 127
Dividend income from listed equity securities R ANE & 2 B B A -
Government grants AU 48 B 1,648
Sundry income I 247
2,022
Other gains Hith s
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEREEKE
equipment 1
Revaluation gain on property, plant and YE - BB MEEBERRE
equipment 5,090
5,091
Other losses and impairments HivEERRE
Impairment loss on goodwill EERERE (2,932)
Impairment loss on loans and interest FEWE S F BRI ERE R F 5
receivables, net (7,038) (1,549)
Net realised gain on financial assets at FVPL 1R AF(EzT AIBHZ S REEY
EEIR TR 30
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial BEAFEFABGZERHEEZ
assets at FVPL KBRS (k518 )35 104 Q)
Revaluation loss on property, plant and Y BEKEEEGHER
equipment (2,566) -
(9,500) (4,460)
(8,418) 2,653
During the year, the Group successfully applied for funding support FRN - AKEXNBRBEBRERITTIE K
of HK$824,000 (2022: HK$1,648,000) from the Employment TR IR E SR ETENE S IF
Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund set up by the 824,000/ 7L (=T = 4 : 1,648,000/8
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The TL) c ZEBSWABEATERENE
purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to enterprises T UBREBA RS ENES - RIE
to retain their employees who would otherwise be made redundant. HEMER  AEERMA M EEEN
Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make BEIBESARINRAEEARNEET
redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding & o

on paying wages to the approved list of the employees.

140 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

5 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBLAT (B518), A

BEBAT(RSIE), S FIEME (5 A) T3
& -

(@) Finance costs: (@) BB :
2023 2022
—E-=F —EC
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER Fi&T
Effective interest on bond (note 22) EH 2 BB B (FzE22) 354
Interest on bank loans IRITERZFIE 520
Interest on lease liabilities HEBREZFE 143
1,017
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments (b) EIXA(BIEESH N
(note 7)): (M¥EE7)) -
2023 2022
—E-=F TET 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMET 199,877 196,352
Contributions to defined contribution FE R FURIRET B R
retirement plan 7,150 7,166
(Reversal of provision)/provision for REIBRTS & (BER ), BB
long service payments (317) 544
206,710 204,062
(c) Other items: (c)
2022
TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B A M 788
Cost of inventories sold BEFENRR 7,767
Depreciation of property, plant and Vs - BEMERETE
equipment 3,414
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 1,888
Expense relating to short-term leases REIHERBERX 798
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) SNEEIR (W) F 58 @)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 13 ~ Bz M 28 A 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 &HZ&8BEXRTWFAES
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (@) REBHERPHHRIEARE
loss represents:

2023 2022
—E-=HF T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FiBT
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax  EIH#%{E — &R B8
Provision for the year FREE 1,207
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEBTFEREBEEE (595)
612
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income  BIfi#i 8 — R Z AriEH
Tax
Provision for the year FREE 208
Under-provision in respect of prior years B RiBAEFERNEETL 69
277
Deferred tax credit (note 23(b)) IR IEIK 2 (MiEE23(b))
Origination and reversal of temporary i 2= R R AR R M g O]
differences (1)
Income tax expense SR~ 888
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFR
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended HE-_Z-_=FA=tHIFER
30 June 2023 is calculated at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the RSB IRF NG EREDR
estimated assessable profits for the year, except for one FEI16.5%( —F = —4F : 16.5%) 5T
subsidiary which is a qualifying corporation under the two- & R B AR ZWBA
tiered Profits Tax rate regime. AAFGHMAMEFEE THEE
AR o
For this subsidiary, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable Z M B A 7 89 & 2,000,000 7% Tt FE
profits are taxed at 8.25% (2022: 8.25%) and the remaining R FIR8.25% (— B — — £ -
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2022: 16.5%). 8.25% ) MTL R BT - Mer T M JE

R MIE165% (ZE = =
16.5% ) i REHL o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 SZEEZXPTHAEH(E)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

(a) FEBHERTHBIEE © (F)

loss represents: (continued)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are subject to the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax of 25% (2022: 25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) derived since 1 January
2008 is subject to withholding income tax at rates of 5% or
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors
or companies incorporated in Hong Kong or for other foreign
investors, respectively.

At 30 June 2023 and 2022, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in respect of tax that would be payable on
the unremitted profits of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1
January 2008 as the Company is in a position to control the
dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries and no distribution
of such profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in respective tax jurisdictions.

L FEEH

AN EEMR T 2B AR FNE
R BB RSB E5%(Z T ==
& 25%) @R -

RETEBE - AKEHENEAR
([FEMEARNE-FENF—A
—HELRENERD KB BEN T
SNRIREE SN BB EMAILN AT
HEMBINEEER D RIIRHEE%
H10% RIS -

RZBZ=FR=F__F A=+
B &g ST \F—A—HE
A B AR B P B A B R B LS R RS A
EERECHEAE  REALRAT
AR BB A R A BBCR MR
HRRWE AR TR A RARREIR
PEEREF

Rt W H LB TS

RERSHERABEBARMS (R
BEBARES DRAURES - AEE
BERHBG AR R EAFE
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 SZ&EEZZXPTHFAEH(E)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) REABRTENAMEHAXE
accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rates: BT (EE)SBERIEE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —ECF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F#T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB AT (E1E) A (3,797) 11,801
Notional tax expense on profit before BREADEF M BRMIBMY -
taxation at Hong Kong statutory tax rate & BAE R RTHE (626) 1,947
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR A R T T 2 (142) (1,127)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A S & 1,924 843
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERKREAFRIAR BN
recognised FE 7 7
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AL AR T AR IS EIER
previously not recognised M E (189)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries I A B NFIF R Hy g7 £ 632
Over-provision in respect of prior years, net A @1 F & MR R B E F 58 (526)
Tax concession WMISEE (699)
Income tax expense SR~ 888
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEXEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEBE B R EMEFIZE383(1) K - AR (KR
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies EEZFMHER) RHIFE2E RGEM LT
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation Al EEMWEHBNOT :

and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

Contributions to
Salaries, allowance and Discretionary defined contribution
Fees benefits in kind bonuses retirement plan Total
f¢ e RERENEAN BB ERHFERTHBMER it

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
“B-ZE -F--F CEBCZE -E--F CEBCZE -“E--fF CZBCZE E--F 0 ZBECZE ZE-CF
HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TEn TiEn TER TEn TR TR TER TiEn

Present directors RiEEE
Executive directors #iES
Mr. Yu Shacheng (Chaitman 283 % ( %

and Chief Executive Officer) TR, 2,080
M. Lai Tin Ming FRAEE 1214
Independent non-executive  BUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Kwong Tz Cing, Jack 712 120
Mr. Meng Enha nBEEE 120
Mr. Wang Cui THEE 120
3714
During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, no director waived REBEZE-=FR-ZF-_F A=+
or agreed to waive any emoluments. No emoluments were paid by BIEFE  WERESHEXREETM
the Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join & - REBREAARRESZER
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. & - ERIASRIIAZE B 52E)

A RBERE(E
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2022:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2022:
three) individuals are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

BeEHAL

hAEZ&ERHFALTH ME(ZEZ_F:
WMA)RES  HHEMNRME7HEE - BE
HM=%(ZF=-—4F : =%) ATHHB
@I

e TEREMER
BYBTEAT
TE R BURIRGT B M SR

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Discretionary bonuses

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
1,339

219

58

1,616

The emoluments of the other three (2022: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

FZR)BRSH

FREM=R (==&
ATHFEBBR I T EE :

2023 2022
—EC=HF —E-F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A A&

HK$NIil - HK$ 1,000,000 T 7% 1,000,000/ 7T

____- N

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the individuals with highest
emoluments of the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 9

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$4,997,000 (2022: profit of
HK$10,677,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 540,000,000 (2022: 540,000,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 30
June 2023 and 2022 is the same as the basic (loss)/earnings
per share as the Company does not have any potential dilutive
ordinary shares during the respective years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y%  BMERRZE
Equipment
Land and Furniture and Motor Computer Leasehold
buildings ~ and fixtures machinery vehicles equipment  improvements Total
1HREE  GAREE  REREE A& BBy HEXE st

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
TR TAT TET TAT TAL TAT TAT

Cost or valuation HA{EE
AT duly 2021 i S 54500 908 12,006 12,125 316 2,09 81,951
Addtions HE - 18 2,149 855 12 - 3,034
Revaluation gain Eftha 5090 - - - - - 5090
Less: elimination of B BEYHE
accumulated depreciation (1,290) - - - - - (1,290
Written off s - (1) (576) - 79 - (706)
Disposal e - - () - - - ()
Fxchange realignment B A% - (1) 16 () 3 - 13
At 30 June 2022 j—
~A=TH 58,300 874 13,590 12,975 262 2,0% 88,087
Representing b
Cost s - 874 13,590 12,975 262 2,0% 29,787
Valuation f4f 58,300 - - - - - 58,300
58,300 874 13,590 12,975 262 2,0% 88,087
At1 July 2022 - b= 58,300 874 13,590 12,975 262 2,0% 88,087
Addtions AE - 29 946 537 4 - 1,516
Revaluation loss L (2,566) - - - - - (2,566)
Less: elimination of B BEYHE
accumulated depreciation (1334) - - - - - (1334)
Disposals e - - (430) (42 - - (852)
Exchange realignment EXBE - - (1) (54) @) - (68)
At30 June 2023 A
~A=THH 54,400 903 14,09 13,036 253 2,0% 84,783
Representing b
Cost A - 903 14,09 13,036 263 2,0% 30,383
Valuation e 54,400 - - - - - 54,400
54,400 903 14,09 13,036 253 2,09% 84,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 ¥¥ - BENKRXE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Equipment
Land and Furniture and Motor Computer Leasehold
buildings  and fixtures machinery vehicles equipment  improvements Total
1HRE:  GRAREE  REREE RE Bl HExE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T Th Th Th
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
At1 July 2021 RZE--Frf-H - 510 8,536 11,663 195 859 21,763
Charge for the year ERZH 1,290 284 1,075 369 8 361 3414
Elimination on revaluation gk (1,290) - - - - - (1,290)
Written off s - (50) (574) - 7 - (701)
Disposals e - - (1) - - - (1)
Exchange realignment i3 - (1) 2 (1) 1 - 2
At30 June 2022 and Y
1.July 2022 StER-E-CF
tA-H - 693 9,059 12,031 204 1,220 23,207
Charge for the year ERZH 1,334 108 994 438 3 361 3274
Elimination on revaluation Eiffgpe (1,334 - - - - - (1,334)
Disposals e - - (16) (422 - - (438)
Exchange realignment EHEE - - 2 (14 2 - (18)
At 30 June 2023 iy
=+A - 801 10,085 12,083 24 1,581 24,601
Carrying amount FEE
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=45A
=+A 54,400 102 4,060 1,008 12 515 60,092
At30 June 2022 RZBZZERF
=+A 58,300 181 4,531 944 48 876 64,880

The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong and are held
under a medium-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s land and buildings, measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, is categorised
into Level 2 fair value measurement within the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs
other than unadjusted quoted prices within Level 1, or significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available.

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The fair values of the Group’s land and buildings at 30 June 2023
and 2022 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation by Royson
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, and are determined using the
market approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable

10 Y% - BWERZE(E)

REERITHREFR_ZEZ=FR=-F
ZZFERA=ZTAZATEDREERSE
BWERE BTG EREEGHBERME
RETEERER AR MIEZHERE -
WEBERAFRAIGEMSEIBERENE

FHREEAEEZ A E R ETE
HEBRBRRATSEAET - WiZE+
B F IR A AR 25T E S BR vﬁlJﬁ-E
HER 561,341,000 (T - —F
63,016,000 7T) ©

properties on a price per square foot basis using market data which
is publicly available. Had they been carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, the carrying amount would have been HK$61,341,000
(2022: HK$63,016,000).

MRZZE_=ZFA=Z+H AEBECEHF
HAREEA50,200,000/8 7T ( —F — —4F :
53,700,000/ 70 ) B £ RAEF » BAER
BPALERRITRE (F1720) & AT
BB HIRFE (FI7E31(a)) °

At 30 June 2023, the Group had pledged its land and buildings
with carrying amount of HK$50,200,000 (2022: HK$53,700,000)
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 20) and
performance bonds issued (note 31(a)).

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 11 EAEEE
HK$’000
FHET

Cost [5%:S
At 1 July 2021 Rn—E-_—F+H—H 3,565
AddItIOﬂS //J\\E 1 ,225
Written off bz (795)
Exchange adjustment M 5, B (24)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 KRB —_FXA=Z+ARZE-_—_F+tA—H 3,971
AddItIOﬂS //J\\E 2,041
Written off i (1,650)
Exchange adjustment & H (72)
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=F,-A=1H 4,290
Accumulated depreciation HEtine
At 1 July 2021 RZE-_—F+H—H 873
Charge for the year FESH 1,888
Written off i€ (795)
Exchange adjustments P& H 3)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZB__FRA=TEIZZ__F+H—H 1,963
Charge for the year FESH 1,894
Written off G| (1,650)
Exchange adjustments b 3 A% (32)
At 30 June 2023 R-ZZE-=FA=+H 2,175
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2023 RZE-=FA=+H 2,115
At 30 June 2022 RZZT-ZF,A=+H 2,008
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e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

11

12

150

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group has obtained the right to use certain properties as its
office premises and warehouse through tenancy agreements.
The leases run for a period of 2 to 4 years (2022: 2 to 4 years), at

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 EHEEER)

AEEREBLEEERANEEETY
EREEMREMERR EE’J%?U %
MERHRAF(ZF2F : 254%) >

the end of period, all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases PTG B R EFER - ZSHEWL T
includes variable lease payments. BIETEHEENK -
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows FAGEReRERNVFIBEIELE KA
comprise cash outflow for leases of HK$534,000 and HK$2,000,000 BEHHEERS R LD B A534,00078 7T
(2022: HK$798,000 and HK$2,002,000) in operating and financing 12,000,000/ 7T (= F = Z 4 : 798,000
activities respectively. 77T 52,002,000/ 7T) °
GOODWILL 12 BHE
HK$’'000
FET
Cost 5%
At 1 July 2021, 30 June 2022, 1 July 2022 and H-_ZE-_—F+A—H —ZT-"FA=+H "
30 June 2023 TR CHFHA-RARZEC=FRA=TH 2,932
Accumulated impairment ZiHRE
At 1 July 2021 R-_ZT_—F+tH—H
Impairment loss BIEEE 2,932
At 30 June 2022, 1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023 AT - —FA=+H  —ZT-—_F+A—H
MZZBZ=FRA=+H 2,932
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=F,"A=+H -
At 30 June 2022 RZEZZFA=+H -

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according
to country of operation and operating segment as CGU of
environmental and cleaning in the PRC.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently
if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The CGU of environmental and cleaning in the PRC was fully
impaired in the previous year ended 30 June 2022 in view of the
deterioration in sales level and operating results of the CGU at that
time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

13 TRADE RECEIVABLES 13 EZEWFIA
2023 2022
—E-=F TEC
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAT
Trade receivables, net of nil loss allowance  Z S EWFIE - HIRZE1ERE 86,739 82,864
Ageing analysis MRl A
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RI|ER - HEZEH (=R E
trade receivables, based on the invoice date (or date of revenue B AREBEEARE)ZIMNE ZEKGKIE
recognition, if earlier), is as follows: RECHITAT -
2023 2022
—EB-=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
0 - 30 days 0%30H 57,229
31 - 60 days 31£260H 14,185
61 — 90 days 61290H 6,868
Over 90 days im0 H 4,582
82,864
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note 27(a). EHAARSEEEECR 2 E— P B ERH

5F27(@a) °

14 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 14 &% - BREBERHEMEKRKIEA
RECEIVABLES

2023 2022
—ZEC=HF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Deposits (note (a)) % (M) 2,254
Prepayments TE{F 0B 629
Other receivables H U GRIE 4,118
7,001
All of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables, BAETFTIZ£1,401,0008 L (ZFE ==
apart from certain deposits of HK$1,401,000 (2022: HK$673,000), 673,000 7T) 5N - AEE RS - BT
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one IR R E A EUGRIETER R —F Ak
year. Bl iER AR
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e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& TEFIIR)

14

15

152

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Deposits

The Group has tendered for certain environmental services contracts
and deposited sums of HK$1,933,000 (2022: HK$1,240,000) as
tender deposits at 30 June 2023. The tender deposits are interest-
free and recoverable at the end of the tender.

14

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Be  AARBERHEMERKE
(&)
Re
RZZE_=ZFRA=1TH AEEDH
SETRERRBAH TR EHE
1,933,000 7 (ZF = Z 4 : 1,240,000

BIMERRFRE - IR TR
ARG REAKRD -

LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 15 EWERKRIER
The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the money AEBE 2 BREREF B TIARRZEN
lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong and the PRC by BRARIREASRFHREBHER 2 HESE
the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The Group seeks TEREL - $‘§@7]7F$Hifg ERIER
to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans and interest o R B M5 BB AR ) - ERDEER
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed Bz o @Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ@m%ﬁ%ﬁ °
regularly by management.
2023 2022
ZECZE B
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ERds FERS EH) EREHS FESD EoH)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TER FEL FEL AT
Secured loans by mortgage  SAIRIE(EILIE 2
BHRER 6,500 105 6,605 6,500 43 6,543
Personal guaranteed loans ~ EIAZRER 60,535 3,807 64,432 75,009 3,440 78,449
Unsecured loans BERER 21,207 1,229 22,436 22,652 22,852
88,242 5,231 93,473 104,161 3,483 107,644
Less: Loss allowance W BERE (51,211) (3,901) (55,112) (46,206) (1,877) (48,083)
37,031 1,330 38,361 57,955 1,606 59,561
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

15 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 15 EBWERKFE (&)

(CONTINUED)

The exposure of the Group’s loans and interest receivables to their
contractual maturity dates are as follows:

REBHNEREFREFEZRR KA LD
EET ¢

2023 2022
—E-=E 2
Loan Interest Loan Interest

portion portion Total portion portion Total

ER#HD HNEBS Y EREH HMEHS @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx TEn TER THEx TAEx AT

Within 1 year —FR 86,592 3,483 90,075
More than 1 year but —FRERFR

within 2 years - - -
More than 2 years but REBBRER

within 5 years 17,569 - 17,569

104,161 3,483 107,644

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 6.00%
to 22.00% (2022: 6.00% to 24.00%) per annum and repayable on
maturity under the terms of contractual agreements or on demand
in writing by the Group.

(a) Ageing analysis

Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due dates:

JE U E 5% F A E ) T6.00% £ 22.00%
TE T TF 1 6.00%%E24.00%)5TE 0 W
AASERESOBRERNEIEERIZ
EMER(EE -

(a) BRER D HT
RO TTIREANESHARR -

2023 2022
—B-=E -
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXEa FISHD @t BR#H MEEH i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FER FET FEL TAR
Current (not past due) IEEE S i) 27,706 1,334 29,040 59,960 1,595 61,555
Less than 1 month past due  BE DR —{EA - - - - 14 14
110 12 months past due BEH-ET={EA 16,335 2,052 18,387 - 29 29
More than 12 months BEEAT @A
past due 44,201 1,845 46,046 44,201 1,845 46,046
Less: Loss allowance w o BERE (51,211) (3,901) (55,112) (46,206) (1,877) (48,083)
37,031 1,330 38,361 57,955 1,606 59,561

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has
been assessed by reference to historical information about
counterparty default rates. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 27(a).

EWEREFENEEER2EEE
R HEHL R ZBEERHETE -
ERAEBEERRZE—FHEH
RHIEE27(a) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA#7TF1I7R)

15 LOANS AND

INTEREST RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 BRERKFE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Analysed by credit quality (b) REEERZSM
2023 2022
—EC-ZE —T-CF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EXEa FEHS Foh BEREHS IS EoH)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEn AT FET AL
Loans receivables that are EEEREZER
not credit-impaired EX
Current (not past due) klE S aii)) 27,706 1,334 29,040 59,960 1,595 61,555
Less than 1 month past due A H—{E A - - - - 14 14
1 to 12 months past due af—E=+=@EA 16,335 2,052 18,387 - 29 29
Less: Loss allowance W BERE (7,010) (2,056) (9,066) (2,005) (32) (2,087)
37,031 1,330 38,361 57,955 1,606 59,561
Loans receivables that are 5 &R{E 2R
credit-impaired EX
Current (not past due) LR k) - - -
Less than 1 month past due  AELHA—{E A - - -
1o 12 months past due wE-Z=+=f@A - - -
More than 12 months BEBERT=@A
past due 44,201 1,845 46,046 44,201 1,845 46,046
Less: Loss allowance B BiEEE (44,201) (1,845) (46,046) (44,201) (1,845) (46,046)
57,955 1,606 59,561
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

16 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL 16 RAFEFABRZERMEE
2023 2022
—E-=F kSt
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FA&T
Listed equity securities at fair value in BATERE BB EHRAE
Hong Kong FH 34
The fair values of listed equity securities are determined based on ETRARE S 2 A FERR SRS BIREAZ
the quoted market closing price available on the Stock Exchange at FrErRm S mEEE -

the end of the reporting period.

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 RE&REESZEEY - IRHIRT

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW FRREMRSREER
INFORMATION
(@) Cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits @ BeMRSZEVERZRHBITTR
comprise cash at banks and on hand: BRERITEFRERS :
2023 2022
—EC=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFET
Deposits with banks RITER 570
Cash at bank and on hand IRITNFERE 74,480
75,050
Restricted bank deposits (note) SR BRI TIEFR (5T (570)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REMBMRRARZFE R
consolidated statement of financial ReEEY
position 74,480
Note: The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks Mizk : ZRFIRITFRIENIRITRBH
as security for due performance under several environmental RE  EREZREBEITETERERR
service contracts. The restricted bank deposits of HK$Nil BEKBER  FRAREIHAR
(2022: HK$278,000) that relate to environmental service B—FRIBNRERBELHZ
contacts with expiry date over one year after the end of the ZREIRITFREBT(ZT ==
reporting period are presented as non-current assets. & 1 278,000/ 7T ) 25 AR
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 RERBSEEY - SRFBRT

EREHGREEREER (B)

)

TRALASEREESHMELNE
BEH  BREASNIFRSEH - @
BRPMELNABRERSREN
ARBREREBENAEERSRER
EXRADBARERBFELRSR
EMAIE-

Bank Lease
loans liabilities Bond Total
RITER HEAE &5 w5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
(note 20) (note 21) (note 22)
(PFf3E20) (BfzE21) (FiFEE22)
At 1 July 2021 N-BE-—-F+H—H 22,397 2,719 9,938 35,054
Changes from financing cash BERLHRBEE :
flows:
Capital element of lease rentals D RHEREHERE D

paid - (1,859) - (1,859)
Interest element of lease rentals 2 ANTAEMEEFE 5

paid - (143) - (143)
Interest paid BERFE (520) - (292) 812)
Repayment of bank loans BEBRITER (1,028) - - (1,028)
Repayment of bond BEES - - (10,000) (10,000)

(1,548) (2,002) (10,292) (13,842)
Exchange adjustments &z - (21) - 1)
Other changes: Hitrg g
Effective interest on bond EH BB E (HiF22)

(note 22) - - 354 354
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FBREZ(FFE5(0) 520 143 - 663
New lease entered HAIHEE - 1,225 - 1,225

520 1,368 354 2,242
At 30 June 2022 and RZEZZHXA=*H
1 July 2022 k=—ZE-"FtA—H 21,369 2,064 - 23,433
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 17 RE&REELZEEY - IRHIRT

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW FEREEMBEESREER ()
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(o)  (continued) o) (&)
Bank Lease
loans liabilities Bond Total
RITER HESE it st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FHET F#x

(note 20) (note 21) (note 22)
(B#E20) (Pf=E21) (Ki=x22)

Changes from financing cash BERESHEZE :

flows:
Capital element of lease rentals D RFHERELHERE D

paid (1,919) (1,919)
Interest element of lease rentals 2 HAEH S HFIELD

paid - (81) (81)
Interest paid BEAFIE (575) - (575)
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (1,016) - (1,016)

(1,591) (2,000) (3,591)

Exchange adjustments fE &z = (40) (40)
Other changes: Hith# g .
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) | 25X (FIEE5(e))
New lease entered MEIHE
At 30 June 2023 R-ZB=-=FxA=+H
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18 TRADE PAYABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 EZENRIE

Trade payables

H SN IR

2023 2022
—E-=F —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000

TET TAET
-!I!! 19,364

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

0 - 30 days

31 - 60 days
61 — 90 days
Over 90 days

0%30H

31%60H
61%290H
#B3E90H

HEREHR  HBREAHREINEFE
RFIERE S ITT ¢
2023 2022
—ZEC-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
17,523
1,059
759
23
19,364

19 ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER

PAYABLES

19 BstEH  BhEZEsREMEM
FIE

2023 2022
—ZEC=F —EoF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT

Accrued salaries

Provision for long service payments
Provision for untaken leave
Provision for claims

Other accruals

Deposits received

Other payables

s &
REBARBSEE
RIRENE #i R AR
REHEH
Hib T E R
Bz
HAbFERFIE

15,978
4,680
5,321
3,589
4,140

506
403

34,617
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20 BANK LOANS

21

The bank loans are repayable on demand and the maturity of bank
loans, based on the schedule payment dates set out in the loan
agreements, is as follows:

20 RITER

RITERBEEREE  BREERBZE
HoFrENRBEE - RITERZ BB
T

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Within 1 year —FR

After 1 year but within 2 years —FBBRFEN
After 2 years but within 5 years WEBBRFEN
More than 5 years RAFLALE

1,053
1,077
3,392
15,847

21,369

Details on the interest rate profile of the Group are set out in note
27(c).

The bank loans were secured by the Group’s land and buildings
with a carrying amount of HK$54,400,000 (2022: HK$58,300,000)
and corporate guarantees from the Company and a subsidiary.

LEASE LIABILITIES

At 30 June 2023, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

21

ARERE 2 FIERBORFIEHNMRE27(C) °

IRITE AR L B BREE A54,400,000%8
To(=ZZ = =4 : 58,300,000/ 70) 2 T i
MEFURRRARR—ENBRARMIEZ
RNEERIEER -

HEEE

NRZE-=FXA=+H EEEHEA
BFwT :

Within 1 year —FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBREFA

2023 2022
—E-=F —EoF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
1,615

332

117

2,064
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22 BOND

On 20 November 2014, the Company issued an unlisted corporate
bond at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which was
unsecured, bore a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum and was fully
redeemable by the Company after 7 years from the issue date at its
principal amount of HK$10,000,000. The unlisted corporate bond
was repaid in full during the year ended 30 June 2022.

The movement of the unlisted corporate bond is set out as below:

22

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&3

R-ZZBE—NE+—AZ+H  KRTET
7K #8/510,000,000/8 TR IE ETH R GIE
5 ZEHFAEERE  ZETFHET%
TR MEETEREFEATAARR
%7K 4 %810,000,000/8 T REER - HE
TECCFEXRA=THIEFE A ETA
RIEHDAEEE -

FEMRRESFEEHFIIMT ¢

2023 2022

—EB-=F —EoF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FATT

At beginning of the year REH] 9,938
Effective interest expense ERFEAX 354
Interest paid BERFE (292)
Repayment B (10,000)
At end of the year RER -

During the year ended 30 June 2022, the effective interest rate of
the unlisted corporate bond was 8.52% per annum.
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 SR&EMBMRRERAMNAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position presents:

(a) HFEMBARRVEIBIEL

2023
—E=F
HK$’000
FET

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Provision for the year (note 6(a))

Balance of profits tax provision relating to
prior years

BEANEHR
FREAE (H5E6()
BEFEFSHEBGR

(1,434)

(726)

(2,160)

(35)
22

(13)

(2,173)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EMEH
Provision for the year (note 6(a)) F R (F7E6()
Provisional tax paid BATE R
Represented by: ¥

Current tax payable P BN EATR IR

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEB

- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R EEFTS R

EHERBERAR Gk 2023

2022
T F
HK$’000
T
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 HFEMBRRERAKEH (E)

(b) ERRBELEHREARE

FARERE P BRI KT HERNET
BIBBEERE D REEHT

Depreciation

allowance
in excess of Other
the related temporary
depreciation differences Total
AR E W HAb & RF
ERE =5 #et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHT FHET
At 1 July 2021 RZTE=——F+H—H 369 212 581
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 1 8,/ (5t A\) Bz
(note 6(a)) (FF5E6(a)) 134 (135) )
Exchange realignment e 5, % - 6) 6)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 =T = —FXA
=t+HERZZT==F
+H—H 503 71 574
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss (5t A),/#1% B 8z
(note 6(a)) (MF5E6(a)) (5) 46 41
Exchange realignment P& 3 % - 5) (5)
At 30 June 2023 MZEZ=%<A
=+H 498 112 610

(c) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

At 30 June 2023, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
HK$6,306,000 (2022: HK$6,593,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits, against which the assets can be utilised,
will be available in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity. Of
the total tax losses, HK$349,000 (2022: HK$2,100,000) will
expire within 5 years under the current tax legislation. Other
unrecognised temporary differences are not material.
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24 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, certain
subsidiaries of the Group and the eligible employees are each
required to make monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that may be used by
the Group to reduce the existing level of contribution.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its full-time PRC
employees. The schemes are administered by the relevant
government authorities in the PRC. The Group and the PRC
employees are required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of HK$7,150,000 (2022: HK$7,166,000) for the year ended
30 June 2023 represents contributions payable to these plans by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

At 30 June 2023 and 2022, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under the
Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on termination
of their employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments when the termination meets the required circumstances
specified in the Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is not
covered by the aforesaid MPF Scheme. At 30 June 2023, the
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon do not exceed the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met. Consequently,
provision for long service payments of HK$3,513,000 (2022:
HK$4,680,000) has been made (see note 19).

24 EREMHEFBRIRGTE

AEERBEEERIEDESABEDS
RIBBBREIGD ([ZGH0]) ADEEE
RIS 2 BERBHIEATREFTEI([58
BEatdl]) - BB /AABEILZEA
B2 FRHEFRING S - RiIFWE R
g AEEETHBARMAEREES
BRI IR E SR EGEITR T ARE
ZEEBBUWAZ5%mETEIEH R -
HEFER E R & A AERI I A30,000/8 7T
A EVEL 2 ERAERE - AEERE
YR YR AT A RORUE B B2 K -

AEERTEZMBARMAETEZR
RESHEFRHEFORKE - ZFFHEH
HEI R BB HEEE - AEERHEE
BARPBIR T E 2 ERFEKRAR L
ETBEDAEREER - MR R EE
AAEASETENBARZ2BEA M
R®ENREE ZRIRBHNEL -

REE-ZE-=ZFA=Z1+HLFE R©
e Bm R ERIER 7,150,000 7T
(T - —4% : 7,166,000/ 7T) BAEE
BETEIRBIGT AR L R TRz SR 818

K o

RZEBE_=FR-_F-_—_FA=+H"
REBE TEE D TAZIES T ZEER
EEH WEEABRRRIEZERESRES
RIS & - AREBEAELITTAZIENE
EZBERTHBEENMNR  MEBNEFZ
SRV AT LAAESHEIRE - RZF
T=FEXNAZ1TH AEERBRESE
VEH 2 B3 H RETF) B0 i R AR 15
BlEBEEZBRZBIEAR - Bt -
e REFRTE & #453,513,0008 (=&
T 4F 1 4,680,000/ 7T) (R BHEE19) °
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24 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

(CONTINUED)

In June 2022, the Government of the Hong Kong SAR (the
“Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”),
which will eventually abolish the statutory right of an employer to
reduce its long service payment and severance payment payable
to a Hong Kong employee by drawing on its MPF scheme (also
known as the “offsetting mechanism”). The Government has
subsequently announced that the Amendment Ordinance will come
into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Separately, the
Government is also expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to
assist employers after the abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition of the offsetting mechanism
takes effect, an employer can no longer use any of the accrued
benefits derived from its mandatory MPF contributions (irrespective
of the contributions made before, on or after the Transition Date)
to reduce the long service payment in respect of an employee’s
service from the Transition Date. However, where an employee’s
employment commenced before the Transition Date, the employer
can continue to use the above accrued benefits to reduce the
long service payment in respect of the employee’s service up to
that date; in addition, the long service payment in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated based on the
employee’s monthly salary immediately before the Transition Date
and the years of service up to that date.

In July 20283, the HKICPA published “Accounting implications of
the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong”
that provides guidance on the accounting considerations relating
to the offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the mechanism.
In particular, the guidance indicates that entities may account for
the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory MPF contributions
that are expected to be used to reduce the long service payment
payable to an employee as deemed contributions by that employee
towards the long service payment. However, applying this approach,
upon the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is
no longer permissible to apply the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 and recognise such deemed contributions as
reduction of current service cost in the period the related service
is rendered, and any impact from ceasing to apply the practical
expedient is recognised as a catch-up adjustment in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the long service payment
liability during the year ended 30 June 2023.
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24

25

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS
(CONTINUED)

In these consolidated financial statements and in prior periods,
consistent with the HKICPA guidance the Group has been
accounting for the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory
MPF contributions that are expected to be used to reduce the long
service payment payable to an employee as deemed employee
contributions towards the long service payment. However, the
Group has been applying the abovementioned practical expedient.

The Group has assessed the implications of this new guidance
on the above accounting policies and has decided to change
those accounting policies to conform with the guidance. The
management has commenced the processes on implementing the
change including additional data collection and impact assessment.
However, the impact of the change is not reasonably estimable at
the time these consolidated financial statements are authorised for
issue, as the Group has yet to fully complete its assessment of the
impact of the HKICPA guidance. The Group expects to adopt this
guidance with retrospective application in its consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2024.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting, retaining
and rewarding the eligible persons and to provide the eligible
persons an incentive or reward for their contribution to the Group
and by enabling such persons’ contribution to further advance the
interests of the Group. The Share Option Scheme was adopted
on 28 May 2013 and shall be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing from the date of adoption, after which period no
further options will be offered or granted but the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects with respect to options granted during the life of the Share
Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the board of directors and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (i) the average of
the closing prices per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (jii) the nominal value of the share.

24

25

ERHRFRINET 8 ()
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 UERHZELRHABERNARR

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Persons
concerned for such period as determined by the board of directors,
being a date not later than ten business days after the offer date
by which the Eligible Persons must accept the offer or be deemed
to have declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for
acceptance after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the board of directors to the grantee which the board of directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall
not be more than ten years from the date of acceptance of the offer
(subject to the provisions for early termination in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme).

The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance
of the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the
board of directors.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of which
the share options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
the annual general meeting of the Company on 30 November 2018
at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all the share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together
with any options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company in issue shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage
as may be allowed under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number
of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted to each of Eligible Persons (including
both exercised and outstanding options under the Share Option
Scheme) in any twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Where any further grant of
the share options to each of Eligible Persons would result in excess
of such limit shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders
at general meeting with each of such Eligible Persons and his
associates abstaining from voting.

No share option under Share Option Scheme was granted or
outstanding during the year ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. The
Share Option Scheme expired on 27 May 2023 and there is no
renewal or new scheme operating by the Company thereafter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

(a) Share capital

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 26 EXRHE
(a) MR
(i) Authorised and issued share capital (i) ZEREZBITRA
Number of
shares Amount
BRHEE -]
'000 HK$’000
TFhx FAET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares Lima
At 1 July 2021, 30 June 2022, RZZE=Z—FtA—1 -
1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023 of —E-__FXA=1+H"
HK$0.01 each 2o F+A—BRK
—E-=%5XA=1+H
FREEC.01E T 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
Ordinary shares LB
At 1 July 2021, 30 June 2022, R-ZE-_—F+H—H"
1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023 of 2 FXA=+H"
HK$0.01 each —E-_Ft+HA—BK
—E-=F,A=+H
HREE(EC.01E T 540,000 5,400

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(M)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall in the ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

The amount represents the difference between the
nominal amount of shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate amount of share capital of subsidiaries
acquired under common control pursuant to the
group reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 17
June 2018.

Contribution surplus

The amount represents the amounts due to shareholders
capitalised before the listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange.

(b) EEZHERRAR

()

(ii)

(iii)

EHERBERAR Gk 2023

KRG E

RERSHEEDF2ERT]
& ARABROEERNE
EAHIIRTARBBE -
BEEZENKBKE AR K
NRIBRMBEEREEKBE

PEZIEIMET

HitttEf

ZEFEARRNRBEBITRMDLN
HEEREAEEARATRMN
RZZE—=F X NA+tBEH
RFIGEM EmimETHNERE
AU EE SN B A F MR
EREA Y I ZRE ©

ARG

Z B BIER AR AR B
PTGEM L Al & B T E A &
FHRCRFOA
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26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 BN f#fE ()

(b) REEZMERRAR(E)

(iv) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2.21.

(v) The PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the
PRC enterprises, PRC subsidiaries of the Group are
required to allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit
but before dividend distribution to the statutory reserve
until the reserve has reached 50% of their registered
capital. The statutory reserve can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital. The appropriation for the year
ended 30 June 2023 amounted to HK$238,000 (2022:
HK$329,000).

(c) Capital management

168

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of net debt,
which include bank loans and lease liabilities, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital to monitor its capital structure on the basis of a gearing
ratio. The ratio is expressed by as a percentage of total debts
over the total equity. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.
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(iv) EZRFE

PE X BB RRE RN ERY
BHREMEEZMABERZ
B REREME221ME 2
S BRI

) FEZERE

RIBREPREDERNERRE
] AEENTEKBARZA
1S BR B 12 m B (B H0BR R B 9
KA & 10% 9D B &5 F
H BERuHEHEERHZME
I50% ° KRB B L 1R
ETEREE] AR REE
BREMER - HE-_T ==
FRA=ZTHIEFEZENRA
238,000 L (=& = =
329,000/ L) °

(c) EXEHE

AEBFETERNEENTIEBERR
EAREEESISELLENE B8
RGN F RIRFSEBARIASE
RAESRE  BERIRRTERER
R RS EA RIS AR & 2K 2k o

AEERETHNENREREAR
B EREREE (TR RS
8 HOKT ) B2 R A7 B AR R 5 R 0
% RREBRETE - TR RS
R BEA A -

AEBRHEAEETZRER FHAE
K- BIERITERKBEERE UK
KATREB ANEEELZR - AEBEZEE
BN N AR R A AN KB A L B A
HE B REEERE KL - 2k
RAEFBRERIAERAENE DL
AE - REE_T_=FK-_F -
FRA=ZTHIEFE  AEENEE
RESHEFFDE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 26 EARKf#HEE)
(c) Capital management (continued) (c) EXREE(E)
The gearing ratios at 30 June 2023 and 2022 are as follows: RZBZ=FR-F-__F A=+
HEBELENT
2023 2022
—EC=F —EC 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Total debts B4R 22,499 23,433
Equity attributable to owners of the RARIEE AR
Company 199,298 209,701
Gearing ratio afEx 11.29% 11.17%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to RN REAMAMN BRI TZINR
externally imposed capital requirements. MEDNHY & 23R TE PR ]
(d) Distributability of reserves (d) 2IkfREE
At 30 June 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves available RZZTEZ=FA=+H8 ' a#
for distribution to owners of the Company was HK$97,213,000 DIRFARANB A NG EAE
(2022: HK$99,250,000). £97,2130008 T (&2 ==
99,250,000/ 7T) °
27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 R TAZERMEABRERER Q¥

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to risks and the financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis.

=]

AEBAELEFEEBRIETELREER - RY
BEd - MEREEERR - AEE 2R R
ERERASEANERRER ©mERE
BHRER M EHERIN T o

(a) FERER

EERBRIERSF I RERBITEELD
BEMERAKESREHEERZR

LA
oo
AR

o

NEBZEERBREIERERE MR
SEEY - IRFRTER - EHR
H UGB R ERE R EFE o
HEERR R AEBASSRME
ERGRAEMBRREZREE - 12
BERAEERE  THEER%SE
B RRAYEEE -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

170

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions that have sound credit
ratings.

0]

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit risk as 19% (2022: 14%) and
45% (2022: 41%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
take into account the customer’s past payment history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are
usually due on presentation of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The directors have considered the credit risk of trade
receivables and noted that there was no actual loss nor
significant past due experience over the past 5 years,
including periods of unfavourable economic conditions.
The directors consider the aggregate risks arising from
the possibility of credit loss on trade receivables are not
significant and no loss allowance for credit losses were
recognised as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.
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(@) FERERE)
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

()

(ii)

Trade receivables (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

27 ¢WMIACSRBAREER QY

B (&)

(a) FERERE)
() EZEUSEE)
B BRI Z R DT AT

2023 2022
—EC-=F —EoF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET

0 - 30 days past due #HI0Z=30H

31 — 60 days past due #HAI31 Z60H
61 — 90 days past due #HI61 290 H
Over 90 days past due 1 HAEE 90 A

57,229
14,185
6,868
4,682

82,864

Loans and interest receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the end of the reporting period with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward looking information.

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

—  external credit rating (as far as available); and

— actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the

counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations.

(i) EREFHRFIE

AEEEEEEBNEREN
BHUREERSREHENGE
ERRELSRHEREEM-
T EEERBREEEEIL N
B NEEBEERREBR
BAELONRERE T AERE

IR B AR EITH R - B
ERAEGHEERIIFMR
EER FRIZEEUATIEE

- REMEERA
- MBEERAR(INA)

- %ﬂ_‘% ) Eﬁf%i?%lﬁﬁﬁ/ﬂﬁ\
MR TR A E AT
Bt EHMBHHFHE
TEENRENHRERE
1t -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
ECL model is as follows:

Category
=Rl

Definition of category

EHRIzER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

27 ¢WMIACSRRAREER QY

B (&)

(a) EERE(E)
(i) FEREFRFIE (&)
AEEEHEEBBRERAKE
Ry R -

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BARBEEERRECEE

Stage 1

E =B

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired
upon origination.

BB REREEER jiﬂﬂ?@%iﬂuﬂﬁé\
AR B IR E EREN E R

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.
BRHER ;U*EH AL - IR
REERENRER

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

HEEEHEENGFRRREREER
THFEM—IAxZREN - AAHEAR
WERHBREERE -

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loans and interest
receivables are set out in note 15.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted 25% and 76% (2022: 22% and 67%) of the
Group’s loans and interest receivables respectively as at

30 June 2023.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held, if required. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
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Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

EREARRT —EARNBLEEZDOEFNA
BEMEARRR K ATREME ERIE R -

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.
HRKATEEEE (AR &5 E EFIERE
H) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

HERKATEHIEE - BB MR EE
BB H A A (T FERRE 4B 1B ) FE R B R I
STEFBHA °

75 79 7 5 B R M 3 8
it R RARGE— ST
WEHAHI5 -

RZE-_=ZFA=1+8" @
SEREFRARARERAZE
RO BERAEEERE R K
MER25%N7T6% (T ==
F:22%M67%) °

BEERE EBREXRFEEZ
EERBRAMBEER(NE
B)KIBPRK o ANEB W MRH
FReEHRAEREEREER
AR o
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 ¢RI EzSREREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB(E)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued) (i) EWREZRFE (&)
The Group rebutted the presumption of default under EREAERFELETEBL
ECL model for loans and interest receivables over 90 ERERAERCHERL - K
days past due based on good repayment records for SECHREBIB0R 2 &
those loan borrowers having a continuous business with WEZEFENREREERE
the Group. They are assessed individually based on BEXTBEN ZEBER - MiBE
their probability of default and exposure of default with EBHAREERELNRR &2
reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted by ERFIEEEELR WK
current and forward-looking factors. BRAEHERZAZEEZIELE
BFTAd
Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest ERER KT BB EEm
receivables are as follows: ™
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-RE ERR FE=E @st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAL FEL FEL FAEL
At 1 July 2021 RZEZ—F+tA—H 80,022 - 46,046 126,068
New loans originated MELXER 13,337 - - 13,337
Repaid during the year FAEE (31,102) - - (31,102)
Exchange realignment MEH SR (659) - - (659)
At 30 June 2022 and RZEZZFXA=1+H
1 July 2022 M- —F+A—H 61,598 - 46,046 107,644
New loans originated MEEER 4,729 - - 4,729
Transfer L (18,387) 18,387 - -
Repaid during the year FAEER (17,109) - - (17,109)
Exchange realignment i 5 % (1,791) - - (1,791)
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=FA=1+H 29,040 18,387 46,046 93,473
By class at 30 June 2023 R-ZE-=FXxA=1H
RERE S
- Loans receivable — W E K 27,706 16,335 44,201 88,242
- Interest receivables — WS 1,334 2,052 1,845 5,231
29,040 18,387 46,046 93,473
By class at 30 June 2022 R=-ZE=-—FxH=+1+H
RERIE S
- Loans receivable —ERER 59,960 - 44,201 104,161
- Interest receivables — WA S 1,638 - 1,845 3,483
61,598 - 46,046 107,644
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 2T EzSREREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (@) EERgE)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued) (i) EREFHRFE(E)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL HERBESBERELED
allowances is as follows: AHTEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—BER E-BER E=ER et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAET TAET TAET TET

At 1 July 2021 WZE-_—F+HA—H 488 - 46,046 46,534
Impairment loss recognised ERAEEE 1,575 - - 1,575
Impairment loss reversed EREIREEE (26) - - (26)
At 30 June 2022 and MN-ZE-_—FA=1H
1 July 2022 MZEZ—F+H—H 2,037 - 46,046 48,083
Impairment loss recognised BEHERREEE 122 8,348 - 8,470
Impairment loss reversed BEREREFE (1,432) - - (1,432)
Transfer R (484) 484 - -
Exchange realignment b R ) - - )
At 30 June 2023 RZZE-_=FA=1+H 234 8,832 46,046 55,112
By class at 30 June 2023 RZE-=%xA=1H
RERE D
~ Loans receivable —REKER 230 6,780 44,201 51,211
- Interest receivables — JEHTRI B 4 2,052 1,845 3,901
234 8,832 46,046 55,112
By class at 30 June 2022 R-ZE-ZHXA=1H
RERE S
— Loans receivable —ERER 2,005 - 44,201 46,206
- Interest receivables — MR B 32 - 1,845 1,877
2,037 - 46,046 48,083
No significant changes to estimation techniques or REEEA - WEE LR
assumptions were made during the reporting period. SRRIEHEREE) -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(iiij) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, deposits and
other receivables. The Group accounts for its credit risk
by appropriately providing for ECLs on a timely basis. In
calculating the ECL rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category of receivables and adjusts for
forward looking macroeconomic data.

At 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group has assessed
that the ECL rate for those receivables is immaterial
under 12 months expected losses method. Thus, no loss
allowance for other financial assets at amortised costs
was recognised.

No significant changes to estimation techniques or
assumptions were made during the reporting period.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

27 ¢WMIACSRBAREER QY
E(E)

(a) FERERE)

(iii) BEHELI SRR MEME
E

BRAZLREEEY  XR
HISRITIFR ~ BE R E AU
R o AN EE B N L TR
EEBRAIREERBHAE
EERR  -RIAERACEES
BRE  AREZREZHEER
RN BEBEEX - WHLATE
HRBEEBUREL R -

RIZEZ=FRZITZZFX
A=+H8 KNEEBEBZ K12
A TE B R 18R 1B 52 5 e R
MEMEEBRBEXFEATE
Koo At - W0 LI SR R
Rz B S BB EEL W
EsiE R -

RIS ERPY + A BB B A
SRR EAED -

(b) REBEELE

REFEMERKEEREBERT Z
ReEE  SRASAKEHRER

AR TEER & B REFEER -
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c)

176

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period):

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 ¢WMIACSRRAREER QY

E(&)
(b) RBEEER ()

TREAAEE SR EBERRE R
ZHTEXIHA - RALRIEAR
TRE(BEERAE QMR (WF
)R MEPRRZRITNEAE 2
MEMF)REL -

2023 2022
-t - St
Total Morethan ~ More than Totdl More than More than
contractual Within -~ fyearbut  2years but contractugl Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut
Camying  undiscounted 1 yearor less than lessthan  More than Camying  undiscounted Tyearor less then Jess then More then
amount ~ cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years 5years amount cashiow  ondemand 2years 5years 5years
aHREE 1B 1ENEE  2EMER AHAER 1R 1FIHE MR
BEE BeRELE JEEX MR SENR SEML FEE BeNEnE JEET T SR SEME
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T#n T#n TEn ThL ThL TEn TEn T T Thn Thn TET
Trade payables B5EATE 19,364 19,364 19364 - - -
Finencia lebies ncuded i~ FAEEHER - EAEER
acconds, deposis receivedand 2 2EAR
other payables 20448 21,000 214,007 2000 - - -
Bank oans® B8R 1639 1639 4916 21,369 %99 1548 1548 4645 18,188
Lease libiltes GEEH 1412 839 - 2064 214 1678 5 19 -
41481 2418 4916 17624 63,824 08,462 8317 1898 4764 18,188

# The above information reflects the repayment schedules in
accordance with the relevant loan agreements. However, bank
loans are classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position as they will be repaid upon
demand, according to the demand clause set out in the
loan agreements. As at 30 June 20283, the aggregated
contractual undiscounted cash flow on demand amounted to
HK$20,436,000 (2022: HK$21,499,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from restricted
bank deposits, loans receivable, bank loans, bond and lease
liabilities. Deposits placed and borrowings issued at fixed rates
and variable rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out
below.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023

(c)

i FHlENRBIBEABE R ZE
BHH - AT BRITERNGAEH
BRRERSBEAERBERE  ThER
HEeRBEERBZEZEEEKIRE
KEE WNZZE_=FXA=+
A RERZRFTAHARBIEESHR
£/520,436,000/87L( - T ==
21,499,000/ 7T ) °

M=E R

AEE Y FIREREERAERIR
TER - RRER - RTER - B
REERE  BERRIEAEEZE
KRB BRI RIS AEEATA
SRS Iy B RS
A FEID EER Y PR
T -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 ¢RI EzSREREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BH(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) RIEm=Bs(E)
() FIEEER

TRFDAEENHERRZ
TFROFER 2 MR

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s net deposits at the end of the reporting period:

2023 2022
—ECCE S
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ERH% BT
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
Tian TEL
Fixed rate deposits/(borrowings) E SRR/ (E5)
Restricted bank deposts ZRABIHR 0.01% 278 0.01%-0.90% 570
Loans receivable ENER 6.00%-22.00% RYNETN  6.00%-24.00% 57,955
Lease liabilfies HERE 5,00%-5.75% (2,146) 5.00% (2,064)
35,163 56,461
Variable rate deposits/(borrowings) 3583/ (f3
Bank deposits and cash at bank RITER &fﬁﬁfii 0.09% 90,313 0.04% 74,480
Bank loans BOER 2.35%-3.50% (20,353) 2.36%-2.75% (21,369)
69,960 53,111
Net exposure Bl 105,123 109,572
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BEEZH

At 30 June 2023, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have no significant impact
to the Group’s (loss)/profit after tax and accumulated
losses.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax and accumulated
losses assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk for at the end of the reporting period.
The 50 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end of the
next annual reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2022.

RZE-=ZFXA=+H " &
SRR EE A TG0 EE
MBS - B
EERTE(ER) JRF R R
HEEYEE A .

LS RBRE S TETAEER
MEeafk2HBECERE
g BEMNEZEFHERRED
REERERIREBRANE
et EARKE TR A i H &
TATFEMNERERRHZSTSH
TH -S0EEZFABREERE
BTN — 1 F E W® S R A1 H
ﬂTT%éEmEZﬁﬁ

T FIRBREE ﬂnﬁ
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 2T EzSREREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS H(E)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥E

The Group’s business activities and its assets and liabilities
were denominated in HK$ and Renminbi (“RMB”). The
management considers the Group is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and
expenses are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

AEEEBRPYREEENABAE
TTRARE(TAREDFHE - HRK
MOHEE - WA - BERFAXIAEH
XB2EERE  HEEERR
AEBWEAZEAGERAR - A%
BRI MINE LR - AT - B
EESRFINERR  YEEENTE
EREPEAINE R o

(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) ERMITEDHE
2023 2022
—EC=HF —E-F
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
Financial assets EHMEE
Financial assets at FVPL A ETABGZEREE 368 34
Financial assets at amortised cost: REHEK AR 2 SBEE ¢
— Trade receivables —E 5 ENFE 86,739 82,864
— Deposits and other receivables —ie MEAMER A 6,591 6,372
— Loans and interest receivables —EIRERRF B 38,361 59,561
— Restricted bank deposits —ZBRHIRITHER 278 570
— Cash and cash equivalents - R MIREEEY 90,313 74,480
222,282 223,847
222,650 223,881
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised I E A EZ SR AE -
cost:
— Trade payables — B ENFIE 19,364
— Financial liabilities included in accruals, —&F AEETER « BEdUzE &
deposits received and other payables HtEfisE s emas 21,027
— Bank loans —RITER 21,369
— Lease liabilities —MHEaE 2,064
63,824
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement

(M)

(ii)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis shall be categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair
value measurement”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The listed equity securities are stated at their fair values
and are determined based on the quoted market closing
price available on the Stock Exchange at the end of the
reporting period, which is categorised as Level 1.

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3.

Financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values at 30 June 2023 and 2022.
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 EABE AR Z KRG

AND BALANCES

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
note 7 and senior management, is as follows:

AEEEEEEABFHREDHAAT
EF(NHETHEE) RS REEABKR
B SHEMT

2023 2022
—ZEC=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T

Directors £=

Fees W

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e EMREWET
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT

Contributions to defined contribution TE R FORIRET B A9 R

retirement plan

1,680
1,775
204

55

3,714

Senior management SREBEAS

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e FUMREYETR
Discretionary bonuses IBETEAL

Contributions to defined contribution TE R FUR RET SIRHR

retirement plan

132
11

150

3,864

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any material related party
transactions during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the Company’s
statement of financial position in note 29(a).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

290 KA THMBEER
(a) BAFEARRET

29 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position

2023 2022
—EBC-=F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB L& 4
Investments in subsidiaries REBARMIRE -
4
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e ENRIEREMERFIE
receivables 285 301
Amounts due from subsidiaries RSB /B A ) FRIE 167,464 165,056
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 829 165
168,578 165,522
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals et E A 1,034 647
Amounts due to subsidiaries LG VNGIE e 64,933 60,229
65,967 60,876
Net current assets REEEFEE 102,611 104,646
NET ASSETS EEFE 102,613 104,650
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital &N 5,400 5,400
Reserves e 97,213 99,250
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 102,613 104,650
EHERARAT 3k 2023 181
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29 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 29 ZAAQATRBBER (&)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Movements in components of equity (b) RERED 2B E
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components RAFEARNG 2 (E7 e E05D &E)
of equity during the year are as follows: LB
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
& R RE REEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT THT FHAT
(note 26(b)(i)
(PR =E26(0)())
At 1 July 2021 R-ZE-_—F+HA—H 5,400 198,524 (96,922) 107,002
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FAEE K& 2 EEEAEE
loss for the year - - (2,352) (2,352)
At 30 June 2022 and R-BE--FxXA=+H
1 July 2022 E—E2-__FtH—H 5,400 198,524 (99,274) 104,650
Loss and total comprehensive  FAEE K 2 EEEA5E
loss for the year - - (2,037) (2,037)
At 30 June 2023 R-ZZEZ=FXA=+H 5,400 108,524 (101,311) 102,613
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30 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION
Details of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2023 and 2022

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

30 MBARIZER
R-ZB-Z=FR-ZB-_ZFXA=1+
=L =G E S
TREHEIEVEREELE  SER
BENMBATZEE - BRETHN -
A R B R B AR -

2023 2022
- S -3 —T_CF
Proportion of Proportion of
effective ownership  effective ownership
interest interest
BRHAE EREAR

Place of Particulars of issued REthl bl
Name of company operations and paid up capital Direct  Indirect Direct  Indirect Principal activity
DRER EEMEL BRIRARREFE E# 54 B fiE TEEH
Incorporated in the BVI:
REBERRBBRMAL -
Silver Marker Limited Hong Kong US$t 100% - Investment holding

B 1= REER
Bransfield Assets Limited Hong Kong US$3 and HK$ 1,000,001 - 100% Investment holding

Hi 3571 ]%1,000,001% T RARR
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REEEMARL :
Pollution & Protection Hong Kong HK$18,557,800 - 100% Provision of environmental

Services Limited and cleaning services
EMRERBERAR E 18,557,800/ 7 RERERERRS
PPS Success Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of securities and
property holding
ERAHERAR R 10,0007 BEESLENE
Union Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Provision of money lending
services

BN HERAR R 10,0007 Rt R
Incorporated in the PRC:
B :
Shanghai PPS Sheng Mao The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 51% Provision of environmental

Environmental Services Limited (note (i)

tﬁéﬂﬁ%@ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ e A 10,000,007

i)

Shenzhen Environmental Cleaning The PRC RMB10,600,000
Services Limited (note (i)

MIRERZREERAR (W) A&E10,600,0007C

Notes:

(i) The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity joint
ventures.

(i)  The subsidiary is registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

and cleaning services

RERERE 2R

- 100% Provision of money lending
services

REIERS

0 EMEATNRINAEEECEI AT
2

(i) FZMBARAINEBERE 2 HAZRE -
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

184

Performance bonds

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Guarantees on performance bonds
in respect of environmental service
contracts

SURIRARTS & KB AR F M HER

31 RAREE
(a) BHORE
2023 2022
—ZEC=HF —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T8
14,320

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds
issued for due performance under several environmental
service contracts. The bank facilities of HK$12,060,000
(2022: HK$14,320,000) granted to the Group and bankers’
guarantees on performance bonds issued were pledged by:

() land and buildings of HK$50,200,000 (2022:
HK$53,700,000);

(i) restricted bank deposits of HK$278,000 (2022:
HK$570,000); and

(iiy  corporate guarantees of the Company and PPS Success
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary.

The effective period of performance bond is based on the
service period and the contract terms as specified in these
environmental service contracts. The performance bonds may
be claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group
fail to meet the standards as specified in these environmental
service contracts.

Litigations - Injury compensations

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group
may from time to time be involved in litigations concerning
personal injuries by its employees or third party claimants.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have any
significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations.
All potential claims made by these employees and third party
claimants not covered by insurance have been accounted for
in the balance of “provision for claims” under accruals, deposits
received and other payables (see note 19) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2023
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32 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and other
uncertainties affecting application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in conditions and assumptions are
factors to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial
statements. The principal accounting policies are set forth in note
2. The Group believes the following critical accounting policies
involve the most significant judgements and estimates used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

Loss allowances on financial assets measured at
amortised cost

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables by assessing
the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and judgements.
ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period. Where the
estimation is different from the previous estimate, such difference
will affect the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
and loans and interest receivables and thus the impairment loss
in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of transactions is assessed periodically to the effect
of all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deduction differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future profit will be available against which the unused tax
credit can be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.

Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

32 Ertfhat R A
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 33 BZ-_ZT-=§XA=1+HLt#H

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2023

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2023 and
which have not been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. These amendments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the “2020
Amendments”)? °

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)?

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

HKFRS 17 and amendments Insurance contracts and the related
to HKFRS 17 amendment’

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules®

Supplier Finance Arrangement?

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2023 (CONTINUED)

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption.

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of
the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020
Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
(expect for HKAS 12 paragraphs 4A and 88A which are immediately
effective upon issue of the amendments).

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the period
of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of
them will not have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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. FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFUBRE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—Bo=f —FTo-F T —T-TFE —FT-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FiEIT FAET FiEIT FET

RESULTS S
Revenue Uz 395,405 370,336 354,775 345,386 316,086
(Loss)/profit for the year FA(ER), & (5,299) 10,913 20,680 (35,817) 19,453
Attributable to: AT ARG -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE ¥ =N (4,997) 10,677 19,192 (36,719) 18,477
Non-controlling interests eI i (302) 236 1,488 902 976
(5,299) 10,913 20,680 (35,817) 19,453
Dividends paid B E - - - -

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES B¥EREE
Total assets MEE 286,230 291,768 294,359 265,361 280,424
Total liabilities FEN=R (83,597) (78,430) (91,619 (85,1606) (64,094)

Net assets BEFE 202,633 213,338 202,740 180,195 216,330
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